

Community School for Creative Education

CSCE Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM PDT

Location

Community School for Creative Education 2111 International Blvd. Oakland, CA 94606

Join Zoom Meeting https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87310488708?pwd=WittcHIJTkpPNDRyN0I4azA0ajIIQT09 Meeting ID: 873 1048 8708

Passcode: CSCE2111

Martha Candido 22241 S Garden Ave Apt. 4, Hayward CA 94541

Dr. Allegra Allessandri Pfiefer 1430 N St., Sacramento CA 95814

William Kappenhagen 952 Sutter Street, SF, CA 94109

Dr. Anastasia Prentiss 3153 61st Ave., Oakland, CA 94605

Rudolf Steiner, Motto of Social Ethics, 1920 (at end of first full year of first Waldorf School founded 1919)

The healing social life is found when in the mirror of each human being the whole community finds its reflection, and when in the community the strength of each one is living.

La vida social saludable se encuentra cuando en el espejo de cada ser humano la comunidad entera se encuentra reflejada y en la comunidad vive la virtud de cada uno.

尋找到健康之社交生活,就是當每個人對著鏡子 能從整個社區的影像中找 到自己的反映,這樣在社區內每人都能活 出精彩。

Heilsam ist nur, wenn Im Spiegel der Menschenseele sich bildet die ganze Gemeinscaft Und in der Gemeinschaft Lebet der Einzel Seele Kraft

Objective and 5 BIG GOALS

CSCE annual objective is reaching 80% proficiency in ELA and Math for all student groups grades 3-8 measured by NWEA MAP.

To achieve this school-wide objective over the next two years, the CSCE has FIVE BIG GOALS

Goal #1: Develop Waldorf-inspired, Common Core-aligned and equity-focused curriculum;

Goal #2: Test and document Waldorf-inspired, Common Core-aligned practices as measured in student and adult learning outcomes;

Goal #3: Maintain a well-operated school environment in Operations, HR and Budget;

Goal #4: Maintain effective community outreach (including parents, community partners, policy and research community); and

Goal #5: Launch long-term fundraising strategy for scale-up with financial stability

BOARD MEMBERS

- 1. Adrienne Barnes
- 2. Allegra Alessandri
- 3. Anastasia Prentiss
- 4. Grace Pang
- 5. Lesbhia Morones
- 6. Martha Candido

Agenda

Ū		Purpose	Presenter	Time
I.	Opening Items			6:00 PM
	A. Record Attendance		Anastasia Prentiss	2 m
	B. Call the Meeting to Order		Anastasia Prentiss	2 m
	C. Agenda Approval	Vote	Anastasia Prentiss	3 m
	D. Public Comment	Discuss	Anastasia Prentiss	5 m
II.	Consent Agenda			6:12 PM
	A. Approve Minutes - Wednesday, August 2, 202	3 Approve Minutes	Anastasia Prentiss	2 m
	B. August Check Register	Vote	Anastasia Prentiss	2 m
III.	Academic Excellence			6:16 PM
	A. Head of School Report	FYI	Phillip Gedeon	15 m
	B. Enrollment Update	FYI	Phillip Gedeon	10 m
IV.	Development			6:41 PM
	A. 23-24 Fundraising Ask	FYI	Kimberly Palmore	15 m
V.	Finance			6:56 PM
	A. 2023-24 ConApp	Vote	Susan Lefkowitz	5 m
	B. 2022-2023 EPA Resolution	Vote	Susan Lefkowitz	5 m
	C. 2022-2023 Unaudited Actuals	Vote	Susan Lefkowitz	20 m
	D. 2023-24 Fiscal Policies and Procedures	Vote	Kimberly Palmore	10 m
VI.	Governance			7:36 PM
	A. 23-24 Family Handbook	Vote	Phillip Gedeon	10 m

			Purpose	Presenter	Time
	В.	23-24 Self-Harm Policy	Vote	Kimberly Palmore	5 m
	C.	23-24 Title IX Policy	Vote	Kimberly Palmore	5 m
	D.	23-24 Suicide Prevention Policy	Vote	Kimberly Palmore	5 m
	E.	23-24 Student Free Speech Policy	Vote	Kimberly Palmore	5 m
VII.	Clo	sed Session Item			8:06 PM
	Α.	Public Employment (§ 54957) Title: Head of School & Director of Finance & Operations	Vote	Bill Kappenhagen	30 m
VIII.	Ор	en Session Report Out Item			8:36 PM
	Α.	Head of School & Director of Finance & Operations 2023-2024 Report Out	Vote	Bill Kappenhagen	5 m
IX.	Oth	ner Business			8:41 PM
	Α.	Next CSCE Board Meeting - Wednesday, October 11, 2023	FYI	Anastasia Prentiss	2 m
	В.	Board Retreat Fall 2023 - Set the Date	Vote	Anastasia Prentiss	5 m
Х.	Clo	osing Items			8:48 PM
	Α.	Adjourn Meeting	Vote	Anastasia Prentiss	1 m

THE ORDER OF BUSINESS MAY BE CHANGED WITHOUT NOTICE Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

REASONABLE LIMITATIONS MAY BE PLACED ON PUBLIC TESTIMONY The Governing Board's presiding officer reserves the right to impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is completed.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION WILL BE PROVIDED FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting of the Governing Board may request assistance by contacting Community School for Creative Education, 2111 International Boulevard, Oakland CA 94606 510 686 4131. FOR MORE INFORMATION For more information concerning this agenda or for materials relating to this meeting, please contact Community School for Creative Education, 2111 International Blvd., Oakland CA 94606, tel: 510 686 4131; em: info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org. For copies of this agenda and for agendas and minutes of prior meetings, visit our website (www.communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org).

Coversheet

Approve Minutes - Wednesday, August 2, 2023

Section:II. Consent AgendaItem:A. Approve Minutes - Wednesday, August 2, 2023Purpose:Approve MinutesSubmitted by:2023_08_09_board_meeting_minutes.pdf



Community School for Creative Education

Minutes

CSCE Board Meeting

Date and Time Wednesday August 9, 2023 at 6:00 PM

Location

Community School for Creative Education 2111 International Blvd. Oakland, CA 94606

Join Zoom Meeting https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83856250522?pwd=OUM0VGwxTVpSQ245ZzdGRnhBQWxjUT09 Meeting ID: 838 5625 0522 Passcode: CSCE2111

Martha Candido 22241 S Garden Ave Apt. 4, Hayward CA 94541

Dr. Allegra Allessandri Pfiefer 1430 N St., Sacramento CA 95814

William Kappenhagen 952 Sutter Street, SF, CA 94109

Dr. Anastasia Prentiss 3153 61st Ave., Oakland, CA 94605

Rudolf Steiner, Motto of Social Ethics, 1920 (at end of first full year of first Waldorf School founded 1919)

The healing social life is found when in the mirror of each human being the whole community finds its reflection, and when in the community the strength of each one is living.

La vida social saludable se encuentra cuando en el espejo de cada ser humano la comunidad entera se encuentra reflejada y en la comunidad vive la virtud de cada uno.

尋找到健康之社交生活,就是當每個人對著鏡子 能從整個社區的影像中找 到自己的反映,這樣在社區內每人都能活 出精彩。

Heilsam ist nur, wenn Im Spiegel der Menschenseele sich bildet die ganze Gemeinscaft Und in der Gemeinschaft Lebet der Einzel Seele Kraft

Objective and 5 BIG GOALS

CSCE annual objective is reaching 80% proficiency in ELA and Math for all student groups grades 3-8 measured by NWEA MAP.

To achieve this school-wide objective over the next two years, the CSCE has FIVE BIG GOALS

Goal #1: Develop Waldorf-inspired, Common Core-aligned and equity-focused curriculum; **Goal #2:** Test and document Waldorf-inspired, Common Core-aligned practices as measured in student and adult learning outcomes;

Goal #3: Maintain a well-operated school environment in Operations, HR and Budget;

Goal #4: Maintain effective community outreach (including parents, community partners, policy and research community); and

Goal #5: Launch long-term fundraising strategy for scale-up with financial stability

BOARD MEMBERS

- 1. Adrienne Barnes
- 2. Allegra Alessandri
- 3. Anastasia Prentiss
- 4. Grace Pang
- 5. Lesbhia Morones
- 6. Martha Candido

Directors Present

A. Alessandri (remote), A. Prentiss, B. Kappenhagen (remote), M. Candido

Directors Absent

A. Barnes, J. Pellegrine

Guests Present

K. Palmore (remote), P. Gedeon (remote)

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order

A. Prentiss called a meeting of the board of directors of Community School for Creative Education to order on Wednesday Aug 9, 2023 at 6:10 PM.

C. Agenda Approval

M. Candido made a motion to Approve agenda.A. Alessandri seconded the motion.Removed Item V A and Items VI -- EFGHThe board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

B. Kappenhagen	No
A. Alessandri	Aye
M. Candido	Aye
J. Pellegrine	Absent
A. Barnes	Absent
A. Prentiss	Aye

D. Public Comment

II. Consent Agenda

A. Approve Minutes - Wednesday, August 2, 2023

A. Alessandri made a motion to Approve Consent Agenda.

B. Kappenhagen seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

A. Prentiss	Aye
M. Candido	Aye
A. Barnes	Absent
B. Kappenhagen	Aye
A. Alessandri	Aye

Roll Call

J. Pellegrine Absent

A. Alessandri made a motion to approve the minutes from CSCE Special Board Meeting on 08-02-23.

B. Kappenhagen seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

B. July Check Register

A. Alessandri made a motion to Approve the July Check Register.

B. Kappenhagen seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

III. Academic Excellence

A. Head of School Report

187 enrolled. Although the attendance platform malfunctioned there was strong feedback during orientation.

B. Independent Study Plan 23-24

A. Alessandri made a motion to Approve the IS Plan.

B. Kappenhagen seconded the motion.

Annual Policy regarding Independent Study.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

M. Candido	Aye
A. Barnes	Absent
B. Kappenhagen	Aye
A. Prentiss	Aye
A. Alessandri	Aye
J. Pellegrine	Absent

C. Enrollment & Recruitment Plan

Dr. Prentiss led a board discussion on the steps needed to organize and enrollment and recruitment plan for 23-24.

IV. Development

A. 23-24 Fundraising Plan

CSCE will aim for 100% Board Participation in fundraising activities. We will work on an annual giving campaign that allows families to donate or support through volunteerism.

We will be hosting a Read-a-thon, participating in Giving Tuesday and having an inperson Gala.

V. Finance

A. 23-24 Fiscal Policies & Procedures

Vote pushed to the next meeting.

B. Compensation Study Faculty & Staff

Results of an independent firm's compensation study was presented to the board of directors.

VI. Governance

A. 23-24 Family Handbook

Vote pushed to the next meeting.

B. 23-24 Employee Handbook

A. Alessandri made a motion to Approve the 23-24 employee handbook.

B. Kappenhagen seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

C. 23-24 Medical Benefits Renewal

A. Alessandri made a motion to approve the 23-24 Vision Plan.M. Candido seconded the motion.The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- A. Barnes Absent
- A. Alessandri Aye
- J. Pellegrine Absent
- B. Kappenhagen Aye
- A. Prentiss Aye
- M. Candido Aye
- A. Alessandri made a motion to approve the 23-24 Dental Dental Plan.
- M. Candido seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

- B. Kappenhagen Aye
- A. Alessandri Aye
- A. Barnes Absent
- M. Candido Aye
- J. Pellegrine Absent

Roll CallA. PrentissAyeM. Candido made a motion to approve the 23-24 Kaiser benefits plan.A. Alessandri seconded the motion.The board VOTED to approve the motion.

D. 23-24 COVID Safety Plan

A. Alessandri made a motion to approve the 23-24 COVID Safety Plan.M. Candido seconded the motion.The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

E. 23-24 Self-Harm Policy

Vote pushed to the next meeting.

F. 23-24 Title IX Policy

Vote pushed to the next meeting.

G. 23-24 Suicide Prevention Policy

Vote pushed to the next meeting.

H. 23-24 Student Free Speech Policy

Vote pushed to the next meeting.

VII. Open Session Report Out Item

A. Head of School & Director of Finance & Operations 2023-2024 Report Out

Mr. Kappenhagen was charged with finalizing the negotiations.

VIII. Other Business

A. Next CSCE Board Meeting - Wednesday, September 13, 2023

B. Board Retreat Fall 2023 - Set the Date

A date for the retreat will be set at the next board meeting.

IX. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:00 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, A. Prentiss

THE ORDER OF BUSINESS MAY BE CHANGED WITHOUT NOTICE Notice is hereby given that the order of consideration of matters on this agenda may be changed without prior notice.

REASONABLE LIMITATIONS MAY BE PLACED ON PUBLIC TESTIMONY The Governing Board's presiding officer reserves the right to impose reasonable time limits on public testimony to ensure that the agenda is completed.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION WILL BE PROVIDED FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting of the Governing Board may request assistance by contacting Community School for Creative Education, 2111 International Boulevard, Oakland CA 94606 510 686 4131.

FOR MORE INFORMATION For more information concerning this agenda or for materials relating to this meeting, please contact Community School for Creative Education, 2111 International Blvd., Oakland CA 94606, tel: 510 686 4131; em: info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org. For copies of this agenda and for agendas and minutes of prior meetings, visit our website (www.communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org).

Coversheet

August Check Register

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: II. Consent Agenda B. August Check Register Vote

CSCE Check Register August 2023.pdf

Community School for Creative Education - CSCE Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM-

Check Register Detail

Community School for Creative Education

Payment Number	Payment Date	Payee Name	Rec Status	Check Amount	Account	Account Description	Transaction Description	Invoiced GL Amount		
40000861	8/3/2023	Instruction Partners	Outstanding	\$13,292.50	62-4035-0000 -7410-5210- 020-000-000	Training & Development Expense	Partnership Contract Invoice # 1 out of 4	\$13,292.50		
40000859	8/3/2023	Norcal Cleaning Services	Outstanding	\$11,210.00	62-3213-0000 -8100-5500- 020-000-000	Operation & Housekeeping Services	Janitorial Service	\$11,210.00		
40000862	8/3/2023	Kathryn Keslosky	Outstanding	\$412.50	62-0000-0000 -2700-5820- 020-000-000	Fundraising Expense	Fundraising Consultant - 7/5/23 - 7/27/23	\$412.50		
40000863	8/3/2023	Springboard Collaborative	Outstanding	\$8,475.00	62-2600-1110 -1000-5810- 020-000-000	Educational Consultants	SLA Summer Programming June 2023	\$8,475.00		
40000855	8/3/2023	Amazon Capital Services	Outstanding	\$953.62	62-0000-0000 -2700-4400- 020-000-000	Noncapitalized Equipment	Standing Desk	\$143.30		
					62-6053-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Classroom Décor	\$12.03		
						-270	62-0000-0000 -2700-4400- 020-000-000	Noncapitalized Equipment	Tech Cabinets	\$423.48
						62-6053-0000 -2700-4400- 020-000-000	Noncapitalized Equipment	Teacher Desk for TK	\$122.80	
					62-3213-1110 -1000-4200- 020-000-000	Books & Other Reference Materials	Exercises for Children with Difficulties	\$20.56		
					62-0000-0000 -2700-5815- 020-000-000	Advertising / Recruiting	Tote Bags	\$105.81		
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Binder Dividers	\$125.64		
40000864	8/3/2023	T-Mobile	Outstanding	\$1,021.79	62-3213-1110 -2700-5900- 020-000-000	Communications	Cell Phones/Hot Spots - 6/21/23 - 7/20/23	\$1,021.79		
40000857	8/3/2023	Bay Area Transport Services	Outstanding	\$2,187.50	62-2600-1110 -1000-5830- 020-000-000	Field Trip Expenses	ELOP Field Trip Transportation - 7/28/23	\$2,187.50		
40000860	8/3/2023	HWC Consultants	Outstanding	\$2,902.34	62-0000-1110 -2100-5800- 020-000-000	Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures	E-Rate Catagory One Fees FY 2023	\$2,902.34		
40000858	8/3/2023	Great Minds PBC	Outstanding	\$12,804.59	62-6053-1110 -1000-4100- 020-000-000	Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula Materials	TK Math Curriculum	\$306.30		



Community School for Creative Education

					62-3010-1110 -1000-4100- 020-000-000	Approved Textbooks & Core Curricula Materials	Math Curriculum	\$12,498.29
40000856	8/3/2023	Acme Fire Extinguisher Co., Inc.	Outstanding	\$61.26	62-0000-0000 -8100-5500- 020-000-000	Operation & Housekeeping Services	Annual Fire Extinguisher Maintenance	\$61.26
40000865	8/15/2023	Alameda County Office of Education	Outstanding	\$10,449.17	62-0000-0000 -0000-9503- 020-000-000	Accrued STRS	July 2023 STRS	\$10,449.17
40000866	8/15/2023	Industry Specific Solutions	Outstanding	\$4,275.00	62-6500-5760 -1190-5810- 020-000-000	Educational Consultants	Substitute Services - Week Ending: 8/6/2023	\$1,900.00
					62-6500-5760 -1190-5810- 020-000-000	Educational Consultants	Substitute Services - Week Ending: 8/13/2023	\$2,375.00
40000877	8/17/2023	Mills College	Outstanding		62-6266-1110 -1000-5210- 020-000-000	Training & Development Expense	Waldorf Education Certificate Program	\$8,918.00
40000867	8/17/2023	Henry C Levy, Tax Collector, Alameda County	Outstanding	\$192.22	62-0000-0000 -9100-5890- 020-000-000	Interest Expense / Misc. Fees	Property Tax	\$192.22
40000875	8/17/2023	Jorgensen HR	Outstanding	\$137.50	62-0000-1110 -2100-5800- 020-000-000	Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures	Call with client to discuss content for upcoming Board Meet	\$137.50
40000879	8/17/2023	R & S Overhead Garage Door, Inc	Outstanding	\$295.00	62-0000-0000 -8100-5601- 020-000-000	Building Maintenance	Garage door repair	\$295.00
40000870	8/17/2023	Charter School Management Corporation	Outstanding	\$14,166.66	62-0000-0000 -7300-5873- 020-000-000	Financial Services	September 2023 - Business Back Office Monthly Support	\$4,958.33
					62-0000-1110 -2700-5873- 020-000-000	Financial Services	August 2023 - Business Back Office Monthly Support	\$4,958.33
					62-0000-0000 -7300-5873- 020-000-000	Financial Services	August 2023 - Business Back Office Monthly Support	\$2,125.00
					62-0000-0000 -7300-5873- 020-000-000	Financial Services	September 2023 - Business Back Office Monthly Support	\$2,125.00
40000874	8/17/2023	Norcal Cleaning Services	Outstanding	\$11,840.00	62-0000-0000 -8100-5500- 020-000-000	Operation & Housekeeping Services	August Cleaning	\$11,840.00
40000878	8/17/2023	Quadient Finance USA, Inc.	Outstanding	\$150.00	62-0000-1110 -2700-5900- 020-000-000	Communications	Postage	\$150.00



Community School for Creative Education

40000880	8/17/2023	Seneca Family of Agencies	Outstanding	\$15,833.33	62-6332-1110 -1000-5810- 020-000-000	Educational Consultants	1.0 FTE Unconditional Education Coach - July 2023	\$15,833.33
40000882	8/17/2023	Law Offices of Young, Minney, & Corr, LLP	Outstanding	\$1,595.00	62-0000-0000 -7100-5805- 020-000-000	Legal Services	Legal Services Through 07/28/23	\$1,595.00
40000881	8/17/2023	Xobee Networks Inc	Outstanding	\$108.00	62-0000-1110 -2700-5900- 020-000-000	Communications	Monthly Communication Service Charges	\$108.00
40000883	8/17/2023	Zoom Video Communications , Inc	Outstanding	\$1,935.00	62-0000-1110 -2700-5900- 020-000-000	Communications	Zoom Video Subscription - 8/1/23 -7/31/24	\$1,935.00
40000876	8/17/2023	Lionbridge Technologies Inc	Outstanding	\$250.00	62-4203-1110 -2100-5800- 020-000-000	Professional/Consulting Services & Operating Expenditures	Monthly Minimum Charges - July 2023	\$250.00
40000873	8/17/2023	East Bay Refrigeration, Inc.	Outstanding	\$467.40	62-6500-5760 -1190-5800- 020-000-000	Professional/Consulting Services & Operating Expenditures	Work Order # 30935 - Refridgerator Repair	\$467.40
40000869	8/17/2023	Alma Partners, LLC	Outstanding	\$7,000.00	62-0000-0000 -7410-5210- 020-000-000	Training & Development Expense	DEIJ Consulting - August 2023	\$3,500.00
					62-0000-0000 -7410-5210- 020-000-000	Training & Development Expense	DEIJ Consulting - July 2023	\$3,500.00
40000868	8/17/2023	Amazon Capital Services	Outstanding	\$4,200.84	62-0000-1110 -1000-4315- 020-000-000	Classroom Materials & Supplies	Backpacks	\$93.66
					62-6500-5760 -1190-4430- 020-000-000	Noncapitalized Student Equipment	SPED iPads	\$877.59
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4400- 020-000-000	Noncapitalized Equipment	Classroom Desk	\$121.26
					62-6300-1110 -1000-4315- 020-000-000	Classroom Materials & Supplies	Classroom Supplies	\$47.29
					62-6500-5760 -1190-4315- 020-000-000	Classroom Materials & Supplies	SPED Materials	\$525.77
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Sharps containers	\$15.42
					62-0000-0000 -8100-4381- 020-000-000	Materials For Plant Maintenance	Bathroom and Janiorial supplies	\$798.62
					62-0000-0000 -8100-4381- 020-000-000	Materials For Plant Maintenance	Broom & Dustpan	\$20.91



Community School for Creative Education

Check Register 8/1/2023 through 8/31/2023

					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Storage shelves	\$66.65
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Rolling drawer for tech room	\$38.58
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Water bottles	\$198.42
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Facial tissue and pens	\$91.14
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Bell ringer	\$14.31
					62-0000-1110 -1000-4315- 020-000-000	Classroom Materials & Supplies	Classroom supplies	\$152.74
					62-0000-1110 -1000-4315- 020-000-000	Classroom Materials & Supplies	Classroom Supplies	\$272.14
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4400- 020-000-000	Noncapitalized Equipment	Tech cabinet	\$209.46
					62-0000-0000 -8100-4381- 020-000-000	Materials For Plant Maintenance	Trashbags	\$108.76
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Adapters	\$21.82
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Ice Packs	\$65.40
					62-6300-1110 -1000-4315- 020-000-000	Classroom Materials & Supplies	Classroom supplies	\$86.82
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Office supplies	\$400.06
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Folders and zip loc bags	\$35.15
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Light and chair protectors	\$156.39
40000872	8/17/2023	EMS LINQ INC	Outstanding	\$336.26	62-0000-1110 -3700-4700- 020-000-000	Food & Food Supplies	Hardware Scanner Honeywell orbital HF680	\$336.26



Community School for Creative Education

40000871	8/17/2023	Clark Pest Control	Outstanding	\$275.00	62-0000-0000 -8100-5500- 020-000-000	Operation & Housekeeping Services	Pest-Away Service	\$100.00
					62-0000-0000 -8100-5500- 020-000-000	Operation & Housekeeping Services	Pest Control	\$175.00
40000885	8/24/2023	Amazon Capital Services	Outstanding	\$1,468.32	62-6300-1110 -1000-4315- 020-000-000	Classroom Materials & Supplies	Jump Ropes	\$63.60
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Caution Tape	\$8.80
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Supplies	\$468.15
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4400- 020-000-000	Noncapitalized Equipment	Office Chair	\$87.69
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	File Storage	\$17.51
					62-6300-1110 -1000-4315- 020-000-000	Classroom Materials & Supplies	Science Classroom Materials	\$40.77
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Printer Drum Replacement	\$44.09
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4400- 020-000-000	Noncapitalized Equipment	Office Chair	\$50.99
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Binder & Sandwich bags	\$35.95
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4400- 020-000-000	Noncapitalized Equipment	Walkie Talkies	\$93.24
					62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Chalk	\$10.88
					62-0000-0000 -8100-4381- 020-000-000	Materials For Plant Maintenance	Gloves & Sponges	\$546.65
40000884	8/24/2023	AT&T	Outstanding	\$79.50	62-0000-1110 -2700-5900- 020-000-000	Communications	Phones Charges - 08/07/23 - 09/06/23	\$79.50
40000890	8/24/2023	ТСі	Outstanding	\$289.00	62-0000-1110 -1000-4410- 020-000-000	Software and Software Licensing	Social Studies License	\$289.00



Community School for Creative Education

	÷	Total Ch	eck Amount	\$154,314.26			Total GL Amount	\$154,531.78
					62-0000-1110 -1000-3603- 020-000-000	Worker Compensation Insurance	September - Workers' Compensation 2023-2023	\$1,781.00
40000887	8/24/2023	Charter Safe	Outstanding	\$5,214.00	62-0000-0000 -2700-5400- 020-000-000	Insurance	September - Package Premium 2023-2023	\$3,433.00
40000888	8/24/2023	Knowing Technologies	Outstanding	\$8,780.34	62-0000-0000 -7700-5877- 020-000-000	IT Services	Internet Software Upgrade	\$8,780.34
40000889	8/24/2023	Mercurius	Outstanding	\$1,714.56	62-4127-1110 -1000-4315- 020-000-000	Classroom Materials & Supplies	Art Supplies	\$1,714.56
					62-0000-0000 -8100-4381- 020-000-000	Materials For Plant Maintenance	Paper Towel and Cleaner	\$757.25
40000886	8/24/2023	Blaisdell's Business Products	Outstanding	\$1,023.06	62-0000-0000 -2700-4300- 020-000-000	Materials & Supplies	Copy Paper	\$265.81

Coversheet

2023-24 ConApp

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: V. Finance A. 2023-24 ConApp Vote

FY2324 Con App approval - CSCE.pdf

Community School for Creative Education BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA ITEM Action Item

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the 2023-24 Consolidated Application.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Consolidated Application (ConApp) is used by the California Department of Education (CDE) to distribute categorical funds from various state and federal programs to county offices, school districts, and direct-funded charter schools throughout California. Annually, in August, each local educational agency (LEA) submits Part I of the application to document participation in these programs and provide assurances that the district will comply with the legal requirements of each program. Program entitlements are determined by formulas contained in the laws that created the programs.

Part II of the application is submitted in the fall of each year and contains the school's entitlements for each funded program. Out of each state and federal program entitlement, districts can allocate funds for indirect costs of administration, for programs operated by the district office, and for programs operated at schools.

CURRENT INFORMATION:

Title I, Part A Basic Grant-ESSA

Funds are used to support effective, evidence-based educational strategies that close the achievement gap and enable the students to meet the state's challenging academic standards.

Title II, Part A, Teacher Quality

Funds are designated to ensure compliance with professional development activities and to support teachers meeting state and ESSA credentialing requirements.

TITLE III, Language Instruction of English Learners

Funds are to assist EL students to acquire English and meet grade-level achievement and graduation goals.

Title IV. Part A, Student Support

This program provides funding to improve students' academic achievement by increasing school district capacity to:

- 1. Provide all students with access to a well-rounded education;
- 2. Improve school conditions for student learning; and
- 3. Improve the use of technology in order to improve the academic achievement and digital literacy of all students.

Coversheet

2022-2023 EPA Resolution

Section:V. FirItem:B. 20Purpose:VoteSubmitted by:CSCE

V. Finance B. 2022-2023 EPA Resolution Vote

CSCE FY2324 EPA Resolution.pdf

2023-24 Education Protection Account (EPA)

Community School for Creative Education 2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 (510) 686-4131

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF

Community School for Creative Education

BE IT RESOLVED that the Education Protection Account funds to be received by CSCE for FY 2023-24 in the amount of approximately \$647,653 will be used solely for instructional, non-administrative expenses.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Directors of Community School for Creative Education.

Dated this

Board Chair, CSCE

Fiscal Year 2022-23

Description	Amount
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES	
Certificated Salaries (Object 1100)	156,368
Certificated Benefits (Objects 3101-3602)	47,120
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES	203,487
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR	
Revenue Limit Sources (Object 8012)	203,487
TOTAL AVAILABLE	203,487
BALANCE (Total Available minus Expenditures & Other Financing Uses)	0.00

Coversheet

2022-2023 Unaudited Actuals

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: V. Finance C. 2022-2023 Unaudited Actuals Vote

CSCE Unaudited Actuals 2022-2023.pdf CSCE FY2223 Unaudited Actuals - Narrative.pdf

Community School for Creative Education - CSCE Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM CHAR IER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUALS				
FINANCIAL REPORT -	- ALTERNATIVE FC _ <u>June 30, 2022</u>	ORM		
<u>5019 1, 2021 10</u>	Julie 30, 2022			
Charter School Nam			cation	
	#: 01100170123968			<u>.</u>
Charter Approving Entit		office of Education	1	
	y: Alameda			
Charter	#: 1284			
This charter school uses the following basis of accounting: (Please enter an "X" in the applicable box below; check only one I	20X)			
X Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Assets/Interest on Long-Term D		ties/Net Position of	biects are 6900	6910 7438
9400-9489, 9660-9669, 9796, and 9797)				0010, 7400,
Modified Accrual Basis (Applicable Capital Outlay/Debt Service/F	und Balance objects a	are 6100-6170. 62	200-6500, 6600, 7	438. 7439.
and 9711-9789)			,,, _	,
Description	Object Code	Unrestricted	Restricted	Total
A. REVENUES		Onrestricted	Restricted	i otai
1. LCFF Sources				
State Aid - Current Year	8011	1,448,241.00		1,448,241.00
Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year	8012	133,583.00	-	133,583.00
State Aid - Prior Years Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes	8019 8096	166,450.00 594,501.00	-	<u>166,450.00</u> 594,501.00
Other LCFF Transfers	8091, 8097	0.00	0.00	0.00
Total, LCFF Sources	0001,0007	2,342,775.00	0.00	2,342,775.00
		,- ,		,- ,
2. Federal Revenues (see NOTE in Section L)				
No Child Left Behind/Every Student Succeeds Act	8290	-	117,055.00	117,055.00
Special Education - Federal Child Nutrition - Federal	8181, 8182 8220	-	57,688.00 120,773.88	57,688.00 120,773.88
Donated Food Commodities	8221	-	0.00	0.00
Other Federal Revenues	8110, 8260-8299	0.00	325,323.63	325,323.63
Total, Federal Revenues		0.00	620,840.51	620,840.51
3. Other State Revenues				
Special Education - State	StateRevSE	-	230.978.00	230,978.00
All Other State Revenues	StateRevAO	727,479.98	1,157,375.02	1,884,855.00
Total, Other State Revenues		727,479.98	1,388,353.02	2,115,833.00
4. Other Local Revenues				
4. Other Local Revenues	LocalRevAO	110,036.33	63,838.67	173,875.00
Total, Local Revenues	Localitevito	110,036.33	63,838.67	173,875.00
5. TOTAL REVENUES		3,180,291.31	2,073,032.20	5,253,323.51
B. EXPENDITURES (see NOTE in Section L)				
1. Certificated Salaries				
Certificated Teachers' Salaries	1100	515,427.66	70,334.31	585,761.97
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries	1200	71,483.09	378,076.59	449,559.68
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries Other Certificated Salaries	1300	308,085.39 0.00	22,453.41 0.00	330,538.80
Total, Certificated Salaries	1900	894,996.14	470,864.31	0.00 1,365,860.45
				1,200,000110
2. Noncertificated Salaries	0400	00 000 07	444.004.04	404 057 45
Noncertificated Instructional Salaries	2100	66,632.21	414,624.94	481,257.15
Noncertificated Support Salaries	2200	0.00	0.00	0.00 223,838.05
Noncertificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries	2300 2400	172,098.71 70,790.81	51,739.34 9,362.42	80,153.23
Other Noncertificated Salaries	2900	0.00	0.00	0.00
Total, Noncertificated Salaries	_000	309,521.73	475,726.70	785,248.43
		000,021110	110,120.10	100,210,10

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Charter School Name: Community School for Creative Education

CDS #: 01100170123968 FY 22-23 (1)				
Description	Object Code	Unrestricted	Restricted	Total
3. Employee Benefits				
STRS	3101-3102	239,950.41	80,799.85	320,750.26
PERS	3201-3202	0.00	0.00	0.00
OASDI / Medicare / Alternative	3301-3302	35,975.84	43,917.62	79,893.46
Health and Welfare Benefits	3401-3402	83,223.72	48,585.54	131,809.26
Unemployment Insurance	3501-3502	4,596.10	7,442.89	12,038.99
Workers' Compensation Insurance	3601-3602	22,060.65	0.00	22,060.65
OPEB, Allocated	3701-3702	0.03	0.00	0.03
OPEB, Active Employees	3751-3752	0.00	0.00	0.00
Other Employee Benefits	3901-3902	0.00	0.00	0.00
Total, Employee Benefits		385,806.75	180,745.90	566,552.65
4. Books and Supplies				
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials	4100	6,436.07	24,978.38	31,414.45
Books and Other Reference Materials	4200	2,647.33	5,190.83	7,838.16
Materials and Supplies	4300	54,801.96	32,440.99	87,242.95
Noncapitalized Equipment	4400	52,017.31	94,922.51	146,939.82
Food	4700	0.00	140,796.04	140,796.04
Total, Books and Supplies		115,902.67	298,328.75	414,231.42
		,		
Services and Other Operating Expenditures				
Subagreements for Services	5100	0.00	0.00	0.00
Travel and Conferences	5200	26,312.15	84,185.33	110,497.48
Dues and Memberships	5300	8,076.85	450.00	8,526.85
Insurance	5400	43,886.49	0.00	43,886.49
Operations and Housekeeping Services	5500	211,750.71	16,832.00	228,582.71
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncap. Improvements	5600	122,463.72	1,040.00	123,503.72
Transfers of Direct Costs	5700-5799	0.00	0.00	0.00
Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expend.	5800	415,848.14	895,858.66	1,311,706.80
Communications	5900	12,329.49	1,935.00	14,264.49
Total, Services and Other Operating Expenditures		840,667.55	1,000,300.99	1,840,968.54
6. Capital Outlay				
(Objects 6100-6170, 6200-6500 modified accrual basis on	V)			
Land and Land Improvements	6100-6170			0.00
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings	6200			0.00
Books and Media for New School Libraries or Major				
Expansion of School Libraries	6300			0.00
Equipment	6400			0.00
Equipment Replacement	6500			0.00
Lease Assets	6600			0.00
Depreciation Expense (accrual basis only)	6900			0.00
Amortization Expense - Lease Assets	6910			0.00
Total, Capital Outlay		0.00	0.00	0.00
7 Other Outgo				
7. Other Outgo Tuition to Other Schools	7110-7143			0.00
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues to Other LEAs	7211-7213			0.00
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAs - Spec. Ed.	7221-7223SE			0.00
Transfers of Apportionments to Other LEAS - All Other	7221-7223AO			0.00
All Other Transfers	7281-7299			0.00
Transfers of Indirect Costs	7300-7399	(9,689.66)	9,689.66	0.00
Debt Service:	.000 /000	(0,000.00)	0,000.00	0.00
Interest	7438			0.00
Principal (for modified accrual basis only)	7439			0.00
Total Debt Service		0.00	0.00	0.00
Total, Other Outgo		(9,689.66)	9,689.66	0.00
8. TOTAL EXPENDITURES		2,537,205.18	2,435,656.31	4,972,861.49

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Charter School Name: Community School for Creative Education

	CDS #: 01100170123968 FY 22-23 (1)				
	Description	Object Code	Unrestricted	Restricted	Total
C.	EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES	-			
	BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5-B8)		643,086.13	(362,624.11)	280,462.02
	OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES				
υ.	1. Other Sources	8930-8979			0.00
	2. Less: Other Uses	7630-7699			0.00
	3. Contributions Between Unrestricted and Restricted Accounts	1000 1000			0.00
	(must net to zero)	8980-8999	(437,223.59)	437,223.59	0.00
	4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES				0.00
	4. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / USES		(437,223.59)	437,223.59	0.00
Ε.	NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE /NET POSITION (C+D4)	205,862.54	74,599.48	280,462.02
_	FUND DALANCE (NET ROCITION				
г.	FUND BALANCE / NET POSITION				
	 Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position As of July 1 	9791	1,979,377.00	11,071.52	1,990,448.52
	b. Adjustments/Restatements	9793, 9795	(214,303.00)	38,328.00	(175,975.00)
	c. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance /Net Position	5755, 5755	1,765,074.00	49,399.52	1,814,473.52
	2. Ending Fund Balance /Net Position, June 30 (E+F1c)		1,970,936.54	123,999.00	2,094,935.54
	Components of Ending Fund Balance (Modified Accrual Basis	only)			
	a. Nonspendable				
	1. Revolving Cash (equals Object 9130)	9711			0.00
	2. Stores (equals Object 9320)	9712			0.00
	3. Prepaid Expenditures (equals Object 9330)	9713			0.00
	4. All Others	9719			0.00
	b. Restricted	9740			0.00
	c. Committed	0750			0.00
	 Stabilization Arrangements Other Commitments 	9750 9760		-	0.00
	d. Assigned	9780		-	0.00
	e. Unassigned/Unappropriated	3700		-	0.00
	1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties	9789			0.00
	2. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount	9790M			0.00
	-				
1	3. Components of Ending Net Position (Accrual Basis only)				
1	a. Net Investment in Capital Assets	9796	0.00	400.000.00	0.00
	b. Restricted Net Position	9797		123,999.00	123,999.00
	c. Unrestricted Net Position	9790A	1,970,936.54	0.00	1,970,936.54

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Charter School Name: Community School for Creative Education

CDS #: 01100170123968 FY 22-23 (1)				
Description	Object Code	Unrestricted	Restricted	Total
G. ASSETS				
1. Cash				
In County Treasury	9110			0.00
Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury	9111			0.00
In Banks	9120	2,195,487.00	123,999.00	2,319,486.00
In Revolving Fund	9130			0.00
With Fiscal Agent/Trustee	9135			0.00
Collections Awaiting Deposit	9140			0.00
2. Investments	9150			0.00
3. Accounts Receivable	9200	82.00		82.00
4. Due from Grantor Governments	9290	768,476.00		768,476.00
5. Stores	9320			0.00
6. Prepaid Expenditures (Expenses)	9330	107,435.00		107,435.00
7. Other Current Assets	9340	6,827.00		6,827.00
8. Lease Receivable	9380	43,379.00		43,379.00
9. Capital Assets (accrual basis only)	9400-9489			0.00
10. TOTAL ASSETS		3,121,686.00	123,999.00	3,245,685.00
H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES				
1. Deferred Outflows of Resources	9490			0.00
2. TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS		0.00	0.00	0.00
I. LIABILITIES				
1. Accounts Payable	9500	261,119.00		261,119.00
2. Due to Grantor Governments	9590	388,273.00		388,273.00
3. Current Loans	9640			0.00
4. Unearned Revenue	9650	458,319.00		458,319.00
5. Long-Term Liabilities (accrual basis only)	9660-9669	43,038.00		43,038.00
6. TOTAL LIABILITIES		1,150,749.00	0.00	1,150,749.00
J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES				
1. Deferred Inflows of Resources	9690			0.00
2. TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS		0.00	0.00	0.00
K. FUND BALANCE /NET POSITION				
Ending Fund Balance /Net Position, June 30 (G10 + H2) - (I6 + J2)				
(must agree with Line F2)		1,970,937.00	123,999.00	2,094,936.00
		1,010,001.00	120,000.00	2,001,000.00

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Charter School Name: Community School for Creative Education

CDS #: 01100170123968 FY 22-23 (1)

Capital Outlav

Debt Service

Total

L. FEDERAL EVERY STUDENT SUCCEEDS ACT (ESSA) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT

NOTE: IF YOUR CHARTER SCHOOL RECEIVED FEDERAL FUNDING, AS REPORTED IN SECTION A2, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL INFORMATION MUST BE PROVIDED IN ORDER FOR THE CDE TO CALCULATE COMPLIANCE WITH THE FEDERAL EVERY STUDENT SUCCEEDS ACT (ESSA) MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENT:

1. Federal Revenue Used for Capital Outlay and Debt Service

Included in the Capital Outlay and Debt Service expenditures reported in sections B6 and B7 are the following amounts paid out of federal funds:

Federal Program Name (If no amounts, indicate "NONE")

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
a. None	\$	0.00	0.00	0.00
b.	Ψ	0.00	0.00	0.00
с.				0.00
d				0.00
е				0.00
f				0.00
g				0.00
h				0.00
i				0.00
j				0.00
TOTAL FEDERAL REVENUES USED FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY AND DEBT SERVICE		0.00	0.00	0.00

2. Community Services Expenditures

Provide the amount of State and Local funds reported in Section B that were expended for Community Services Activities:

Objects of Expenditures		Amount (Enter "0.00" if none)
a. Certificated Salaries	1000-1999	0.00
b. Noncertificated Salaries	2000-2999	0.00
c. Employee Benefits	3000-3999	0.00
d. Books and Supplies	4000-4999	0.00
e. Services and Other Operating Expenditures	5000-5999	0.00
TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES EXPENDITURES		0.00

TAL COMMUNITY SERVICES EXPENDITURES

FINANCIAL REPORT -- ALTERNATIVE FORM

July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Charter School Name: Community School for Creative Education

CDS #: 01100170123968 FY 22-23 (1)

3. Supplemental State and Local Expenditures resulting from a Presidentially Declared Disaster	Amount
Brief Description i.e., COVID-19 (If no amounts, indicate "None")	Amount
a. None	0.00
D C	
d	
TOTAL SUPPLEMENTAL EXPENDITURES (Should not be negative)	0.00

4. State and Local Expenditures to be Used for ESSA Annual Maintenance of Effort Calculation:

Results of this calculation will be used for comparison with 2020-21 expenditures. Failure to maintain the required 90 percent expenditure level on either an aggregate or per capita expenditure basis may result in reduction to allocations for covered programs in 2023-24.

a. Total Expenditures (B8)	4,972,861.49
 b. Less Federal Expenditures (Total A2) [Revenues are used as proxy for expenditures because most federal revenues are normally recognized in the period that qualifying expenditures are incurred] 	620,840.51
 c. Subtotal of State & Local Expenditures [a minus b] 	4,352,020.98
d. Less Community Services [L2 Total]	0.00
e. Less Capital Outlay & Debt Service [Total B6 plus objects 7438 and 7439, less L1 Total, less objects 6600 and 6910]	0.00
 f. Less Supplemental State and Local Expenditures resulting from a Presidentially Declared Disaster 	0.00
TOTAL STATE & LOCAL EXPENDITURES SUBJECT TO MOE	4,352,020.98

FY2223 Unaudited Actuals Narrative – CSCE

Total Unaudited Actuals Revenue:	\$5,253,323	
Estimated Actuals Projection June 30 th :	\$4,699,001	

LCFF Sources: We received Prior Year State Aid in the amount of as part of a hold harmless from FY2122.

Federal Revenue: We recognized more in ESSER III restricted spending than originally projected. Our final SPED funding schedules recognized more revenue due to the approval of ERMHS Level 3 approved expenditures. We received more child nutrition reimbursement revenue than originally projected.

Other State Revenue: We received additional State Revenue as a hold harmless from low attendance in FY2122. We also recognized more of our ELOP money than we had anticipated.

Total Unaudited Actuals Expenses:	\$4,972,861
Estimated Actuals Projection June 30 th :	\$4,914,678

- **Salaries & Benefits:** Summer staffing counts were higher than projected and additional OT was paid out that was tied to ELOP hours.
- **Books & Supplies:** We were under in textbooks and reference materials, but over in materials and supplies, tech needs, and in meal service expenses.

Services & Operating:Educational consultants was higher than originally projected due to filling open positions through consultant agencies and to additional summer school expenses.

Deferred Revenue: We ended the year with \$458,319 in Deferred Revenue.

2600	ELOP	\$15,084
3213	ESSER III	\$202,349
676	Arts & Music BG	\$24,681
7435	Learning Recovery BG	\$216,205

Ending Surplus

Total Unaudited Actuals Excess/(Deficit) \$ 280,462

Estimated Actuals Projection Excess/(Deficit) \$ (215,677)

Coversheet

2023-24 Fiscal Policies and Procedures

Section:V. FinanceItem:D. 2023-24 Fiscal Policies and ProceduresPurpose:VoteSubmitted by:CSCE Financial Policies and Procedures 23-24 with Legal Edits.pdf

Community School for Creative Education Financial Policies and Procedures

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

Financial Policies and Procedures

It is the intent of these Financial Policies and Procedures to implement both the letter and spirit of all applicable State and Federal <u>laws and</u> regulations regarding the expenditure of and accounting for public funds. These Policies and Procedures may need to be modified as the School develops and regulations change. The Board of <u>Executive</u> Directors ("Board") should approve these financial policies, and revisit them periodically.

PURCHASES

Authorization of Expenditures

All purchases of goods and services shall be consistent with the Board-approved budget. These purchases shall not require Board-approved/executed contracts, with the exception of expenditures in total fiscal year annual amounts greater than \$15,000. All other proposed expenditures must be approved by the Head of School or Director of Finance and Operations who will review the proposed expenditure to determine whether it is consistent with the Board adopted budget and sign the check request and purchase order forms (if applicable).

Execution of Expenditures

Employees authorized to obtain invoices and/or make purchases on behalf of the school are: Office Manager, Director of Finance and Operations, Assistant Head of School, and Head of School. These employees may do so according to the Board-approved budget and within the authorization limits as set forth below under Commitments, Invoices and Purchase Orders.

Contracts

All professional consulting services over \$1,500.00 shall be provided for under a <u>written</u> contract. Contracts for other goods and services exceeding \$15,000.00 on an annual basis shall be presented to the Board for approval prior to commitment and/or signing. Length of contracts shall be at the discretion of the Board. In general, contracts exceeding \$15,000.00 shall be let after a bidding process of sufficient duration to ensure competition.

Commitments, Invoices and Purchase Orders

Commitments, invoices, and/or purchase orders up to and including \$1,000.00 must be approved by one of the following authorized positions: Head of School, Assistant Head of School, Director of Finance and Operations, or Office Manager, and must be in line with the board-approved budget.

Community School for Creative Education Financial Policies and Procedures

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

Commitments, Invoices, and/or purchase orders of \$1,000.01 to \$5,000.00 must be approved by one of the following authorized positions: Head of School, Assistant Head of School, or Director of Finance and Operations and must be in line with the board-approved budget.

Commitments, invoices, and/or purchase orders of \$5,000.01 to \$15,000.00 must be approved by the Head of School and the Director of Finance and Operations and must be in line with the board-approved budget.

Commitments, invoices, and/or purchase orders of \$15,000.01 or more must be approved by the Board. All commitments, invoices and/or purchase orders will be reviewed by the Director of Finance and Operations or Head of School for initial budget compliance.

Purchase Orders

Once the purchase order is approved, orders may be placed with the vendor via mail, telephone, fax, the internet, or in person. When orders are placed in person or by telephone, the vendor contact person and date of order should be noted, and a confirming copy of the purchase order should be sent to the vendor.

The Director of Finance & Operations or designee is business office or purchasing group or department remains responsible for communicating with those receiving the merchandise and should confirm and monitor shipping and delivery.

When purchase orders are issued, a copy the purchasing or business office copies should be placed in an open file or logged in an open purchase order list until the items are received. The open file or list should be reviewed weekly to determine whether any orders need follow-up.

The vendor's packing list for received merchandise should be kept where the shipment was received, and check or tick marks should be made on the packing slip to indicate that the items are present.

If a partial shipment is received, all documents should identify the shipment as partially received, and the original purchase order should remain in the open file until all items are received.

Because a purchase order is a legally binding contract when the supplier, vendor, or service provider accepts it, staff should always make sure purchase orders communicate each request or requests clearly and in detail to avoid confusion. The purchase order should include terms, deliverables, and any other information needed to complete the purchase successfully.

Accounts Payable

The <u>S</u>-chool shall abide by <u>the School's <u>CSCE's</u> back-office provider's accounts payable policies and procedures set forth separately to the extent consistent with this policy and all applicable <u>laws</u>.</u>

Credit and Debit Card Usage

Community School for Creative Education Financial Policies and Procedures

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

School credit cards shall be issued only to personnel who travel on School business or who have a legitimate need to purchase goods and services, either in person or online, or when a vendor will not accept a purchase order. Credit cards shall not be used to bypass established purchasing procedures, including advance approval processes, and the use should be minimal and infrequent.

Every staff member who is authorized to use a credit card shall be required to sign a credit card use certification statement annually, acknowledging that the card shall be used exclusively for legitimate charter school-related business purposes and that the cardholder agrees to take reasonable precautions to protect the card from loss or theft by storing it in a secure location. Upon approval from the credit card company, a card will be issued bearing the names of both the individual and the organization.

The School shall have only one credit card account with a limit up to \$22,510,000.00. The authorized users of the credit card shall be the Head of School, Assistant Head of School, Director of Finance and Operations, and the Office Manager. The Director of Finance and Operations may delegate specific usage of credit card funds as deemed fit to additional users on an emergency, as needed basis. The use of the Credit Card shall be consistent with the board-approved budget. It should be used for emergency purposes only. The School'sCSCE's preferred method of vendor payment is via check through its back-office provider. The School CSCE shall not obtain or use a debit card.

<u>Cardholders shall be personally liable for all inappropriate charges and personally responsible for</u> <u>settling any dispute over any purchase from a vendor.</u>

<u>Credit card purchases must be approved in advance. Any School credit cardholders may have</u> <u>their card revoked for violation of the preapproval process if it is determined there was enough</u> <u>time for them to request and receive approval for a purchase order using normal purchasing</u> <u>procedures.</u>

When using a credit card for internet purchases, cardholders should ensure that the website uses secure socket layer encryption (these website addresses will start with https).

Credit cards shall not be used to purchase alcoholic beverages.

Credit cards shall not be used for personal expenses.

<u>Cardholders shall not assign to someone else the use of a credit card, or pay for another</u> <u>employee's or person's expenses with the credit card.</u>

All back-up documents related to credit card use should be initialed by the cardholder. If a receipt is missing, payment may be the responsibility of the cardholder, unless the Director of Finance and Operations determines otherwise. Inappropriate or overuse of the affidavit of lost or missing receipt may result in the loss of credit card privileges and disciplinary action.

If the accounting department staff identifies identifyies any inadvertent personal charges or unauthorized uses of the card, the card statement and all backup documentation will be forwarded to the Director of Finance and Operations for review.
Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

and the cardholder will be required to reimburse the School immediately for any inadvertent personal charges or unauthorized charges.

The Director of Finance and Operations determines whether to revoke the cardholder's credit card privileges and whether any disciplinary actions will be taken. The Director of Finance and Operations's and Head of School's credit card privileges may be revoked by the Board of Directors.

Purchases made using a credit card are subject to the same criteria and requirements as all other purchases.

Review and approval procedures are as follows:

- The credit cardholder will review the card statement to ensure it includes only their own approved charges.
- The Director of Finance & Operations accounting department staff will review all charges on the card statement against all purchase documents the cardholder submits.
- Any charges not made by the cardholder will be identified and discussed with the accounting department staff and forwarded to the Director of Finance and Operations.
- <u>The Director of Finance and Operations will review and approve or disapprove of most</u>
 <u>employee credit card use; the Head of School will review and approve or disapprove</u>
 <u>the Director of Finance and Operations's credit card use; and the Chair of the Board of</u>
 <u>Directors will review and approve or disapprove the Head of School's credit card use.</u>
- The Director of Finance and Operations will review charges and supporting documentation for the monthly statement before approving any payment.
- All cardholders should report the loss or theft of their School credit card immediately to the credit card company and the Director of Finance and Operations, even if the loss or theft occurs on a weekend or holiday. If a credit card is stolen, the cardholder should file a police report, and a copy of the report should be maintained for insurance purposes.

Other Electronic Payments

Other electronic <u>payment</u> methods (wire, ACH, transfer between bank accounts, etc.) shall not be permitted for payment of any expenses or reimbursements except for Kaiser, CoPower, Vision Service Plan (VSP), East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD), Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E), Waste Management, <u>Industry Specific Solutions (Sub Teacher Source)</u>, and Divvy.

Employee Reimbursements

Business use of telephones or cell phones shall be reimbursed. Business use of personal telephones for reimbursement must be approved in advance. Business meals shall be reimbursed using standard applicable IRS guidelines. Under no circumstances shall alcohol be reimbursed. In the rare occasion that an employee needs to purchase supplies on behalf of

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

<u>the School CSCE</u>, the employee must have written approval from the Director of Finance and Operations or Head of School prior to making the applicable purchase. The employee must then submit an original <u>itemized</u> receipt along with a fully executed reimbursement request with appropriate approval(s).

The Head of School and Director of Finance and Operations must obtain a Board member's authorization on reimbursement requests payable to the Head of School's or Director of Finance and Operation's name.

Expense Reimbursement:

- 1. Within 30 days of an expense occurring, an employee who seeks reimbursement for authorized expenses completes the required forms detailing the expenses incurred, attaching originals of supporting documentation, including itemized receipts or invoices.
- 2. All purchases are supported by receipts in order to be reimbursed.
- 3. The employee's required form(s) and receipts are reviewed and approved by the Director of Finance and Operations.

Reimbursable expenses must be pre-approved. Items that are not reimbursable include air travel insurance, first or business class travel, lodging within a 50 mile radius of the School, personal memberships, personal items, personal phone calls, personal services, entertainment, alcohol and alcoholic beverages, and gifts.

Travel to events should be approved in advance, and those making the arrangement should always strive to obtain the best possible price.

<u>Unless School administrators consider something an emergency, travel arrangements should be</u> made at least 15 days in advance to obtain better pricing.

Employees should provide an itemized receipt from the hotel that details all charges and dates, and clearly indicates for whom the lodging was provided. Documents should include any itemized receipts for parking, tolls, car rentals, taxis, food and other expenditures related to the travel for which the employee obtained prior approval.

Travel by Automobile

An employee who uses his or her personal automobile for business shall be reimbursed at the most current IRS mileage rate. The employee shall document in their expense report the dates, miles traveled, and business purpose of each trip.

The School assumes no responsibility for personal automobiles used for business. Parking should be reimbursed for the actual cost, and a receipt is required. Any traffic or parking violation should always be the sole responsibility of the employee.

Employees who use private vehicles in the course of their official duties are required to have in their possession a valid California driver's license and carry current automobile insurance with at

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

least the minimum coverage for public liability and property damage as specified by the State of California. An employee who operates a private vehicle in violation of the above insurance requirement should be subject to disciplinary action.

The lease or rental of automobiles by employees may be authorized for office business purposes, but should be approved by Director of Finance and Operations in advance. Authorization should be contingent on the cost being less than what would be incurred at the current IRS-approved rate per mile when using one's own private vehicle, and/or using a taxi or rideshare service.

<u>Carpools are strongly encouraged when two or more employees need to travel to the same</u> <u>destination and would otherwise do so in separate privately owned vehicles, unless other official</u> <u>business circumstances make such pooling impractical and more costly.</u>

Air Travel

Air travel should be authorized by the Director of Finance and Operations when he or she deems it reasonable, when it results in a cost savings, and when it promotes the efficiency of the employee.

Lodging

Lodging arrangements should be preapproved by the Director of Finance and Operations. The employee is responsible for all additional costs for an accompanying companion.

<u>Meals</u>

Meals should only be reimbursed if travel requires an overnight stay unless otherwise approved by the Director of Finance & Operations.

Employees traveling on approved charter school business may choose to be reimbursed for the actual costs of meals. An itemized receipt must be submitted showing the cost of food, beverages, and gratuities, including the name of every person for whom food or a beverage was provided, and the business purpose. Gratuity shall not be paid in excess of 20%.

Miscellaneous Expenses

Any business expenses not categorized above should be listed under miscellaneous expenses on the reimbursement form and documented with all information needed to substantiate the expense. These expenses should be reimbursed at the actual cost if listed under miscellaneous expenses on the reimbursement form and if the employee submits documents that substantiate the expenditure. All individual costs in excess of \$5 should require a receipt. Examples of other expenses are necessary transportation (e.g., taxi, Uber, Lyft), registrations, and parking. For toll roads and bridges, when a receipt is not practical and the amount is more than \$5, the amount and the road or bridge should be identified.

Non-reimbursable expenses

Personal expenses such as laundry, valet service, personal telephone, personal internet, entertainment, and alcohol are not reimbursable. Excessive and unreasonable costs such as valet parking, in-room telephone, and food from the honor bar in hotel rooms shall not be reimbursed. Powered by BoardOnTrack

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

Payment for internet service will only be reimbursed if preapproved by an administrator, and then only if deemed necessary for work .

Petty Cash – Purpose and Usage

The School does not have a Petty Cash Account.

Personal Use of School Funds

Use of School funds for personal use is prohibited. Violation of this policy shall result in discipline up to and including dismissal or removal, including from the Board.

BANKING

General Checking Account

The Board shall authorize the establishment of commercial bank accounts for the purposes of School operations. Funds will be deposited in non-speculative accounts including federally-insured savings and/or checking accounts and/or invested in non-speculative federally-backed instruments and/or standard money market accounts.

The General Checking Account, or "Operating Account," shall be the primary account for School needs. Authorized signatories to this account shall be the Head of School, the Director of Finance and Operations, and the <u>C</u>ehair of the Board of Directors. Checks above \$25,000.00, and checks payable to an authorized signer, must be signed by two authorized <u>signatories people</u>. Authorized signers for checks above \$25,000.00 from this account shall be the <u>C</u>ehair of the Board of Directors, Head of School, and Director of Finance and Operations.

The General Checking Account shall be reconciled monthly by an outsourced accountant, employed by <u>the School's CSCE's</u> back-office provider. The outsourced accountant, shall <u>preparecut</u> and send checks but is not the signor. The back-office provider does not have the ability to approve expenses nor to manage funds in any <u>School CSCE</u> account. The monthly Bank Reconciliations shall be reviewed and approved by the Finance Committee or a representative of the Board that does not have access to the account.

Deposits of Receipts

The School will deposit all funds received as soon as practical upon receipt. The Office Manager will receive, open, date stamp, and distribute all incoming mail on a daily basis. As funds are Powered by BoardOnTrack

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

received, such as checks, money orders, or cashier's checks, they should be forwarded to the Director of Finance and Operations.

The Director of Finance and Operations or designee shall:

- <u>should sStamp all checks with a restrictive endorsement including the statement "For</u> Deposit Only.", the School's designated <u>bankbankk</u> account number, the name of the School and the bank's name and <u>the Director of Finance and Operations shall</u> make a copy of each check.
- Prepare journal entries and deposit slips. A copy of each check to be deposited is made and attached to a copy of the deposit slip and filed to provide support for all deposits. The back-office business services provider reviews and signs off on journal entries. The back-office business services provider also inputs journal entries.
- Make deposits no later than on a weekly basis. If deposits are made other than daily, the deposit should be maintained in a secure area with limited access.

Reconciliation of cash receipts to deposit slips and bank statements are performed by the Director of Finance & Operations and the back-office business services provider on a monthly basis. All cash is counted with dual controls. At no time should the "less funds returned" section of a bank deposit slip be used; the entire amount should always be deposited without any cash returned or withheld. Similarly, no disbursements should be made from any cash collections.

Anyone who wishes to pay the School in cash for any service, fundraiser donation, or other reason should be directed to the Office Manager or Director of Finance and Operations, who should issue a receipt and record the received amount in a cash receipts log when received. The individual who issues a cash receipt should always verify that all the correct documents and information are provided to support the transaction.

The following are required to issue a cash receipt:

- A prenumbered triplicate cash receipt book.
- Photocopies of any checks received.
- A completed receipt in the triplicate cash receipt book. The original receipt is given to the payee who provided the payment, the yellow or first copy accompanies the cash count form and deposit documents, and the pink or second copy remains in the receipt book.

At the end of each day, the cash receipts log amounts should be matched to the individual receipts accompanying the cash, and to the cash count. The count should be performed and confirmed by two people (also known as witnesses), one of whom may be the individual who collected the cash. All funds and the cash receipts log shall be kept in a locked, fireproof safe that is bolted securely to the ground on the School premises.

If the cash balance at the end of day exceeds \$500, a bank deposit should be made the same day if possible. Otherwise, bBank deposits should be made on a regular weekly basis by the Head of School and/or the Director of Finance and Operations, as applicable. At the time of deposit, all cash and checks should be collected and a bank deposit slip prepared. A copy of the deposit slip should be attached to the deposit, and all backup should be attached to and filed with the monthly Powered by BoardOnTrack

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

bank statement.

If any <u>cash payments</u>funds are <u>received remitted by to</u> any <u>employee one</u> other than the Office Manager or Director of Finance and Operations, the handler should follow the receipting and handling procedures described above, including keeping the funds in a locked, fireproof safe <u>that</u> <u>is bolted securely to the ground on the School premises in a secure location</u> until the funds can be delivered to the Office Manager or Director of Finance and Operations. At that time, funds should be counted, confirmed, and receipted by the <u>empolyee receiving person with</u> the funds and the <u>Office Manager business office person</u> <u>or Director of Finance & Operations</u>.

TRAVEL POLICIES

Employee Mileage Reimbursement

All employees are reimbursed at the standard mileage rate per mile as determined by the Internal Revenue Service for use of their own vehicle for business related travel pre-approved by their supervisor. In addition, parking fees and tolls paid are reimbursable if supported by receipts.

All employees requesting such mileage reimbursement are required to furnish an Expense Report containing the destination of each trip, its purpose and the miles driven, parking fees and tolls, within one month after the travel date, and supported by receipts or statements, as applicable.

Cash Boxes

A portable cash box issued by the business office may be used to collect money at fundraising activities, ticket sales and other events or activities.

Individuals who collect cash for fundraisers and activities for which a cash box is issued shall safeguard the cash properly. Once all cash has been collected, it should be recorded on a cash count form. Two individuals should count the cash together, and both should sign and date the cash count form and remit the funds to the business office. Every effort should be made to turn in the cash the same day as the fundraiser or activity. Any funds collected but not turned in to the business office for the final counting and deposit to the bank should never be taken home or left in any unprotected environment. Instead, they should be sealed in a tamper-proof plastic bank bag and locked securlyplaced in a locked, fireproof safe that is bolted securely to the ground on the <u>School premises</u>.

When the Director of Finance & Operations business office receives the cash box funds, the funds should be counted again by a business office staff member and a witness, or second business office staff member and each should sign the cash count form as verification of their confirmation. The cash and the verified cash count form should be placed in a tamper- proof plastic bank bag and secured in a locked safe, fireproof safe that is bolted securely to the ground-until the cash is remitted to the business office for deposit.

Cash box proceeds should be controlled and processed in the same manner as other cash receipts. If the cash balance at the end of day exceeds \$500, a bank deposit should be made the same day, if possible. Otherwise, all bank deposits should be made by the last business day of the week. No

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

funds should be left in the cash box.

OTHER PRACTICES

Budget Adoption

A budget shall be adopted by the Board no later than June 30 prior to the start of each new fiscal year, or earlier if required by the <u>chartering authority</u> authorizing entity.

During the course of the year, the Board may adopt an amended budget as expenses and revenue projections change.

At a minimum, budget revisions should be made during the interim financial reporting process, and as necessary, at other times throughout the fiscal year. Specifically, the first and second interim reports due to the chartering authority in December and March respectively should reflect revised projected revenue and expenditure totals. In addition, depending on the timing of the state's adoption of the annual budget act, and the changes with the start of the school year, the School shall, as appropriate, prepare a revised budget for the Board of Directors' approval in the fall (i.e., in September or October) to reflect adjustments relating to state funding, enrollment, and other needs.

Multiyear Financial Projections (MYP)

At a minimum, the School's MYP shall project revenues and expenditures into the two subsequent fiscal years.

Reserves

The School shall maintain prudent level of budgetary reserves for economic uncertainties and is needed to manage cash flow and help protect the School from unforeseen revenue shortfalls, unexpected costs, and economic uncertainties. Budgetary reserves shall be maintained to help the School save for large purchases and reduce the cost of borrowing money. The School shall adopt a minimum cash reserve of 35% of the total of all budgeted expenditures.

Audit

The School shall comply with federal and state assurances and requirements for principal apportionment certification, after-school education, facility grants, instructional minutes, state instructional standards, and other entitlement or grant funds. The state compliance requirements can be found in Standards and Procedures for Audits of California TK-12 Local Education Agencies, which is published by the EAAP and is updated annually. The Director of Finance and Operations shall annually visit the EAAP web site at www.eaap.ca.gov and obtain a copy of the then-operative state compliance requirements and the audit procedures. This information is critical to ensure the School's compliance with funding requirements before the annual audit and thus avoid audit findings.

An annual audit by an outside firm shall be performed each year on the close of the prior year's books. The audit shall be performed in advance of the December 15 statutory audit deadline. The audit shall include, but not be limited to, (1) an audit of the accuracy of the School's financial

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

statements, (2) an audit of the School's attendance accounting and revenue claims practices, and (3) an audit of the School's internal controls practices.

If the School receives over \$750,000 from federal sources, the audit shall be prepared in accordance with any relevant Office of Management and Budget audit circulars. The audit firm shall be on the State approved list of School auditors.

At the conclusion of the audit, the Director of Finance and Operations will review the audit with the Finance Committee and propose any changes necessary in operating procedures to comply with audit findings. The audit shall be reviewed by the Board and approved for submission to granting agency, California Department of Education, County Superintendent of Schools, and State Controller's Office by December 15 of each year. CSCE's authorizer.

Form 990 Federal Tax Return: The selected audit firm will prepare the Form 990 tax return and send a copy to the <u>S</u>-school staff responsible for the audit. The <u>S</u>-school staff will review and send a copy to the Board of <u>Directors Head of Schools</u> for its review and approval before filing. Once approved by the Board, the <u>S</u>-school will notify the audit firm who will then prepare the final return for filing.

Board Meetings

The Board shall review financial statements at periodic Board meetings. The Board shall also review and approve the First Interim, Second Interim, and Unaudited Actuals reports on an annual basis.

Conflict of Interest

The Charter School maintains a Conflict of Interest Code, which is incorporated by reference herein. All officers, directors, and employees are expected to review the same, and understand the prohibitions on conflicts of interest under Government Code Section 1090, the Political Reform Act, and the common law prohibition on conflicts of interest. Any Board member with a financial interest in a matter presented to the Board shall fully disclose such interest prior to Board discussion on the issue and shall recuse themselves from the discussion and voting on the matter. Additionally, tThe Board shall maintain develop a separate more comprehensive policy on conflict of interest, hiring of relatives, and compliance with Government Code 1090 and the Fair Political Practices Act.

Payroll

New Employees: Requests for new employees shall be initiated by the Head of School and the Director of Finance and Operations and be consistent with the approved annual personnel budget. The Director of Finance and Operations shall handle the new hire and onboarding process, ensuring that personnel files are complete and forwarded to the School'sCSCE's back-office provider as appropriate. New employees shall complete an Application for Employment and all

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

necessary paperwork for payroll. New employees shall be fingerprinted and TB tested consistent with State law. Fingerprint and TB clearance must be received by the School before any employee may start work.

Employees shall accrue vacation and sick leave time based on the policy as outlined in the current Employee Handbook of the School. The Handbook shall be amended from time to time by the Board.

The School shall maintain position control systems that track positions, expressed as full-time equivalents (FTE). Position control shall be used as a budgeting tool, and to ensure that only authorized positions are filled and only appropriate personnel receive a payroll check. The School shall track personnel accurately.

The School's position control system shall establish checks and balances among personnel decisions, budgeted appropriations, and employee paychecks.

The School's position control system shall include the following features:

- <u>1. Have unique position control numbers for each position.</u>
- 2. Contain only board-authorized positions.
- 3. Contain only valid, funded positions.
- 4. Provide timely and accurate information
- 5. Be used as a forecasting tool.
- 6. Be reconciled with the payroll, accounting, budget, and HR systems or modules.
- 7. Allow salary payments only to authorized positions.

The Director of Finance and Operations shall develop procedures to ensure accurate and timely preparation of timesheets for hourly employees.

Authorized timesheets shall be forwarded to <u>the SchoolCSCE</u>'s back-office provider according to the back-office provider's policies and procedures set forth separately. Payroll processing and payment shall take place according to the back-office provider's policies and procedures set forth separately.

Payroll registers shall be approved by the Director of Finance and Operations, as long as payments are consistent with approved At Will Agreements and the approved annual personnel budget.

Independent Contractors

The use of independent contractors is closely monitored so as not to vary from the rules of the Internal Revenue Code, and to comply with all applicable laws that govern the classification of workers in California as independent contractors for purposes of the California Labor Code, the Unemployment Insurance Code, and the Industrial Welfare Commission wage orders. The School shall only engage independent contractors if all of the following practices are followed:

- I. The expense is within the approved budget or separately approved by the Board;
- II. The contractor provides proof of adequate insurance and IRS form W-9;
- III. IRS rules are followed regarding classification of staff as contractors versus employees;

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

and

IV. The work is done under contract.

The School shall regularly review its relationships with independent contractors to determine if any should be reclassified.

Vendor Files

A file should be created and maintained for each vendor and used for significant or ongoing purchasing. The vendor files should be organized alphabetically and should include the following items, if applicable:

- IRS W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification
- Legal contracts, dealer or marketing agreements, and other such documents.
- Long-term purchase order commitments.
- Proof of insurance (certificates of insurance may be necessary for some services such as consulting).
- Any other relevant correspondence or documentation.

A Form 1099 must be completed for all contractors with reportable services of \$600 or more that are not incorporated, and for all lawyers regardless of whether they are incorporated.

Capitalization and Depreciation

The School will capitalize and depreciate all assets costing \$5,000.00 or more. All other assets are charged to expense in the year incurred.

Capitalized assets are recorded at cost and depreciated under the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives which can range from:

- Leasehold Improvement Lease term or 5 years, whichever is shorter
- Equipment 3 years
- Furniture 5 years

Repair and maintenance costs, which do not extend the useful lives of the assets, are charged to expense. The cost of assets sold or retired and related amounts of accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the asset accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the earnings in the year.

Disposal of Surplus Property and Donations

Surplus property shall mean property that is no longer in use, is damaged beyond repair, or that the School feels will have no future value to the School's program, and that is declared to be surplus property by the Board. If the School wishes to dispose of equipment or other surplus property, the Board shall declare the property surplus and shall direct the staff on the actual means of disposal of the property, such as sale, donation, or destruction and disposal.

If the School wishes to sell equipment or other surplus property, the Board shall direct the staff by giving specific guidance regarding the manner in which such property is to be sold.

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

If the School wishes to donate equipment or other surplus property, the Board shall declare the property surplus and authorize the donation. Requirements for potential donee organizations shall include: (1) the donee organization is fully independent of the School, with none of the School's Board members or key personnel involved in the donee organization; and (2) the donee organization shall be a non-profit or governmental entity related to education. In addition, the School shall secure a receipt from the donee organization for the donated property, and shall remove the asset from the School's books and record the donation as required by state and federal audit guidelines.

Property Acquired with Federal Grant Funds

If the property in question cost \$5,000 or more at the time of acquisition <u>and</u> was acquired with federal grant funds, the School shall notify the federal contract administrator prior to donating or disposing of such property as provided above.

Grant and Donation Revenue

All major types of revenue (e.g., grants, donations, state apportionment, and special education revenue) shall be recognized and accounted for separately. The School shall adhere to all statutory requirements or other restrictions related to the same. Donations and grants may include donor-imposed or contractual requirements or conditions that must be met before the revenue can be recognized or earned. All such requirements or conditions should be monitored to ensure the requirements are met. Any revenue that has not met the requirements or conditions should be considered a liability and is often categorized as unearned revenue.

Grant income is recognized as income when it is received. Charter School-related grants are frequently awarded on a cost-reimbursement basis or as advances against services to be performed. Revenue is based either on allowable costs incurred, such as with cost reimbursement awards, or on other terms of the award such as a fixed price or unit of service. The types of grant income the School usually receives are education payments, and federal, state and local grants and contracts with various compliance requirements. At fiscal year end, grant income that has been incurred but not yet received should be accrued to comply with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Donations shall be recognized as income when received, unless accompanied by restrictions or conditions.

The School shall recognize donation income in the period in which the contribution is received unless it is restricted. Donation income shall be classified as increases in unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted net assets, depending on whether the donation has any restrictions.

Unconditional promises to give shall be recorded as assets, such as a receivable. When the promise is received, contribution revenue is recognized and is considered a temporarily restricted net asset. Unconditional promises to give that are to be collected within one year shall be recorded at the promise's face value, less any reserve for uncollectible uncollectable promises, as estimated by the Director of Finance and Operations.

Unconditional promises to give that are collectible over more than one year shall be recorded at their discounted net present value. The interest rate used when calculating net present value of an unconditional promise to give shall be the risk-free rate of return available to the School when the promise was received.

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

When all restrictions associated with a donated asset have been met, the business office shall record a change in classification of the asset from temporarily restricted to unrestricted net assets.

Conditional promises to give are donations that the donor will give to the School only when certain conditions are met. Conditional promises should not be recorded in the accounting records until all conditions are met. If the School receives a donation under conditional promises, the money or asset received is subject to being returned to the donor until the condition is met or until the donor waives it.

If a School has unconditional or conditional promises to give, it should work closely with its auditor to ensure proper accounting.

Receipts and Disclosures

For every contribution it receives, whether cash or goods, with a fair market value of \$250 or more, the School shall provide a receipt to the donor. The business office or Director of Finance and Operations shall prepare the receipt and present it to the Board of Directors for acceptance before depositing any donated funds or using any donated items. The donation receipt should contain as much information as possible to identify the donor and the donated cash, merchandise or services. All donations should be acknowledged with a contemporaneous donation acknowledgment letter. The law does not allow IRC 501(c)(3) nonprofit organizations to provide a donor with the estimated dollar value of an in-kind gift. In-kind donations can be stocks, vehicles, art, or other assets. Valuations of in-kind donations are the responsibility of the donor, and donors should have their donated items professionally assessed and certified by a professional to obtain an accurate fair market value.

Grant and Entitlement Financial Reports

Virtually all federal, state, and local funding sources have specific and unique requirements regarding financial and programmatic reporting and use, including expenditure and reporting deadlines, periods (e.g., annual or quarterly basis), and data requests (e.g., financials by major expenditure category, by allowable use category, etc.) The business office shall create a calendar with all relevant financial reporting deadlines to identify and share with all responsible parties. The School's procedures and calendar should allow for review and approval as needed by the Board of Directors, chartering authority, or other entity (e.g., SELPA, JPA, or consortium) prior to submission to the grantor agency.

School administration, including but not limited to the business office staff, shall understand fully the reporting and programmatic requirements of all grant and entitlement funding sources to mitigate financial risk to the organization due to noncompliance.

Board Member Expense Reimbursement

Board members may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in the course of their corporate duties and shall comply with the employee reimbursement provisions stated herein. , including but not limited to local mileage and tolls at the IRS rate for participation in Board meetings, other meetings and visits to the school on official business, and attendance at conferences authorized Powered by BoardOnTrack

Board Policy #3100

Date Board Approval:1/24/2012 Date Last Amended: 9/11/2023

by the Board. Board members shall submit itemized expense reports with the stated corporate purpose of each expense and receipts or statements, as available, to the school administration for approval not more frequently than monthly or less than quarterly.

Leadership Stipends/Extra Compensation

Additional compensation outside of the board approved employment agreement that is to be paid to the Head of School or Director of Finance and &-Operations must be approved prior to adding such compensation to payroll. Any aAdditional compensation up to \$5,000 must be approved by and signed off on by the Board Chair and the Vice Chair. Additional compensation in the amount of \$5,001 and above-must be brought before the CSCE Board of Directors and must be voted on and approved in a regular Board public meeting prior to payment. Approval of additional compensation shall comply with all applicable legal requirements including, the establishment the rebuttable presumption of reasonable compensation and the Nonprofit Integrity Act (26 CFR § 53.4958-6(c); Govt. Code §12586(g).)

Coversheet

23-24 Family Handbook

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: VI. Governance A. 23-24 Family Handbook Vote

2023-2024 Student Family Handbook.pdf



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Student & Family Handbook 2023-2024



Phillip Gedeon, *Head of School* Anayaxy Barraza, *Assistant of Head of School* Malcolm Defils, *Dean of Student Culture*

Page 1 of 119

Powered by BoardOnTrack

Community School for Creative Education - CSCE Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM



社 羣 創 新 學 校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Table of Contents

Mission	5
Vision:	5
School Motto	5
School Verse	6
Drop-off & Pick-up Procedures	8
RAINY DAY Drop-off & Pick-up Procedures	9
Availability of CSCE Charter 2021-2027	10
Tuition Free Policy	10
INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAM	
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP")	11
Tests on Personal Beliefs	11
Sexual Health Education	11
Teacher Qualification Information	12
SCHOOL POLICIES, PROCEDURES, & EXPECTATIONS	
Special Education/Students with Disabilities	13
Education of Homeless Children and Youth	13
Education of Foster and Mobile Youth	15
Involuntary Removal Process	17
Lost or Damaged School Property	18
Nondiscrimination Statement	18
Student Records, including Records Challenges and Directory Information	19
Uniform Complaint Procedure ("UCP")	22
Student Internet and Technology Use Policy and Agreement	26
Cell Phone and Electronic Equipment Policy	27
STUDENT DISCIPLINE	
School-wide Behavior Policy	28
Code of Behavior	29
Positive Behavior Matrix for various school locations:	28
Consequences for Misbehavior	30
Prohibited Items	34

Page 2 of 119

Community School for Creative Education - CSCE Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM



社 羣 創 新 學 校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Family Acknowledgement and Action Plan (Referral)	35
Student Success Team (SST)	35
HEALTH & SAFETY	
Meal Program	36
Nut Free School	36
Health, Safety & Emergency	36
Lice	36
Oral Health Assessment	37
Immunizations	37
Physical Examinations and Right to Refuse	38
Diabetes	39
Concussion/Head Injuries	40
Sudden Cardiac Arrest	40
Opioid Information Sheet	40
Human Trafficking Prevention	40
Mental Health Services	41
Pregnant and Parenting Students	42
HOME-SCHOOL COMMUNICATION	
The Weekly Folder	41
Monthly Newsletter	42
Robo Call	42
Conferences	42
Publications and Websites	42
Family/Parent/Guardian-as-Partner Policy	42
Parent/Guardian and Family Engagement	43
ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURES & GOVERNANCE	
In-school Structures	46
CSCE Partners	47
CSCE Corporate Structure and Board	48
Fundraising Programs and Ways to Donate	49

APPENDIX: Complete Policies

Page 3 of 119

Community School for Creative Education

社 羣 創 新 學 校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Title IX, Harassment, Intimidation, Discrimination, And Bullying Policy	51
Suspension and Expulsion Policy and Procedures	66
Suicide Prevention Policy	86
Professional Boundaries: Staff/Student Interaction Policy	92
Uniform Complaint Policy and Procedures	97
Dress Code Policy	108
Attendance Policy	111
Acknowledgements and Signatures	120

Page 4 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

General Information

Mission

The CSCE partners with families and communities to provide a rigorous college-preparatory program integrated into a culturally rich, arts-infused, highly personalized curriculum inspired by Waldorf education for the diverse students of Oakland to promote equity and prepare culturally competent, well-rounded, lifelong learners to lead, contribute to, and successfully participate in our rapidly changing multicultural society.

La Escuela Comunitaria para la Educación Creativa socios con las familias y las comunidades para proporcionar un riguroso programa de preparación universitaria integrada en una gran riqueza cultural, infundido con las artes, plan de estudios altamente personalizado inspirado en la educación Waldorf para los diversos estudiantes de Oakland para promover equidad y preparalos para que sean culturalmente competentes, equilibrados, aprendices de por vida para dirigir, contribuir y participar con éxito en nuestra sociedad multicultural que cambia rápidamente.

社羣創新學校與家庭及社區合作以提供嚴格的大學預科課程。以華道夫的教學方法,融入豐富的文化,藝術 及個別設計的課程,以造福屋崙不同文化的學生。提倡平等博愛,尊重文化,平均發展及永不止息的學習精神。 使學生能在變化多端的多元文化社會中,投身參與,建樹良多。

Vision:

The CSCE envisions a future in which all children have access to quality education; all children experience success in community and career; and youth voices contribute in valued and meaningful ways to the success of a thriving, equitable, and multicultural society.

La Escuela Comunitaria para la Educación Creativa tiene la visión a futuro donde los niños tienen acceso a una educación de calidad, todos los niños experimentan el éxito en la comunidad y en su carrera, y las voces de los jóvenes contribuyen con valores y formas significativas para el éxito de una sociedad próspera, equitativa y multicultural.

社羣創新學校祈望將來所有的學童都能接受優良的教育,在社區及職業上建立成功的碩果。青年的呼聲能被 重視,在這活力充沛的,人人平等的多元化社會中,作出有意義的貢獻

School Motto:

Receive the Child in Reverence, Educate the Child in Love Let the Child Go Forth in Freedom

El Niño Ha De Ser Recibido Con Respeto, Educado Con Amor Puesto En La Vida Finalmente En Libertad

Đón Nhận Đứa Trẻ Với Sự Trân Quý Giáo Dục Đứa Trẻ Trong Tình Yêu Thương Để Đứa Trẻ Bước Đi Trong Tự Do

以崇敬迎接 用爱引领 在自由的心态中让他离去。

In Ehrfurcht empfangen; in Liebe erziehen; zur Freiheit entlassen.

Page 5 of 119

Community School for Creative Education - CSCE Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM



社 羣 創 新 學 校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

School Verse

(Anonymous) Cited by Cecil Hardwood, Co-Founder of the first Waldorf schools in an English-speaking country (1898-1975)

> This is our school Let peace dwell here. Let the room be filled with contentment. Let Love abide here: Love of one another Love of humankind Love of the earth And love of life itself. Let us remember: As many hands build a house, So, many hearts make a school.

Esta es nuestra escuela Que la paz habite aquí. Que el salón de clase se llene de satisfacción. Dejemos que el amor permanezca aquí: Amor de unos a otros El amor a la humanidad Amor a la tierra. Amor a la vida. Recordemos: Como tantas manos construyen una casa Así mismo, muchos corazones hacen una escuela.

> 這是我們的學校 讓平安與我們同在 讓滿足感覺暢流每個角落 讓愛心充滿校園 彼此互愛,博愛社羣 環保大地,熱愛人生。 讓我們緊記: 建屋要合力, 建校要同心!

Đây là trường học của chúng ta Hãy sống hòa bình ở đây. Hãy để căn phòng tràn đầy mãn nguyện. Hãy để tình yêu tồn tại ở đây: Tình yêu của nhau Tình yêu của nhân loại Tình yêu của trái đất Và tình yêu của đời mình. Chúng ta hãy nhớ: Như nhiều bàn tay xây dựng một ngôi nhà, Vì vậy, nhiều trái tim tạo thành một trường học.

Page 6 of 119

Community School for Creative Education - CSCE Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM



社 羣 創 新 學 校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

هذه مدرستنا .دع السلام يسكن هنا .دع الغرفة مليئة بالرضا :دع الحب يلتزم هنا حب بعضهم البعض حب البشرية حب الأرض .وحب الحياة نفسها :دعونا نتذكر ،كما العديد من الأيدي بناء منزل

لذا، قلوب كثيرة تجعل المدرسة

Page 7 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Drop-off & Pick-up Procedures

Solano Way (Alley)

** Following these procedures will ensure the safety of all our students and families! Thank you for your help! **

Drop-off Procedure – Car Riders

- Morning drop-off gate will be open, with a staff member present from 8:00 8:30 AM
- All cars should enter Solano Way (alley behind school) from 22nd Ave.
- Students will be greeted by a staff member at the end of Solano Way, near the corner of 21st Ave.
- Staff will ensure students enter the gate to the school yard safely
- Please refrain from entering Solano Way from 21st Ave., doing U-turns on 21st Ave., double parking, or dropping students off from the other side of 21st Ave.

Drop-off Procedure – Walkers/Bus Riders

- Morning drop-off gate will be open, with a staff member present from 8:00 8:30 AM
- All students walking should use the sidewalk to enter the gate near the corner of 21st Ave. and Solano Way
- Students will be greeted by a staff member at the gate near the corner of 21st Ave. and Solano Way
- Staff will ensure students enter the gate to the school yard safely
- Please refrain from using at the Main Entrance of the building for Morning Drop-off

Pick-up Procedure – Car Riders

- Afternoon gate will be open, with staff members present:
 - o Transitional Kinder/Kinder: Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, Friday from 2:30 2:45 PM
 - o All cars should enter Solano Way (alley behind school) from 22^{nd} Ave.
 - o Family members will be greeted by a staff at the gate in Solano Way (between 22nd & 21st Aves.)
 - o Staff will ensure students walk safely from the gate to the family vehicle
 - o Please remain in vehicle during pick-up
 - o Please refrain from entering Solano Way from 21st Ave.
 - o Please do not park and walk through the alley to the gate
- Afternoon gate to the blacktop will be open, with staff members present:
 - o 1st 8th Grades: Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, Friday from 3:30 3:45 PM
 - o All Students: Wednesday from 12:45 1:00 PM
 - o Family members will be greeted by a staff on the blacktop
 - o Staff will ensure students walk safely to the family vehicle
 - o Please remain in vehicle during pick-up
 - o Please refrain from entering the blacktop on Solano Way from 21st Ave.
 - o Please do not park and walk through the alley to the gate

Pick-up Procedure – Walkers/Bus Riders

Page 8 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- Parents/Guardians/Families who walk or ride public transportation may enter through the Main Entrance of the building
- For your safety, please do not walk to the gate on Solano Way for Afternoon Pick-up
- Students permitted to walk or ride public transportation independently must check out at the front office before leaving the building
- The office must have written permission from Parent/Guardian/family member or guardian on file to allow students walking or riding public transportation without an adult

Extended Day

- Students who are not picked up by 2:45 PM (TK/K), 3:45 PM (1st-8th) on M,T,Th,F and 1:00 PM on Weds, will be checked into Extended Day
- Please see Office for registration forms and Extended Day options
- Students should be picked up from Extended Day using the Main Entrance of the building

<u>RAINY DAY Drop-off & Pick-up Procedures</u>

Rainy Day Drop-off Procedure – Walkers/Bus Riders Car Riders

- On rainy days the garage or front door will be opened at 8:00 AM
- Cars may enter the gate from 22^{nd} Avenue and *pull all the way forward*
- A staff member will be in the blacktop at the doorway to the building to greet your child
- Please pull all the way forward and make sure your child waits to exit the vehicle until the staff member is there to greet you
- A staff member will ensure your student(s) enter the building safely
- The garage floor can get slick when wet. Remind your child to walk carefully.
- Cars can exit through the second garage door onto the playground and through the gate onto Solano Way

Rainy Day Pick-up Procedure – Walkers/Bus Riders Car Riders

- On rainy days the garage will be opened at 2:25 PM (TK/K), 3:25 PM (1st-8th) on M,T,Th,F and 12:40 PM on Weds
- Cars may enter the garage from 22nd Avenue and pull forward (Please do not park in garage)
- A staff member will be in the garage at the doorway to the building to greet vehicles
- Staff will ensure students walk safely from building to vehicle in garage
- Cars can exit through the second garage door onto the playground and through the gate onto Solano Way

Extended Day Program

- Students participating in our **Extended Day Program** must be **registered**. Please see the **School Office** for registration forms.
- Extended Day begins at 2:45 pm for Transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten students on Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday.
- Extended Day begins at 3:45 pm for students in 1st through 8th grades on Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, and Friday.
- Extended Day begins at 1:00 pm for all students (TK-8th grades) on Wednesdays or other early dismissal days.
- Students must be **signed out** at the **School Office when picked up** from the Extended Day Program.

Page 9 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

• Extended Day ends at 6:00 pm. If students are not picked up by 6:00 pm there may be a late pick-up fee. Details included in registration forms located in the School Office.

Availability of CSCE Charter 2021-2027

A copy is available on our website and a hard copy is available at the Front Office. Upon request, CSCE for Creative Education (CSCE) will make available to any Parent/Guardian or legal guardian, a hard copy of the CSCE Charter 2021-2027.

Tuition Free Policy

CSCE does not charge tuition. It is a free, public charter school. CSCE does welcome monetary and service donations.

Page 10 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Instructional Program

California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP")

CSCE shall annually administer required state testing to the applicable grades (e.g., the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress.) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a Parent/Guardian's or guardian's written request to School officials to excuse his or her child from any or all parts of the CAASPP shall be granted.

Tests on Personal Beliefs

Unless you give written permission, your child will not be given any test, questionnaire, survey, or examination containing any questions about your child's, or his/her Parents/Guardians' or guardians' personal beliefs or practices in sex, family life, morality, or religion.

English Learners

The Charter School is committed to the success of its English Learners and support will be offered both within academic classes and in supplemental settings for students who need additional support for English language learning. The Charter School will meet all applicable legal requirements for English Learners as they pertain to annual notification to parents, student identification, placement, program options, English Learners and core content instruction, teacher qualifications and training, reclassification to fluent English proficient status, monitoring and evaluating program effectiveness, and standardized testing requirements. The Charter School will implement policies to assure proper placement, evaluation, and communication regarding English Learners and the rights of students and parents.

Sexual Health Education

The Charter School offers comprehensive sexual health education to its students in grades 7-8. A parent or guardian of a student has the right to excuse their child from all or part of comprehensive sexual health education, HIV prevention education, and assessments related to that education through a passive consent ("opt-out") process. CSCE does not require active parental consent ("opt-in") for comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education. Parents and guardians may:

- Inspect written and audiovisual educational materials used in comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education.
- Excuse their child from participation in comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education in writing to the school.
- Be informed whether the comprehensive sexual health or HIV/AIDS prevention education will be taught by CSCE personnel or outside consultants. When the school chooses to use outside consultants or to hold an assembly with guest speakers to teach comprehensive sexual health or HIV/AIDS prevention education, be informed of:
 - o The date of the instruction
 - o The name of the organization or affiliation of each guest speaker
- Request a copy of Education Code sections 51930 through 51939.

Page 11 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Anonymous, voluntary, and confidential research and evaluation tools to measure student's health behaviors and risks (including tests, questionnaires, and surveys containing age-appropriate questions about the student's attitudes concerning or practices relating to sex) may be administered to students in grades 7-8. A parent or guardian has the right to excuse their child from the test, questionnaire, or survey through a passive consent ("opt-out") process. Parents or guardians shall be notified in writing that this test, questionnaire, or survey is to be administered, given the opportunity to review the test, questionnaire, or survey if they wish, notified of their right to excuse their child from the test, and informed that in order to excuse their child they must state their request in writing to the Charter School.

A student may not attend any class in comprehensive sexual health education or HIV prevention education, or participate in any anonymous, voluntary, and confidential test, questionnaire, or survey on student health behaviors and risks, if the Charter School has received a written request from the student's parent or guardian excusing the student from participation. An alternative educational activity shall be made available to students whose parents or guardians have requested that they not receive the instruction or participate in the test, questionnaire, or survey.

Teacher Qualification Information

As the Charter School receives Title I federal funds through the Elementary and Secondary Education Act ("ESEA"), as reauthorized and amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act ("ESSA"), all parents/guardians of students attending the Charter School may request information regarding the professional qualifications of classroom teachers and/or paraprofessionals, including at a minimum:

- 1. Whether the student's teacher:
 - a. Has met State qualification and licensing criteria for the grade levels and subject areas in which the teacher provides instruction;
 - b. Is teaching under emergency or other provisional status through which State qualification or licensing criteria have been waived; and
 - c. Is teaching in the field of discipline of the certification of the teacher; and
- 2. Whether the child is provided services by paraprofessionals and, if so, their qualifications.

Upon request, the Charter School will provide the information to the parents/guardians in a timely manner. Parents/guardians may contact the Head of School at 510-686-4131 to obtain this information.



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

School Policies, Procedures, & Expectations

Special Education/Students with Disabilities

We are dedicated to the belief that all students can learn and must be guaranteed equal opportunity to become contributing members of the academic environment and society. CSCE provides special education instruction and related services in accordance with the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Improvement Act ("IDEIA"), Education Code requirements, and applicable policies and procedures of the El Dorado County Charter SELPA. These services are available for special education students enrolled at CSCE. We offer high quality educational programs and services for all our students in accordance with the assessed needs of each student. CSCE collaborates with Parents/Guardians, the student, teachers, and other agencies, as may be indicated, in order to appropriately serve the educational needs of each student.

Pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (20 U.S.C. §§ 1400 et. seq) and relevant state law, CSCE is responsible for identifying, locating, and evaluating children enrolled at CSCE with known or suspected disabilities to determine whether a need for special education and related services exists. This includes children with disabilities who are homeless or are wards of the State. To ensure that eligible students are receiving the services to which they are entitled, we would like to request your assistance.

If you know of a child who has a disability or that you suspect may have a disability, you may refer that child's Parent/Guardian or guardian to CSCE by contacting Ms. Alina Kagan at alinak@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org or calling 510-686-4131 and asking for the Director of Special Education Services. Please note: All referrals are considered confidential. The Parent/Guardian, legal guardian, or surrogate Parent/Guardian retains the right to refuse services and other procedural safeguards under federal and state law.

Education of Homeless Children and Youth

The term "homeless children and youth" means individuals who lack a fixed, regular and adequate nighttime residence. It includes children and youths who (42 USC 11434(a)):

1. Are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; or are abandoned in hospitals;

2. Have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as regular sleeping accommodations for human beings;

3. Are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings; and/or

4. Migratory children and unaccompanied youth (youth not in the physical custody of a Parent/Guardian or guardian) may be considered homeless if they meet the above definition of "homeless."

Page 13 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Homeless status is determined in cooperation with the Parent/Guardian or guardian. In the case of unaccompanied youth, status is determined by the School Liaison.

School Liaison: The Head of School or designee designates the following staff person as the School Liaison for homeless students ((42 USC 11432(g)(1)(J) & (e)(3)(C).):

Mr. Malcolm Defils, Dean of Student Culture

EM: Malcolmd@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org Tel: 510-916-8894

The School Liaison shall ensure that (42 U.S.C. 11432(g)):

1. Homeless students are identified by school personnel and through outreach and coordination activities with other entities and agencies.

2. Homeless students enroll in, and have a full and equal opportunity to succeed at CSCE.

3. Homeless students and families receive educational services for which they are eligible, including services through Head Start programs (including Early Head Start programs) under the Head Start Act, early intervention services under part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, any other preschool programs administered by CSCE, if any, and referrals to health care services, dental services, mental health services and substance abuse services, housing services, and other appropriate services.

4. Parents/Guardians are informed of the educational and related opportunities available to their children and are provided with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children.

5. Public notice of the educational rights of homeless children is disseminated at places frequented by Parents/Guardians or guardians of such youths, and unaccompanied youths, including schools, shelters, public libraries, and soup kitchens, and in a manner and form understandable to the Parents/Guardians and guardians of homeless youth and unaccompanied youth.

6. Enrollment/admissions disputes are mediated in accordance with law, the School's charter, and Board policy.

7. Parents/Guardians and any unaccompanied youth are fully informed of all transportation services, as applicable.

8. CSCE personnel providing services receive professional development and other support.

9. The School Liaison collaborates with State coordinators and community and school personnel responsible for the provision of education and related services to homeless children and youths.

10. Unaccompanied youth are enrolled in school; have opportunities to meet the same challenging State academic standards as the State establishes for other children and youth; and are informed of their status as independent students under section 480 of the Higher Education Act of 1965 and that the youths may obtain assistance from the School Liaison to receive verification of such status for the purposes of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid described in section 483 of the Act.

The California Department of Education publishes a list of the contact information for the Homeless Education Liaisons in the state, which is available at: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/hs/

Page 14 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Acceptance of Course Work: The Charter School will accept any coursework satisfactorily completed at any public school, a juvenile court school, a school in a country other than the United States, and/or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency by a homeless student.

The Charter School will provide homeless students credit for the partial completion of courses taken while attending a public school, a juvenile court school, a school in a country other than the United States, and/or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. If the student did not complete the entire course, the Charter School shall not require the student to retake the portion of the course the student completed unless the Charter School, in consultation with the holder of educational rights for the student, finds that the student is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate from high school. When partial credit is awarded in a particular course, the homeless student shall be enrolled in the same or equivalent course, if applicable, so that the student may continue and complete the entire course. These students shall not be prevented from taking or retaking a course to meet California State University or the University of California admission eligibility requirements.

For any homeless student who enrolls at CSCE, a copy of CSCE's complete policy shall be provided at the time of enrollment and at least twice annually. A copy of the complete Policy is available upon request at the main office or on the school website.

Education of Foster and Mobile Youth

Definitions: For the purposes of this annual notice the terms are defined as follows:

- 1. "Foster youth" refers to any child who has been removed from their home pursuant Welfare and Institutions Code section 309 and/or is the subject of a petition filed under Welfare and Institutions Code section 300 or 602. This includes children who are the subject of cases in dependency court and juvenile justice court.
- 2. "Former juvenile court school pupils" refers to a student who, upon completion of the student's second year of high school, transfers from a juvenile court school to the Charter School.
- 3. "Child of a military family" refers to a student who resides in the household of an active duty military member.
- 4. "Currently Migratory Child" refers to a child who, within the last 12-months, has moved with a parent, guardian, or other person having custody to the Charter School from another Local Educational Agency ("LEA"), either within California or from another state, in order that the child or a member of the child's immediate family might secure temporary or seasonal employment in an agricultural or fishing activity, and whose parents or guardians have been informed of the child's eligibility for migrant education services. "Currently Migratory Child" includes a child who, without the parent/guardian, has continued to migrate annually to secure temporary or seasonal employment in an agricultural or fishing activity.
- 5. "Pupil participating in a newcomer program" means a pupil who is participating in a program designed to meet the academic and transitional needs of newly arrived immigrant pupils that has as a primary objective the development of English language proficiency.

Within this notice, foster youth, former juvenile court school pupils, a child of a military family, a currently migratory child, and a pupil participating in the newcomer program will be collectively referred to as "Foster and Mobile Youth." Within this notice, a parent, guardian, or other person holding the educational rights for a Foster and Mobile Youth will be referred to as a "parent."

Foster and Mobile Youth Liaison: The Head of School or designee designates the following staff person as the Liaison for Foster and Mobile Youth:

Page 15 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Phillip Gedeon Head of School 2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 510-686-4131

The Foster and Mobile Youth Liaison's responsibilities include but are not limited to the following:

- 1. Ensuring and facilitating the proper educational placement, enrollment in school, and checkout from school of foster children.
- 2. Assisting foster children when transferring from one school to another school in ensuring proper transfer of credits, records and grades.

School Stability: The Charter School will work with foster youth and their parent to ensure that each pupil is placed in the least restrictive educational programs, and has access to the academic resources, services, and extracurricular and enrichment activities that are available to all pupils, including, but not necessarily limited to, interscholastic sports. All decisions regarding a foster youth's education and placement will be based on the best interest of the child and shall consider, among other factors, educational stability and the opportunity to be educated in the least restrictive educational setting necessary to achieve academic progress.

Foster youth, currently migratory children and children of military families have the right to remain in their school of origin if it is their best interest. The Charter School will immediately enroll a foster youth, currently migratory child or child of a military family seeking re-enrollment in the Charter School as the student's school of origin (subject to the Charter School's capacity and pursuant to the procedures stated in the Charter School as the school of origin, the foster youth has the right to remain in the Charter School pending the resolution of the dispute. The Charter School will also immediately enroll any foster youth, currently migratory child or child of a military family seeking to transfer to the Charter School (subject to the Charter School pending the resolution of the dispute. The Charter School will also immediately enroll any foster youth, currently migratory child or child of a military family seeking to transfer to the Charter School (subject to the Charter School's capacity and pursuant to the procedures stated in the Charter School of origin to transfer to the Charter School (subject to the Charter School's capacity and pursuant to the procedures stated in the Charter School's charter and Board policy) regardless of the student's ability to meet normal enrollment documentation or uniform requirements (e.g. producing medical records or academic records from a previous school).

Foster youth, currently migratory children, and children of military families have the right to remain in their school of origin following the termination of the child's status as a foster youth, currently migratory child or child of a military family, as follows:

- 1. For students in Kindergarten through eighth grade, inclusive, the student will be allowed to continue in the school of origin through the duration of the academic year in which the student's status changed.
- 2. For students enrolled in high school, the student will be allowed to continue in the school of origin through graduation.

Acceptance of Course Work: The Charter School will accept any coursework satisfactorily completed at any public school, a juvenile court school, a school in a country other than the United States, and/or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency by a Foster and Mobile Youth.

The Charter School will provide Foster and Mobile Youth credit for the partial completion of courses taken while attending a public school, a juvenile court school, a school in a country other than the United States, and/or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency. If the student did not complete the entire course, the Charter School shall not require the student to retake the portion of the course the student completed unless the Charter School, in consultation with the holder of educational rights for the student, finds that the pupil is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate from high school. When partial credit is awarded in a particular course, the Foster and Mobile Youth shall be enrolled in the same or equivalent course, if applicable, so that the student may continue

Page 16 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

and complete the entire course. These students shall not be prevented from taking or retaking a course to meet California State University or the University of California admission eligibility requirements.

Student Records: When the Charter School receives a transfer request and/or student records request for the educational information and records of a foster youth from a new local educational agency ("LEA"), the Charter School shall provide these student records within two (2) business days. The Charter School shall compile the complete educational record of the pupil, including but not limited to a determination of seat time, full or partial credits earned, current classes and grades, immunization and other records, and, if applicable, a copy of the pupil's special education records including assessments, IEPs, and/or 504 plans. All requests for student records will be shared with the Foster and Mobile Youth Liaison, who shall be aware of the specific educational record keeping needs of Foster and Mobile Youth.

The Charter School shall not lower a foster youth's grades as a result of the student's absence due to a verified court appearance, related court ordered activity, or a change in the placement of the student made by a county or placing agency. If a foster youth is absent from school due to a decision to change the placement of the student made by a county or placing agency, the grades and credits of the pupil will be calculated as of the date the student left the Charter School.

In accordance with the Charter School's Educational Records and Student Information Policy, under limited circumstances, the Charter School may disclose student records or personally identifiable information contained in those records to certain requesting parties including but not limited to a foster family agency and state and local authorities within a juvenile justice system, without parental consent.

Discipline Determinations: If the Charter School intends to extend the suspension of any foster/ youth pending a recommendation for expulsion, the Charter School will invite the student's attorney and an appropriate representative from the relevant county agency to participate in the meeting at which the extension of the suspension will be discussed.

If the Charter School intends to suspend for more than ten (10) consecutive school days or expel a student with a disability who is also a foster youth due to an act for which the recommendation for expulsion is discretionary, the Charter School will invite the student's attorney and an appropriate representative from the relevant county agency to participate in the Manifestation Determination Review meeting.

Complaints of Noncompliance: A complaint of noncompliance with any of the requirements outlined above may be filed through the Charter School's Uniform Complaint Procedures. A copy of the Uniform Complaint Policy and Procedures is available upon request at the main office.

Availability of Complete Policy: For any Foster and Mobile Youth who enrolls at the Charter School, a copy of the Charter School's complete foster youth policy shall be provided at the time of enrollment. A copy of the complete Policy is available upon request at the main office or on the school website.

Involuntary Removal Process

No student shall be involuntarily removed by the Charter School for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the student has been provided written notice of intent to remove the student no less than five (5) schooldays before the effective date of the action ("Involuntary Removal Notice"). The written notice shall be in the native language of the student or the student's parent or guardian or, if the student is a foster child or youth or a homeless child or youth, the student's educational rights holder. The Involuntary Removal Notice shall include the charges against the student and an explanation of the student's basic rights including the right to request a hearing before the effective date of the action. The hearing shall be consistent with the Charter School's expulsion procedures. If the student's parent,

Page 17 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

guardian, or educational rights holder requests a hearing, the student shall remain enrolled and shall not be removed until the Charter School issues a final decision. As used herein, "involuntarily removed" includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated, but does not include suspensions or expulsions pursuant to the Charter School's suspension and expulsion policy.

Upon parent/guardian request for a hearing, the Charter School will provide notice of hearing consistent with its expulsion hearing process, through which the student has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses and confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the student has the right to bring legal counsel or an advocate. The notice of hearing shall be in the native language of the student or the student's parent or guardian or, if the student is a foster child or youth or a homeless child or youth, the student's educational rights holder and shall include a copy of the Charter School's expulsion hearing process.

If the parent/guardian is nonresponsive to the Involuntary Removal Notice, the Student will be disenrolled as of the effective date set forth in the Involuntary Removal Notice. If parent/guardian requests a hearing and does not attend on the date scheduled for the hearing the Student will be disenrolled effective the date of the hearing.

If as a result of the hearing the student is disenrolled, notice will be sent to the student's last known district of residence within thirty (30) days.

A hearing decision not to disenroll the student does not prevent the Charter School from making a similar recommendation in the future should student truancy continue or re-occur.

Lost or Damaged School Property

If a student willfully damages the Charter School's property or the personal property of a Charter School employee, or fails to return a textbook, library book, computer/tablet or other Charter School property that has been loaned to the student, the student's parents/guardians are liable for all damages caused by the student's misconduct not to exceed ten thousand dollars (\$10,000), adjusted annually for inflation. After notifying the student's parent or guardian in writing of the student's alleged misconduct and affording the student due process, Charter School may withhold the student's grades and transcripts until the damages have been paid. If the student and the student's parent/guardian are unable to pay for the damages or to return the property, Charter School will provide a program of voluntary work for the minor in lieu of the payment of monetary damages. Upon completion of the voluntary work, the student's grades will be released.

Nondiscrimination Statement

CSCE does not discriminate against any person on the basis of actual or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, immigration status, religion, religious affiliation, sexual orientation, pregnancy, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes in the California Penal Code.

CSCE adheres to all provisions of federal law related to students with disabilities, including, but not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA"), and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 ("IDEIA").

CSCE does not discourage students from enrolling or seeking to enroll in the Charter School for any reason, including, but not limited to, academic performance, disability, neglect or delinquency, English proficiency, for being homeless or a foster/mobile youth, economic disadvantage, nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation. Charter School shall not encourage a student currently attending Charter School to disenroll or transfer to another school

Page 18 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

based on any of the aforementioned reasons except in cases of expulsion and suspension or involuntary removal in accordance with the Charter School's charter and relevant policies.

The Charter School does not request nor require student records prior to a student's enrollment.

The Charter School shall provide a copy of the California Department of Education Complaint Notice and Form to any parent, guardian, or student over the age of 18 at the following times: (1) when a parent, guardian, or student over of the age of 18 inquires about enrollment; (2) before conducting an enrollment lottery; and (3) before disenrollment of a student.

CSCE is committed to providing an educational atmosphere that is free of unlawful harassment under Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (sex); Titles IV, VI, and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (race, color, or national origin); the IDEIA; and Section 504 and Title II of the ADA (mental or physical disability). CSCE also prohibits sexual harassment, including cyber sexual bullying, and harassment based upon pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions, race, religion, religious affiliation, creed, color, immigration status, gender, gender identity, gender expression, national origin or ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age, sexual orientation, or any other basis protected by federal, state, local law, ordinance or regulation. CSCE does not condone or tolerate harassment of any type, including discrimination, intimidation, or bullying, including cyber sexual bullying, by any employee, independent contractor or other person with which CSCE does business, or any other individual, student, or volunteer. This applies to all employees, students, or volunteers and relationships, regardless of position or gender. CSCE will promptly and thoroughly investigate any complaint of harassment and take appropriate corrective action, if warranted. Inquiries, complaints, or grievances regarding harassment as described in this section, above, should be directed to the CSCE Uniform Complaint Procedures ("UCP") Compliance Officer:

Phillip Gedeon Head of School 2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 510-686-4131

The lack of English language skills will not be a barrier to admission or participation in Charter School's programs or activities. Charter School prohibits retaliation against anyone who files a complaint or who participates or refuses to participate in a complaint investigation.

Student Records, including Records Challenges and Directory Information

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA") affords parents and students who are 18 years of age or older ("eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's education records. These rights are:

- 1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 5 business days after the day the Charter School receives a request for access. Parents or eligible students should submit to the CSCE Head of School or designee a written request that identifies the records they wish to inspect. The Charter School official will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.
- 2. The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent or eligible student believes are inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the student's privacy rights under FERPA.

Parents or eligible students who wish to ask CSCE to amend a record should write to the CSCE school Head of School or designee, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed and specify why it should be changed. If the Charter School decides not to amend the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, Page 19 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

the Charter School will notify the parent or eligible student of the decision and of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing. If the Charter School decides to amend the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the CSCE Head of School must order the correction or the removal and destruction of the information and inform the parent or eligible student of the amendment in writing.

3. The right to provide written consent before CSCE discloses personally identifiable information ("PII") from the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent.

One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to CSCE officials with legitimate educational interests. A CSCE school official is a person employed by CSCE as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel) or a person serving on the CSCE Board of Directors. A CSCE school official also may include a volunteer or contractor outside of CSCE who performs an institutional service or function for which CSCE would otherwise use its own employees and who is under the direct control of the school with respect to the use and maintenance of PII from education records, such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist; a parent or student volunteering to serve on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee; or a parent, student, or other volunteer assisting another CSCE school official in performing their tasks. A CSCE school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill their professional responsibility.

Upon request, CSCE discloses education records without consent to officials of another school district in which a student seeks or intends to enroll, or is already enrolled, if the disclosure is for purposes of the student's enrollment or transfer.

Note that CSCE will not release information to third parties for immigration-enforcement purposes, except as required by law or court order.

4. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by CSCE to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA are:

Student Privacy Policy Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202

5. The right to request that the Charter School not release student names, addresses and telephone listings to military recruiters or institutions of higher education without prior written parental consent.

FERPA permits the disclosure of PII from students' education records, without consent of the parent or eligible student, if the disclosure meets certain conditions found in §99.31 of the FERPA regulations. Except for disclosures to CSCE officials, disclosures related to some judicial orders or lawfully issued subpoenas, disclosures of directory information, and disclosures to the parent or eligible student, §99.32 of the FERPA regulations requires CSCE to record the disclosure. Parents and eligible students have a right to inspect and review the record of disclosures. CSCE may disclose PII from the education records of a student without obtaining prior written consent of the parents or the eligible student to the following parties:

1. Charter School officials who have a legitimate educational interest as defined by 34 C.F.R. Part 99;

Page 20 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- 2. Other schools to which a student seeks or intends to enroll so long as the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer. When a student transfers schools, the Charter School will mail the original or a copy of a student's cumulative file to the receiving district or private school within ten (10) school days following the date the request is received from the public school or private school where the student intends to enroll. Charter School will make a reasonable attempt to notify the parent or eligible student of the request for records at his/her last known address, unless the disclosure is initiated by the parent or eligible student. Additionally, Charter School will give the parent or eligible student, upon request, a copy of the record that was disclosed and give the parent or eligible student, upon request, an opportunity for hearing;
- 3. Certain government officials listed in 20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1) in order to carry out lawful functions;
- 4. Appropriate parties in connection with a student's application for, or receipt of, financial aid if it is necessary to determine eligibility, amount of aid, conditions for aid or enforcing the terms and conditions of the aid;
- 5. Organizations conducting certain studies for the Charter School in accordance with 20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)(F);
- 6. Accrediting organizations in order to carry out their accrediting functions;
- 7. Parents of a dependent student as defined in section 152 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986;
- 8. Individuals or entities, in compliance with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena. Subject to the exceptions found in 34 C.F.R. § 99.31(a)(9)(i), reasonable effort must be made to notify the parent or eligible student of the order or subpoena in advance of compliance, so that the parent or eligible student may seek a protective order;
- 9. Persons who need to know in cases of health and safety emergencies;
- 10. State and local authorities, within a juvenile justice system, pursuant to specific State law;
- 11. A foster family agency with jurisdiction over a currently enrolled or former student, a short-term residential treatment program staff responsible for the education or case management of a student, and a caregiver (regardless of whether the caregiver has been appointed as the student's educational rights holder) who has direct responsibility for the care of the student, including a certified or licensed foster parent, an approved relative or non related extended family member, or a resource family, may access the current or most recent records of grades, transcripts, attendance, discipline, and online communication on platforms established by Charter School for student and parents, and any individualized education program ("IEP") or Section 504 plan that may have been developed or maintained by Charter School; and/or
- 12. A victim of an alleged perpetrator of a crime of violence or a non-forcible sex offense. The disclosure may only include the final results of the disciplinary proceedings conducted by Charter School with respect to that alleged crime or offense. Charter School discloses the final results of the disciplinary proceeding regardless of whether Charter School concluded a violation was committed.

"Directory Information" is information that is generally not considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if released. Charter School may disclose the personally identifiable information that it has designated as directory information without a parent's prior written consent. The CSCE has designated the following information as directory information:

- 1. Student's name
- 2. Student's address

Community School for Creative Education - CSCE Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM



社 羣 創 新 學 校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- 3. Parent's/guardian's address
- 4. Telephone listing
- 5. Student's electronic mail address
- 6. Parent's/guardian's electronic mail address
- 7. Photograph
- 8. Date and place of birth
- 9. Dates of attendance
- 10. Grade level
- 11. Participation in officially recognized activities and sports
- 12. Weight and height of members of athletic teams
- 13. Degrees, honors, and awards received
- 14. The most recent educational agency or institution attended
- 15. Student ID number, user ID, or other unique personal identifier used to communicate in electronic systems that cannot be used to access education records without a PIN, password, etc. (A student's social security number, in whole or in part, cannot be used for this purpose.)

If you do not want the Charter School to disclose directory information from your child's education records without your prior written consent, you must notify the Charter School in writing at the time of enrollment or re-enrollment. Please notify the Head of School at:

Phillip Gedeon Head of School 2111 International Boulevard Oakland, California 94606 (510) 686-4131

A copy of the complete Policy is available upon request at the main office or on the school website.

Uniform Complaint Procedure ("UCP")

Charter School is the local agency primarily responsible for compliance with federal and state laws and regulations governing educational programs. Charter School shall investigate and seek to resolve complaints using policies and procedures known as the Uniform Complaint Procedure ("UCP") adopted by our Governing Board for the following types of complaints:

- 1. Complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying against any protected group on the basis of the actual or perceived characteristics of age, ancestry, color, mental disability, physical disability, ethnic group identification, immigration status, citizenship, gender expression, gender identity, gender, genetic information, nationality, national origin, race or ethnicity, religion, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, or on the basis of a person's association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics in any Charter School program or activity.
- 2. Complaints alleging a violation of state or federal law or regulation governing the following programs:
 - Accommodations for Pregnant, Parenting or Lactating Students;
 - Adult Education;
 - Career Technical and Technical Education;
 - Career Technical and Technical Training;

Page 22 of 119
Community School for Creative Education - CSCE Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM



社 羣 創 新 學 校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- Child Care and Development Programs;
- Consolidated Categorical Aid;
- Education of Students in Foster Care, Students who are Homeless, former Juvenile Court Students now enrolled in a public school, Migratory Children and Children of Military Families;
- Every Student Succeeds Act;
- Migrant Education Programs;
- Regional Occupational Centers and Programs; and/or
- School Safety Plans.
- 3. Complaints alleging noncompliance with laws relating to pupil fees. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a pupil fee for participation in an educational activity. A pupil fee includes, but is not limited to, all of the following:
 - A fee charged to a pupil as a condition for registering for school or classes, or as a condition for participation in a class or an extracurricular activity, regardless of whether the class or activity is elective or compulsory or is for credit.
 - A security deposit, or other payment, that a pupil is required to make to obtain a lock, locker, book, class apparatus, musical instrument, clothes, or other materials or equipment.
 - A purchase that a pupil is required to make to obtain materials, supplies, equipment, or clothes associated with an educational activity.

Complaints of noncompliance with laws relating to pupil fees may be filed with the Head of School of Charter School or the Compliance Officer identified below.

4. Complaints alleging noncompliance with the requirements governing the Local Control Funding Formula ("LCFF") or Local Control and Accountability Plans ("LCAP") under Education Code sections 47606.5 and 47607.3, as applicable. If Charter School adopts a School Plan for Student Achievement ("SPSA") in addition to its LCAP, complaints of noncompliance with the requirements of the SPSA under Education Code sections 64000, 64001, 65000, and 65001 shall also fall under the UCP.

Complaints alleging noncompliance regarding child nutrition programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 49490-49590 are governed by Title 7, Code of Federal Regulations ("C.F.R.") sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d) and Title 5, California Code of Regulations ("C.C.R.") sections 15580 - 15584.

Complaints alleging noncompliance regarding special education programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 56000-56865 and 59000-59300 are governed by the procedures set forth in 5 C.C.R. sections 3200-3205 and 34 C.F.R. sections 300.151-300.153.

Complaints regarding state preschool health and safety issues in local educational agencies exempt from licensing are governed by 5 C.C.R. sections 4690-4694, except as otherwise indicated. Charter School is operating the following preschool programs as exempt from licensing pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 1596.792(o) and corresponding Title 5 health and safety regulations. Charter School is operating the following preschool programs pursuant to Title 22 licensing requirements.

Page 23 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Complaints other than complaints relating to pupil fees must be filed in writing with the following Compliance Officer:

Phillip Gedeon Head of School 2111 International Boulevard Oakland, California 94606 (510) 686-4131

Only complaints regarding pupil fees or LCAP compliance may be filed anonymously and only if the anonymous complainant provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance with laws relating to pupil fees or LCAP.

Complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, must be filed within six (6) months from the date the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, occurred or the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying. All other complaints under the UCP shall be filed not later than one (1) year from the date the alleged violation occurred. For complaints relating to the LCAP, the date of the alleged violation is the date on which Charter School's Board of Directors approved the LCAP or the annual update was adopted by Charter School.

The Compliance Officer responsible for investigating the complaint shall conduct and complete the investigation in accordance with California regulations and in accordance with Charter School's UCP Policy. The Compliance Officer shall provide the complainant with a final written investigation report ("Decision") within sixty (60) calendar days from Charter School's receipt of the complaint. This sixty (60) calendar day time period may be extended by written agreement of the complainant.

The complainant has a right to appeal Charter School's Decision to the California Department of Education ("CDE") by filing a written appeal within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of the Charter School's written Decision, except if Charter School has used its UCP to address a complaint that is not subject to the UCP requirements. The appeal must include a copy of the complaint filed with Charter School, a copy of Charter School's Decision, and the complainant must specify and explain the basis for the appeal of the Decision, including at least one of the following:

- 1. Charter School failed to follow its complaint procedures.
- 2. Relative to the allegations of the complaint, Charter School's Decision lacks material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law.
- 3. The material findings of fact in Charter School's Decision are not supported by substantial evidence.
- 4. The legal conclusion in Charter School's Decision is inconsistent with the law.
- 5. In a case in which Charter School's Decision found noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to provide a proper remedy.

A complainant who appeals Charter School's Decision on a UCP complaint to the CDE shall receive a written appeal decision within sixty (60) calendar days of the CDE's receipt of the appeal, unless extended by written agreement with the complainant or the CDE documents exceptional circumstances and informs the complainant.

Within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of the CDE's appeal Decision pursuant to 5 C.C.R. section 4633(f)(2) or (3), either party may request reconsideration by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("SSPI") or the SSPI's Page 24 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

designee. The request for reconsideration shall specify and explain the reason(s) for contesting the findings of fact, conclusions of law, or corrective actions in the CDE's appeal Decision.

If a UCP complaint is filed directly with the CDE and the CDE determines that it merits direct intervention, the CDE shall complete an investigation and provide a written decision to the complainant within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of the complaint, unless the parties have agreed to extend the timeline or the CDE documents exceptional circumstances and informs the complainant.

If Charter School finds merit in a UCP complaint, or the CDE finds merit in an appeal, Charter School shall take corrective actions consistent with the requirements of existing law that will provide a remedy to the affected student and/or parent/guardian as applicable.

A complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of Charter School's complaint procedures. Complainants may seek assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest attorneys. Civil law remedies that may be imposed by a court include, but are not limited to, injunctions and restraining orders. For unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints arising under state law, however, a complainant must wait until sixty (60) calendar days have elapsed from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil law remedies. The moratorium does not apply to injunctive relief and is applicable only if the Charter School has appropriately, and in a timely manner, apprised the complainant of the complainant's right to file a complaint in accordance with 5 CCR § 4622.

A copy of the UCP shall be available upon request free of charge in the main office. For further information on any part of the complaint procedures, including filing a complaint or requesting a copy of the UCP, please contact the Head of School.

Use of Student Information Learned from Social Media

The Charter School complies with all federal, state, and local guidelines regarding the gathering and/or maintenance of information about any enrolled student obtained from social media in the student's educational record. The Charter School gathers student information from social media. Such information shall be maintained in the Charter School's records with regard to the student and shall be destroyed within one (1) year after a student turns 18 years of age or within one (1) year after the student is no longer enrolled in the Charter School, whichever occurs first. A non-minor student or a student's parent or guardian may access the student's records for examination of the information, request the removal of information or corrections made to information gathered or maintained by the Charter School by contacting the Head of School.

CSCE

Student Internet and Technology Use Policy and Agreement

Students are expected to use technology and the Internet as an educational resource. The following procedures and guidelines are used to help ensure appropriate use of the technology and the Internet at all facilities used for Alameda County Department of Education purposes.

CSCE Policy

- a. CSCE uses technology protection measures that block or filter Internet access to some Internet sites that are not in accordance with the policy of CSCE.
- b. The technology protection measure that blocks or filters Internet access may be modified by a CSCE staff member for bona fide research purposes by an adult.
- c. A CSCE staff member may override the technology protection measure that blocks or filters Internet

Page 25 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

access for a student to access a site with legitimate educational value that is wrongly blocked by the technology protection measure that blocks or filters Internet access.

d. CSCE staff will monitor students' use of the Internet, either through direct supervision or by monitoring Internet use history, to ensure enforcement of the policy.

Students are responsible for appropriate behavior on CSCE's computer network, just as they are in a classroom or on school grounds. Communications on the network/systems are often public in nature. Expectation of confidentiality should not be assumed. General school rules for behavior and communications apply. It is expected that users will comply with district standards and the specific rules set forth below. The use of technology is a privilege, not a right, and may be revoked if abused. The user is personally responsible for his/her actions in accessing and utilizing the school's technology resources. The students are not allowed to access, keep, or send anything that they would not want their parents or teachers to see.

- a. Students shall not access material that is obscene, "harmful to minors", or otherwise inappropriate for educational uses.
- b. Students shall not use school resources to engage in "hacking" or attempts to otherwise compromise system security.
- c. Students shall not engage in any illegal activities on the Internet.
- d. Students shall only use electronic mail, chat rooms, and other forms of direct electronic communications for school-related purposes.
- e. Students shall not download or install any commercial software, shareware, or freeware onto network drives or disks, unless they have permission from the Network Administrator. Neither shall students copy other people's work or intrude into other people's files.
- f. Students shall not disclose personal information, such as name, school, address, and telephone number outside of the school network.
- g. Students shall notify the teacher or a CSCE for Creative Education staff member immediately, if by accident, you encounter materials which violate the boundaries of appropriate use.
- h. The Student shall not use Internet resources for personal gain or political purposes.
- i. Students shall BE PREPARED to be held accountable for their actions and for the loss of privileges if the Rules of Appropriate Use are violated.

Any violation of school policy and rules may result in loss of school-provided access to technology. Additional disciplinary action may be determined in keeping with existing school policies and procedures. When and where applicable, law enforcement agencies may be involved.

A complete copy of this Policy is available for review in the main office or on the school website.

<u>Cell Phone and Electronic Equipment Policy</u>

CSCE recognizes the potential for cell phones, smartphones, pagers, and electronic signaling devices (hereinafter collectively referred to as "private devices") to disrupt the learning environment of the Charter School. Students can possess, but not use private devices while on school grounds, at school-sponsored activities, or under the supervision of Charter School employees, except as otherwise provided in this Policy. Students who possess any private devices must submit them to the office upon entry into the school grounds and can collect them upon leaving campus. Charter School teachers, administrators, and staff will confiscate any private devices used by a student in violation of this Policy.

All students are required to adhere to the following guidelines regarding private devices:

Page 26 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Private devices may be used:

- Off campus before or after school.
- Before or after any Charter School sponsored activity occurring before or after the regular school day.
- In the case of an emergency, or in response to a perceived threat of danger.
- When a teacher or administrator of the Charter School grants permission to a student to possess or use a private device, subject to any reasonable limitation imposed by that teacher or administrator.
- When a licensed physician and surgeon determines that the possession or use of a private device is necessary for the health or well-being of the student.
- When the possession or use of a private device is required in a student's individualized education program ("IEP").

Private devices should be turned in as soon as a student arrives on campus and may pick it up before they leave.

Possession of private devices is a privilege, which may be forfeited by any student who fails to abide by the terms of this Policy. All Charter School employees shall remove any private device from the possession of a student found to be violating this Policy. If a private device is heard ringing, beeping, or buzzing from inside a jacket, purse, backpack, or other similar article, whether within the immediate presence of the student or not, a Charter School employee may remove the private device and confiscate the private device. Parents/guardians will be contacted to pick up any confiscated private devices at the end of the regular school day or at the conclusion of a Charter School sponsored activity.

In addition to this Policy, all other applicable Charter School student discipline policies and rules shall apply to any student who fails to comply with the requirements of this Policy.

Students who possess any private device(s) shall assume sole responsibility for the maintenance and care of any such private device(s) in accordance with this Policy. At no time shall the Charter School be responsible for preventing theft, loss or damage to any private devices brought onto campus or at Charter School sponsored activities.

□ Should the scholar be caught violating the above policy, the following will occur:

<u>1st offense</u>- Teacher/Staff confiscate the device. The scholar may collect his/her device after school. Parents/guardians will be informed as to help remind the scholar of proper technology etiquette.

<u>2nd offense-</u> Teacher/Staff confiscates the device and issues a universal office referral. **Additionally**, parents/guardians will be contacted to pick up the device from the office at the end of the day.

<u>3rd offense and beyond</u>- The student will receive an in-school suspension and the device will be turned in to the Head of School. The parent may collect the device at the end of the school day. Other disciplinary consequences may occur at the discretion of the Head of School.

□ Refusal to give up the device will automatically result in the 3rd offense.

Positive Student Culture

Page 27 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

School-wide Behavior Policy

CSCE is committed to creating a safe and nurturing environment for every child. We are equally committed to helping our children grow into healthy, happy, responsible adults. CSCE is implementing the best research-based approaches to discipline.

Our School-wide approach carefully integrates Waldorf, Positive Behavior, and Restorative Practices to discourage misbehavior and encourage students to learn from mistakes and make appropriate choices in the future. Our **Waldorf** inspiration encourages us to consider the developmental stage of a child, particularly in how we communicate expectations and provide consequences. Using **Positive Behavior Intervention Systems (PBIS)** as our behavior management system, we establish clear expectations and school-wide values so we are proactively developing a positive school culture. Implementation of the **social/emotional curriculum Toolbox** as well as daily **Mindfulness** practices aim to support students' peaceful reflection, full presence, and community membership throughout the day. **Restorative Justice Practices** promote equity, inclusion, and community cohesion which provides a vehicle to collaboratively create solutions to conflict based on the needs of the individual(s) harmed in addition to the community as a whole.

CSCE is committed to creating a safe and nurturing learning environment for every child. CSCE uses Restorative Practices moving toward restoring a sense of harmony and well-being for all those affected by a hurtful act. It addresses incidents of harm or conflict by exploring root cause(s), considering underlying needs of those that caused the harm, as well as identifying needs of those who were harmed so as to collaboratively create solutions that allow everyone to thrive. It provides families, schools, and communities a way to ensure accountability while at the same time breaking the cycle of retribution and violence. It is based on a view of resilience in children and youth and their capability to solve problems, as opposed to the youth themselves being the problems adults must fix. It focuses not on retribution or punishment but on reconnecting severed relationships and re-empowering individuals as they acknowledge the effect of their actions and work collaboratively toward solutions. This approach acknowledges that, when a person does harm, it affects the persons they hurt, the community, and themselves. When using restorative measures, an attempt is made to repair the harm caused by one person to another and to the community so that everyone is moved toward healing.

Restorative practices involve students and the entire school community in a process to repair the harm resulting from conflicts through such means as: community circles that create a respectful group space in which students participate in establishing the values for the class based on human dignity and the democratic principles of rights and responsibilities. All students will be encouraged to participate in restorative practices.

Code of Behavior

In order to provide a school environment that fosters cooperation, responsibility and respect; we offer these guidelines for positive behavior in our School community.

The CSCE Creed

The Student Behavior Guidelines are based on a philosophy of care and are stated in our CSCE Creed: *Take care of self*

- *Head*: Respect for oneself and one's ability to learn
- *Heart*: Do your best
- Hands: Complete class assignments

Take care of others

- Respect for all human beings
- Respect for the guidance provided by teachers, staff and Parents/Guardians

Page 28 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- Respect for our classmates
- Observe class starting and ending times

Take care of this space

- Respect for the earth and all living things
- Respect for all school and personal property
- Complete classroom chore

Page 29 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

	Be Responsible	Be Respectful	Be Safe
Before Arriving to School	 Ensure you have your school uniform handy Homework and Reading Log is complete and in your backpack You have your refillable water bottle 	 Check your backpack and leave any toys, trading cards, sports, equipment, etc at home 	 Do not bring any weapons or unsafe objects from home
During your Arrival to School	 If you have a Technology Agreement Form Agreement completed, you must turn in your device as soon as you arrive Keep your backpack, coat, and water bottle close to you If you are hungry stop by the Cafeteria for Breakfast (8:00-8:30 AM) 	 If you have a Technology Agreement Form Agreement completed, you must turn in your device as soon as you arrive Greet staff and other students Listen to all CSCE adults and follow their instructions Use Rock, Paper, Scissors when you are trying to figure out who is going first 	 If you have a Technology Agreement Form Agreement completed, you must turn in your device as soon as you arrive Follow all rules Do not participate in any games involving tag, rough play, or violence
Water Fountain	 Fill water bottle during breaks Walk to and from the fountain, no lingering 	 Wait turn safely and patiently behind line Form a line along the wall so there is space for others to pass in the hall Respect personal space Give someone else a turn after 10 seconds 	 Use water responsibly Report clogs or spills to teacher

Page 30 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Bath- room	 Wash hands with soap Ask for permission and take a pass only when you really need to use it the bathroom Throw away trash inside the bin and do not splash water on the floor Inform teacher if supplies are needed 	 Respect our rule of "Only 4 students in the Restroom at a time" Use a quiet voice Respect your learning time by going directly back to class 	 Respect others' privacy and space Only use the right amount of paper towels and throw them inside the trash bin NOT in the toilet
Hallway/ Stairwell	 Get permission and use hall pass Stay on the right side of the hallway Pick up/hold all trash until you reach a Trash/Recycling bin 	 Respect others' learning time by walking and using an inside voice Respect artisti work on display by keeping your hands to yourself 	 Shoelaces should alway be tied Pick up your feet walking up or down the stairway and hallways Keep my hands, feet, and body to yourself Notify teacher of any spills
Large Yard/ Blacktop/ Small Yard/ Play Struc- ture	 Do not bring any toys, trading cards, or sports equipment from home Stay in your designated area where adults can see you This is the time to get water and go to the bathroom Line up with all of your belonging when asked Help keep the yard clean & garbage free 	 Play safely and fairly Include others in games and activities Respect the equipment and play structure and use it as it is intended Respect all living things, do not harm or pull the plants/flowers Line up when asked 	 Remain with your group at all times Stay in approved play area where an adult can see you Use equipment appropriately and fairly No sports equipment allowed in the Small Yard Do not talk or engage with anyone outside of school campus
Library	 Must be accompanied by an adult at all times No food/drinks allowed Borrow 1 book at a time and bring your book back to the library 	 Be considerate of others who are focused and reading Treat all items in library with care 	 Must be accompanied by an adult at all times No running or hiding in the library

Page 31 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

	• Put books back in their correct place		
Office/ Lobby	 Ask permission or go only when sent by staff member Communicate purpose or what you need through the Office window Walk into the Office only when given permission Walk to and from the Office with a pass using a quiet voice Retrieve your belongings from the Lost & Found 	 Respect your and other's learning time by getting back to class as soon as possible Respect privacy of others Be polite, courteous, and use your manners Wait your turn 	• You must have permission from an adult to leave your class or group, and must have a pass
Cafeteria	 Grab a complete meal If you bring a Home Lunch make sure you bring it down with you Eat healthy meals Sort your trash correctly 	 Raise hand if you need something Stay in your seat Respect others' cultural dishes Sit in your assigned table/zone 	 We are a nut-free school Shoe laces are always tied Stay in your seat until dismissed Enter in a line with a calm body and indoor voice
End of Day/ Going Home	 Grab all of your belongings Report to where you are suppose to be: After-school, Walk home, or get picked up by car 	 Keep your hands, feet, and body to yourself 	 Walk to your designated pick up location Listen to all adults and follow instructions

Scholar Behavior Expectations

*In addition, individual classroom teachers will have guidelines for positive behavior for their own classroom and will communicate it to their classes. Teachers will develop a class management system, approved by the administrator, and appropriate to the age level of their individual class. Parent/Guardian concerns about the implementation of this policy shall be shared directly with their child's teacher.



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Response to Student Choices

The School has implemented a school-wide positive behavior system that encourages equity and inclusion while also considering a child's developmental stage. This approach aims to create a strong and caring school culture where all members of the community are valued and supported to grow and learn together. In the event that a school-wide positive behavior system and/or the individual class management systems are not sufficient to correct disruptive or disrespectful behavior, we will implement our **referral procedures** based on the severity of the infraction and the teacher and/or the dean/administrator's evaluation of the circumstances.

Inappropriate behaviors include (but are not limited to):

Minor – Teacher Managed	Major – Dean of Students Managed
Disrespect	Abusive Language
rathered Talking back	← Taunting
🕾 Chewing gum	
$rac{}{\simeq}$ Food in Class	📾 Racism, Homophobia, Transphobia,
🕾 Mocking	Classism, Ableism, Ageism, Body Types
$rac{}{\simeq}$ Note passing	Threats/Intimidation/Bullying
Defiance	Leaving school grounds without permission
Noncompliance with classroom instructions	Vandalism of personal/school property
🖙 Incomplete work or not working	Truancy
🕾 Dishonesty	Fighting/Physical Aggression (intent)
Inappropriate Language	← Hitting, pushing, shoving, kicking, grabbing,
$rac{}{\simeq}$ Cursing	tripping, slapping, punching, spitting, hair
🕾 Name Calling	pulling, throwing objects with intent to do
Observable Behavior	harm
🕾 Running in class/hall	Theft
🕾 Poor line behavior	Weapons/Dangerous Items
	rightarrow possession of knives, lighters, matches, etc.
Physical Contact (reaction)	Inappropriate behavior involving bodily
Wrestling or horseplay with another student	fluids (blood, urine, spit)
🕾 Pushing, shoving, kicking	
$rac{}{\Rightarrow}$ Biting (with no mark)	
Property Misuse	-OR-
📾 Inappropriate use of materials	
🖴 Misuse of technology	Three (3) documented minor behaviors with
	teacher intervention
Causing minor repairable damage to school property	
Disruptive	
$rac{}{}$ Out of seat	
🖴 Calling out	
Talking or non verbally communicating with classmate	
at inappropriate time	
🖴 Noisemaking	
Page 22 of 110	

Page 33 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Dress Code Violation	

Prohibited Items

In support of creating an ideal learning environment and in order to reduce distraction and/or potential for conflict, the School asks that certain personal items are not brought to school. Prohibited items include, but are not limited to the following:

- Chewing gum
- Unhealthy foods containing high concentration of sugar and/or fat (e.g. candy, soda, chips, fast food)
- Electronic devices (e.g. cell phones, Apple Watch, pagers, tablets, games/toys, laptops, handheld devices)
- Vehicles (e.g. scooters, skateboards, rollerblades, shoes with wheels)
- Permanent markers/pens/paint
- Aerosol cans, spray bottles, water shooters
- Hairspray, perfume/cologne, cosmetics
- Playing cards or trading cards
- Toys, stickers, or games of any kind
- Toy, fake weapons

The school is not responsible for the loss or theft of items brought from home. Administration will not disrupt students' learning time to investigate the loss of an item that is on the forbidden items list.

Universal Referral Form and Family Communication

Minor/Teacher Managed Behaviors: If a child fails to follow the school or classroom behavior guidelines or in any way undermines a healthy learning environment, others or property, a notice will be sent home through Parent Square. will be stored in the student's file describing this behavior. This Universal Referral Form is to be completed by the classroom teacher or staff member who directly responded to the behavior. Teacher will follow this up with a phone call or email to the Parents/Guardians. A copy of the Universal Referral Form can be made available for Parent/Guardian/guardian and will also be maintained by the Dean of Student Culture.

Major/Office Managed Behaviors: If a student's behavior is categorized as Major (or reoccurring Minor), the Referral process is warranted. These behaviors can lead to suspension. (See referral/suspension process below). The Universal Referral Form is completed by the staff member directly aware of behavior and submitted to the Head of School and Dean of Student Culture. The Head of School or Dean will further investigate behavior and will contact the guardian by phone. The Referral will state the behavior concern and restorative practice used. The Universal Referral Form is for internal documentation purposes only. Parent/Guardian will be provided written documentation of behavior using the Parent/Guardian Acknowledgement form and will be asked to sign stating they have reviewed this form. The signed form is to be returned to the teacher/office the following day. Either the Parent/Guardian or the class teacher may request a telephone or personal conference.

Family/Parent/Guardian-Teacher Conference

When a student receives two referrals, a family/Parent/Guardian-teacher conference will be scheduled by the class teacher. If both family and class teacher agree, the child may be included in the meeting. A behavior plan may be

Page 34 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

developed at this time. The class teacher or Parents/Guardians may request that an administrator be present. Parents/Guardians may invite other individuals to the conference.

Expectations of Class Teachers:

- Help the children tend to injury, mediate conflict (after child has time to cool off)
- Find out what happened/ talk to other children or witnesses
- Call Parent/Guardian/guardian when appropriate
- Complete behavior form and submit to Dean of Student Culture
- Follow-up with children and Parents/Guardians (set up meeting if needed)/ check back

CSCE CSCE CSCE Student Success Team (SST)

Class teachers and/or a Parent/Guardian/guardian can request an SST meeting in order to develop a plan to support student behavior and academics on campus. An SST meeting, consisting of the student's Parent/Guardian(s)/guardian, classroom teacher, administrator, as well as other specialists or support staff, if needed, will be convened to review the child and his/her needs. The team will work to cultivate healthy classroom and playground behavior. During this meeting a behavior plan may be developed. Below is a summary of the steps that may be taken prior to a recommendation for suspension or expulsion:

Referral process initiated

- 1. First referral: Phone call to Parent/Guardian
- 2. Second referral: Phone call and Parent/Guardian-teacher conference
- 3. Third referral: Phone call home and SST meeting is scheduled

Student Success Team (SST) Meeting Initiated

Continuation of Referral process

- 4. Fourth referral: Phone call home
- 5. <u>Fifth referral</u>: Phone call and Parent/Guardian-teacher conference
- 6. Sixth referral and suspension: Phone call home. SST follow-up meeting is scheduled

Student Success Team (SST) Meeting

Continuation of Referral process

- 7. Seventh referral: Phone call home.
- 8. <u>Eighth referral</u>: Phone call home and Parent/Guardian-teacher conference
- 9. Ninth referral and/or 3rd suspension: Phone call home. SST follow-up meeting is scheduled

Clearing Referrals

Referrals and suspensions are cumulative from year to year. In order for a student's referral record to be cleared, he/she must be referral free for two consecutive school years.

Page 35 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Health & Safety

Meal Program

Breakfast and lunch will be available to all students. The Charter School also participates in the National School Lunch Program. Through this program, all students may receive a free breakfast and lunch. Students in the Extended Day program may receive a free snack and supper. The Charter School will provide each student who meets federal eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals with at least one free or reduced-price, nutritionally adequate meal per school day.

CSCE has applied to the Community Eligible Provision (CEP), and is providing all school meals free of cost to any student, regardless of family income.

A child may bring lunch from home. If bringing food from home we encourage low sugar, low sodium options. Candy and soda are not permitted. Please avoid sugary drinks and artificial food coloring when possible. This will better equip our scholars for a successful day of learning. We are also striving for a waste-free campus.

Nut Free School

As part of our ongoing effort to *Take Care of Others*, we are a **Nut Free Campus**. This includes peanuts and tree nuts. There are several students with severe nut allergies. To ensure good health for all please **avoid sending food items containing tree nuts, peanut butter, peanuts or nuts of any kind**.

Health, Safety & Emergency

For complete information on health and safety at CSCE, please reference the Health and Safety Handbook, available in the office. Students will be asked to bring a small comfort kit/emergency kit in the event of an emergency. In addition, teachers may request that students bring spare clothing to be left at school in the event of an emergency.

<u>Lice</u>

Head lice are common and are easily spread. The Administration will send home information about the treatment and control of head lice to Parent/Guardian/guardians as needed to prevent the spread of infestations. Staff will report all suspected cases of head lice to the Administration as soon as possible. CSCE recognizes that responsibility for the treatment of head lice rests with the home. When lice are found, the student shall be sent home as soon as possible with proper Parent/Guardian/guardian notification. Staff shall make every effort to maintain the privacy of students identified as having head lice and excluded from classes for treatment.

If a child is affected in any one classroom, information about head lice shall be sent home to all Parent/Guardian/guardians/ in the class. Excluded students may return to school when they bring a note from the Parent/Guardian/guardian indicating the treatment applied and date administered. Students will be rechecked before readmission.

Page 36 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Oral Health Assessment

Students enrolled in kindergarten in a public school or while enrolled in first grade if the pupil was not previously enrolled in kindergarten in a public school are required to have an oral health assessment completed by a dental professional. Please contact the office if you have questions about this requirement.

Immunizations

Pursuant to the California Health and Safety Code and the California Code of Regulations, children must provide proof of having received required immunizations (shots) before they can attend school unless they meet the requirements for an exemption. Immunization records are required for all incoming students. Verification of immunizations will be completed with written medical records from the child's doctor or immunization clinic. To ensure a safe learning environment for all students, the Charter School follows and abides by the health standards set forth by the state of California. The immunization status of all students will be reviewed periodically. Those students who are not in compliance with the State requirements must be excluded from attendance until the requirements are met. Students who have been exposed to a communicable disease for which they have not been immunized may be excluded from school at the discretion of the Charter School.

These required immunizations include:

Child's Grade	List of shots required to attend school
TK/K-12 Admission	Diphtheria, Tetanus and Pertussis (DTaP) - Five (5) doses Polio - Four (4) doses Measles, Mumps, and Rubella (MMR) - Two (2) doses Hepatitis B (Hep B) - Three (3) doses Varicella (chickenpox) – Two (2) doses
	NOTE: Four doses of DTaP are allowed if one was given on or after the fourth birthday. Three doses of DTaP meet the requirement if at least one dose of Tdap, DTaP, or DTP vaccine was given on or after the seventh birthday (also meets the 7th-12th grade Tdap requirement.) One or two doses of Td vaccine given on or after the seventh birthday count towards the requirement for DTaP. Three doses of Polio are allowed if one was given on or after first birthday. MMR doses must be given on or after first birthday. Two doses of measles, two doses of mumps, and one dose of rubella vaccine meet the requirement, separately or combined. Combination vaccines (e.g., MMRV) meet the requirements for individual component vaccines.



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Entering 7 th Grade	Tetanus, reduced Diphtheria, and acellular Pertussis (Tdap) - One (1) dose Varicella (chickenpox) - Two (2) doses
	NOTE: In order to begin 7th grade, students who had a valid personal belief exemption on file with a public or private elementary or secondary school in California before January 1, 2016 must meet the requirements listed for grades K-12 as well as requirements for 7 th grade advancement (i.e., polio, MMR, varicella and primary series for diphtheria, tetanus, and pertussis). At least one dose of pertussis-containing vaccine is required on or after the 7th birthday.

Physical Examinations and Right to Refuse

All students must complete a health screening examination on or before the 90th day after the student's entrance into first grade or such students must have obtained a waiver pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 124040 and 124085. This examination can be obtained from your family physician or possibly through the services provided by your County Health Department. Information and forms are distributed to students enrolled in kindergarten. If your child's medical status changes, please provide the teacher with a physician's written verification of the medical issue, especially if it impacts in any way your child's ability to perform schoolwork.

A parent/guardian having control or charge of any child enrolled in the Charter School may file annually with the Head of School a written and signed statement stating that the parent/guardian will not consent to a physical examination of the child. Thereupon the child shall be exempt from any physical examination, but whenever there is a good reason to believe that the child is suffering from a recognized contagious or infectious disease, the child shall be sent home and shall not be permitted to return until the school authorities are satisfied that any contagious or infectious disease does not exist.

Diabetes

The CSCE will provide an information sheet regarding type 2 diabetes to the Parent/Guardian or guardian of incoming 7th grade students, pursuant to Education Code Section 49452.7. The information sheet shall include, but shall not be limited to, all of the following:

- 1. A description of type 2 diabetes.
- 2. A description of the risk factors and warning signs associated with type 2 diabetes.
- 3. A recommendation that students displaying or possibly suffering from risk factors or warning signs associated with type 2 diabetes should be screened for type 2 diabetes.
- 4. A description of treatments and prevention of methods of type 2 diabetes.
- 5. A description of the different types of diabetes screening tests available.

A copy of the information sheet regarding type 2 diabetes is available at:

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hn/type2diabetes.asp.

Please contact the office if you need a copy of this information sheet or if you have any questions about this information sheet.

Page 38 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Concussion/Head Injuries

A concussion is a brain injury that can be caused by a bump, blow, or jolt to the head, or by a blow to another part of the body with the force transmitted to the head. Even though most concussions are mild, all concussions are potentially serious and may result in complications including prolonged brain damage and death if not recognized and managed properly. Because the CSCE has elected to offer an athletic program, we must immediately remove from a school-sponsored athletic activity for the remainder of the day an athlete who is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury during that activity. The athlete may not return to that activity until he or she is evaluated by, and receives written clearance from, a licensed healthcare provider. If the licensed health care provider determines the athlete has a concussion or head injury, the athlete shall also complete a graduated return-to-play protocol of no less than 7 days in duration under the supervision of a licensed health care provider. On a yearly basis, a concussion and head injury information sheet must be signed and returned by the athlete and the athlete's Parent/Guardian or guardian before the athlete initiates practice or competition. This requirement does not apply to an athlete engaging in an athletic activity during the regular school day or as part of a physical education course.

Sudden Cardiac Arrest

Charter School is invested in the health of its athletes, especially their heart health. Sudden cardiac arrest ("SCA") is when the heart stops beating, suddenly and unexpectedly. Those wishing to participate in athletics at Charter School, must review the information sheet on sudden cardiac arrest via the link below and attached to this handbook: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/dhdsp/docs/cardiac-arrest-infographic.pdf</u>

Opioid Information Sheet

The Charter School annually provides each athlete with an Opioid Factsheet for Patients published by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. The athlete and, if the athlete is 17 years of age or younger, the athlete's parent or guardian shall sign a document acknowledging receipt of the Opioid Factsheet for Patients and return that document to the Charter School before the athlete initiates practice or competition. The fact sheet is available at:

https://www.cdc.gov/drugoverdose/pdf/AHA-Patient-Opioid-Factsheet-a.pdf

Human Trafficking Prevention

California has the highest number of incidents of human trafficking in the U.S., and all students may be vulnerable. Charter School believes it is a priority to inform our students about (1) prevalence, nature of and strategies to reduce the risk of human trafficking, techniques to set healthy boundaries, and how to safely seek assistance, and (2) how social medial and mobile device applications are used for human trafficking.

In accordance with the California Healthy Youth Act, Charter School will provide age-appropriate instruction on the prevention of human trafficking, including sexual abuse, assault, and harassment. You have the right to excuse your child from all or part of the instruction on the prevention of human trafficking. An opt-out form is available in the main office for your convenience. Your consent for this instruction is NOT required. If we do not receive a written request to excuse your child, your child will be included in the instruction.

Page 39 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Information and materials for parents/guardians about the curriculum and resources on prevention of human trafficking and abuse, including sexual abuse, assault, and harassment are available on Charter School's website for your review.

Mental Health Services

The Charter School recognizes that when unidentified and unaddressed, mental health challenges can lead to poor academic performance, increased likelihood of suspension and expulsion, chronic absenteeism, student attrition, homelessness, incarceration, and/or violence. Access to mental health services at the Charter School and in our community is not only critical to improving the physical and emotional safety of students, but it also helps address barriers to learning and provides support so that all students can learn problem-solving skills and achieve in school and, ultimately, in life. The following resources are available to your child:

Available on Campus:

- <u>School-based counseling services</u> your child is encouraged to directly contact a Charter School counselor by coming into the counseling office during school hours and making an appointment to speak with a counselor. The counseling office can also be reached at Mrs. Esther Pyon. Our Charter School counselors support students by providing individual sessions, group or parent consultations whenever a student is having a difficult time due to academic stress, transition to changes in their environment, or social concerns, including isolation. Counseling services, whether provided by our Charter School or by an outside provider listed in this letter, are voluntary.
- <u>Special education services</u> if you believe your child may have a disability, you are encouraged to directly contact Ms. Alina Kagan at 510-686-4131 to request an evaluation.
- <u>Prescription medication while on campus</u> if your child requires prescription medication during school hours and you would like assistance from School staff in providing this medication to your child, please contact Mrs. Yolanda Cordovia at 510-686-4131.

Available Nationally:

- National Suicide Prevention Hotline This organization provides confidential support for adults and youth in distress, including prevention and crisis resources. Available 24 hours at 1-800-273-8255.
- The Trevor Project This organization provides suicide prevention and crisis intervention for LGBTQ youth between the ages of 13 and 24. Available at 1-866-488-7386 or visit https://www.thetrevorproject.org/.
- Big Brothers/Big Sisters of America This organization is a community- based mentorship program. Community-specific program information can be found online at https://www.bbbs.org or by calling (813) 720-8778.

Pregnant and Parenting Students

The Charter School recognizes that pregnant and parenting students are entitled to accommodations that provide them with the opportunity to succeed academically while protecting their health and the health of their children. A pregnant or parenting student is entitled to eight (8) weeks of parental leave, or more if deemed medically necessary by the student's physician, which the student may take before the birth of the student's infant if there is a medical necessity and after childbirth during the school year in which the birth takes place, inclusive of any mandatory summer instruction, in order to protect the health of the student who gives or expects to give birth and

Page 40 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

the infant, and to allow the pregnant or parenting student to care for and bond with the infant. The Charter School will ensure that absences from the student's regular school program are excused until the student is able to return to the regular school program.

Upon return to school after taking parental leave, a pregnant or parenting student will be able to make up work missed during the pregnant or parenting student's leave, including, but not limited to, makeup work plans and reenrollment in courses. Notwithstanding any other law, a pregnant or parenting student may remain enrolled for a fifth year of instruction in the Charter School if it is necessary in order for the student to be able to complete any graduation requirements, unless the Charter School determines that the student is reasonably able to complete the graduation requirements in time to graduate from high school by the end of the student's fourth year of high school.

Complaints of noncompliance with laws relating to pregnant or parenting students may be filed under the Uniform Complaint Procedures ("UCP") of the Charter School. The complaint may be filed in writing with the compliance officer:

Phillip Gedeon Head of School 2111 International Boulevard Oakland, California 94606 (510) 686-4131

A copy of the UCP is available upon request at the main office or on the school website. For further information on any part of the complaint procedures, including filing a complaint or requesting a copy of the complaint procedures, please contact the Head of School.

Home-School Communication

The Weekly Folder

Every week your child's classroom teacher will send home a folder of weekly information, in hardcopy, with the student. Weekly Folders will include your child's homework, notes from your child's teacher, and any notes that go out school wide. The Weekly Folder will serve as the primary communication between school and home. Teachers will also review the Weekly Folder with their students each week. If your child is missing the Weekly Folder, it is your responsibility to contact your child's teacher to obtain a copy.

Monthly Newsletter

Once per month the School will send a school-wide newsletter via email and hard copy with your child. This newsletter will include a message from the Administration with highlights for the month, a calendar with upcoming events, and flyers announcing special activities or invitations.

Robo Call

The CSCE will utilize an automated phone service (in addition to other methods) to remind you of important events or to communicate other time-sensitive information.

Page 41 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Conferences

Parent/Guardian/guardian-teacher conferences will happen twice per year and as requested by the teacher or family. In addition, there will be 6 meetings per year when families are invited into the classrooms for student exhibitions and collaborative planning.

Publications and Websites

The CSCE website URL is: http://www.communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org/ The CSCE also has a Facebook group that we invite you to join. This is a great way to connect with other Parents/Guardians and to find out about playdates and other Parent/Guardian gatherings.

Family/Parent/Guardian-as-Partner Policy

The CSCE for Creative Education believes that the creation of a welcoming, responsive, and creative learning environment that places students at the center of transformative learning, is only possible with the inclusion of families and community. We advocate strong connections between the home, school, and the community, as one means of supporting the creativity of young people. Studies demonstrate that when Parents/Guardians are involved in their children's education, the attitudes, behaviors, and achievement of students are positively enhanced.

We value all members of our learning community providing input and resources to better the learning outcomes for our students. Working in genuine partnerships is mutually beneficial. Developing cooperative efforts and meaningful involvement contributes to improved schools and successful students. CSCE strongly encourages Parents/Guardians/guardians to be active partners in developing school policies and leading efforts to engage the support of the community, making recommendations about issues related to the school, and reviewing family and community concerns. Please join us each month for our Parent/Guardian work groups and focus groups. See website calendar and Monthly Newsletter for regular scheduled meetings.

As a community, we will include outreach strategies, related home-learning activities, community resources, as well as supportive school and district policies and actions.

Our Parent/Guardian/family drop-in policy is: (suspended due to COVID-19)
 Parents/Guardians/visitors are welcome to participate in the work of classroom and out of classroom school activities, as arranged prior to the lesson with the class teacher. Notes on where Parents/Guardians can

activities, as arranged prior to the lesson with the class teacher. Notes on where Parents/Guardians can volunteer in class are included in each teacher's weekly class newsletter. If you are visiting, first check-in with the main office and receive a visitor's pass. If you are OBSERVING rather than volunteering, we ask that you observe silently unless otherwise agreed with the teacher, whose attention must be 100 % on the children. If you want to speak to the teacher, please make those arrangements after class so the children's instructional time is preserved. According to State law, Parents/Guardians that will be **alone** with children must be fingerprinted.

- **Our goal for Parent/Guardian/family engagement**: All Parents/Guardians and community are welcome as partners in building a strong supportive learning environment for all children. We seek to build a model of Parent/Guardian engagement that is consistent across classrooms, is supportive of the skills and assets that our community possesses, and that is pushing our school towards greatness. A copy of CSCE's Parent/Guardian and Family Engagement Policy is available in the main office.
- Our systems that make this happen: From the Head of School to instructional assistants, Parents/Guardians will feel welcomed as valued stake-holders integral to the future of this school. Parents/Guardians and the community can expect to experience welcoming classrooms with open door

Page 42 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

policies, volunteer roles that utilize the strengths that families bring, opportunities to provide feedback and reflections on how we are doing at meeting our goals. We seek to enrich our school family by being intentional in offering meaningful ways for our community to work together towards doing better.

- **Supporting teachers means**: Being respectful of the classroom dynamics, treating all children as valued members of our school community, providing appropriate constructive feedback outside of class time, and working with the school to push our practices and policies towards the best possible models for our students.
- **Supporting young people means**: Treating all children as valued members of our school community. As a community we must encourage one another to be equitable and just in the treatment that all children receive. As a community, we celebrate all the differences and diversity that is present among us. To support our children we must actively model working in collaborative, respectful, uplifting partnership that actively challenges gender, race, class, and ability based oppression that is active in our society.
- Supporting Parents/Guardians means: all members of the school community see Parents/Guardians as partners and equals.
- **Our "Open Door" policy means**: that parents/Guardians are welcome to support, observe, or engage in the classroom at any time pending prior arrangement and consent.

As we actively work towards meeting the needs of our children, we look to our community to hold us accountable. We expect critical feedback, input and, where appropriate, affirmations to let us know how we are doing in all areas of honoring our Parent/Guardian engagement and leadership policy.

Classroom Representative/Community Keepers: Each teacher will request two Parent/Guardian/family volunteers to represent each class. These Parents/Guardians/family members will meet with the classroom teacher on a regular basis and will communicate with other classroom Parents/Guardians/family members. They will also communicate about their classroom activities to the wider school community during School Site Council meetings.

Parent/Guardian and Family Engagement

CSCE aims to provide all students in our schools significant opportunities to receive a fair, equitable, and high-quality education, and to close educational achievement gaps while abiding by guidelines within the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA).

CSCE staff recognizes a partnership with families is essential to meet this goal. Our family engagement policy promotes active involvement of all families as partners with schools to ensure student success.

Providing Information

A. A Parent/Guardian Family Action Committee (PFA) shall be established, consisting of Parent/Guardian/guardian representatives from each grade and overall. Representatives shall meet at least five times per year and report back to school. The PFA will work together with the staff to:

1. Involve Parents/Guardians in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of various components funded by the Title I grant and other grant sources.

Page 43 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

2. Provide input on educational opportunities for children, and make recommendations for strengthening the partnerships between home and school in order to improve student achievement.

3. Develop, annually review, and revise at least annually the CSCE family engagement policy and the school level LCAP.

4. Give input to the design of annual surveys of CSCE to determine the range and effectiveness of the family engagement practices and to capture schools' efforts to overcome barriers to family engagement.

5. Prepare an annual report to the CSCE Board with recommendations for enhancing services and enhancing Parent/Guardian engagement.

B. CSCE Administration will support the school to:

1. Work jointly with Parents/Guardians to develop a school-level Family Engagement Policy and School-Home Compact and to ensure these meet the requirements of the ESEA. These documents will be reviewed and distributed to Parents/Guardians annually, revised, at least, every two years, and translated for accessibility for all Parents/Guardians.

2. Collect and share family engagement strategies taking place in schools

Coordination and Assistance

A. CSCE will actively involve Parents/Guardians in their school improvement planning process and in the review and revision of the school-level Family Engagement Policy and School-Home Compact.

B. CSCE Administration will:

1. Support the staff collaboration with Parents/Guardians through meetings, surveys, and

informal discussions that can help Parents/Guardians understand the curriculum, instructional practices, academic assessments, expected proficiency levels and strategies to support their children at home to improve student achievement.

2. Collaborate with schools to ensure availability of Parent/Guardian and family programs such as: Faith in Action East Bay and California Charter Schools Association Parent/Guardian leadership and advocacy training; CSCE Parent/Guardian Family University; CSCE Parents/Guardians Family Action Committee; Sweet Pea Nursery Planning Committee; Head of School's coffees and other Parent/Guardian workshops; Family field trips

3. Collaborate with CSCE Administration to inform Parents/Guardians of available Adult ESOL

classes, Parent/Guardian workshops, and family literacy programs.

4. Collaborate with CSCE Administration to guide the school in developing partnerships with local community organizations in support of student achievement and improved Parent/Guardian involvement.

Building Capacity

Page 44 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

A. In order to support implementation and further development of family engagement strategies and actions related to the CSCE Board's Student Achievement Goals and focus on closing achievement gaps, CSCE will identify a class Parent/Guardian. The class Parent/Guardian together with the Parent/Guardian Family Action Committee Chairs and members will:

1. Gain access to additional family engagement professional learning opportunities.

2. Serve as point of contact for the school's PFA chairs and representative and instructional staff.

3. Share family engagement resources, updates, and Parent/Guardian involvement and volunteer opportunities with the school community.

4. Participate in reflective conversations about the school's family engagement practices to support school improvement planning and closing achievement gaps.

B. To build schools' capacity for strong family engagement, home office staff will:

1. Facilitate opportunities for school staff to share successful programs and strategies,

2. Promote reflective processes for schools to assess current practices and identify potential opportunities for strengthening family engagement.

3. Provide informational resources to schools to explain Title I federal regulations to Parents/Guardians

4. Collaborate with other CSCE staff to provide professional learning opportunities and resources to assist schools in strengthening family engagement and overcoming barriers to family engagement.

5. Consult with school staff to support the development of school-level Family Engagement Policies and School-Home Compacts.

6. Support schools in Site Budget planning for effective family engagement programming.

7. Offer logistical support for schools to develop or maintain Parent/Guardian centers to provide Parents/Guardians with resources, information, and opportunities for partnership.

8. Produce and distribute a Parent/Guardian newsletter to inform Parents/Guardians about opportunities and resources for involvement and to highlight effective family engagement practices.

9. Recommend materials for family engagement programs

Accessibility

A. CSCE will:

1. Engage in practices to ensure a welcoming atmosphere for families of all cultures and backgrounds.

Page 45 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

2. Offer family engagement events at times convenient to Parents/Guardians, ensuring childcare, refreshments, and transportation are available, as needed, to facilitate full participation.

3. Whenever possible, enlist interpreters and translators to communicate with Parents/Guardians who have requested correspondence in another language.

4. Apply principles of nondiscrimination, as embodied within Board policy.

- B. CSCE Administration staff will:
- 1. Ensure translations are available in all correspondence languages identified

within CSCE for all federally required Title I communications to Parents/Guardians within

ESEA, such as A Parent/Guardian's Right to Know.

2. Ensure translated materials and language interpreters are available for all events sponsored by Title I funds

Organizational Structures & Governance

In-school Structures

Alameda County Office of Education: CSCE for Creative Education is authorized by Alameda County Board of Education (ACOE). ACOE oversees the school and its board.

CSCE for Creative Education Board of Trustees: The school is overseen by the CSCE for Creative Education Board of Trustees. Trustees meet monthly at CSCE (see website and monthly calendar for schedule). Meetings are public and Parents/Guardians/family members and community are encouraged to join. Agendas are posted 72 hours in advance on the school website and at the School Office.

Head of School: Our Head of School, Phillip Gedeon, is the Head of School. He ensures the school follows the mission and vision of the school. Further, he focuses on the external relations of the school and works to make CSCE a hub of non-profit organizing in Lower San Antonio and the model for scaleup of Intercultural Public Waldorf education; and he works to secure funding with foundations and organizations.

Dean of Student Culture: Our Dean of Student Culture, Mr. Malcolm Defils, models how to build strong, mutually respectful relationships with students and families in our multicultural, multilingual setting through the oversight of our Waldorf-inspired school-wide positive behavior system.

Office Manager & Family Liaison: The office is supported by the Office Manager, Mrs. Yolanda Cordova. This person provides front office assistance to the students, families, Head of School and school staff by answering/screening phone calls, preparing correspondence and other written communication, receiving and responding to inquiries and requests, leading rainy-day schedule adjustments, coordinating meetings and events, managing crisis situations, handling confidential information and other related duties.

Page 46 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Class Teachers and Instructional Assistants: Each class is led by a class teacher. In addition, each kindergarten is supported by one instructional assistant. Other classes may have an instructional assistant based on specific student needs.

Staff Meetings: All teachers and staff members meet once a week Wednesday 1:30 - 4:15 pm for staff meeting, collaboration around student work and professional development.

CSCE Partners

As a full-service CSCE, CSCE maintains an abundance and growing number of deep partnerships to best serve its students and families. Below are the school's key partners.

Attitudinal Healing Connection (AHC): AHC is the lead agency providing our arts enriched extended day program. AHC strives to provide 'seamless' continuous learning to empower students to be self-aware and inspired through art, creativity, and education, by leading students in making positive choices to become cultural change makers.

Faith in Action East Bay (FIAEB) [formerly Oakland Community Organizations (OCO): FIAEB is CSCE's founding and key partner. FIAEB trained all CSCE Design Team Members during its planning years 2008-2011 and remains a critical training partner and ally to ensure CSCE identifies as full service CSCE.

Alameda County Office of Education (ACOE): ACOE oversees elementary and secondary education as well as community colleges serving over 280,000 students across Alameda County.

The Alliance for Public Waldorf Education: The Alliance for Public Waldorf Education was established to represent and connect public schools inspired by Waldorf Education. They promote and support high quality public schools inspired by Waldorf education.

Friends of Waldorf Education World Wide/Waldorf Emergency Pedagogy: CSCE is a founding member of Friends of Waldorf Education's Waldorf *Emergency Pedagogy Without Borders*, and CA/USA Waldorf Emergency Pedagogy Hub.

Alameda County Food Bank and Oakland Head Start: Through this three-way partnership CSCE has been offering a mobile food pantry for the past 5 years uninterrupted by COVID-19.

CSCE Corporate Structure and Board

Corporate Status:

CSCE is a non-profit, 501(c) (3) public benefit corporation with Employer Identification Number EIN 26-5964588. For a copy of our Bylaws and Board list, we refer you to our website.

Board of Directors:

CSCE is governed by a Board of Directors of up to eleven members in accordance with California's Charter Schools Act and the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law. The Board seeks to represent the diversity of its constituents.

Board and Officer Election, Appointment and Replacement:

The number of Directors comprising the Board of Directors (**Board**) is, by the CSCE bylaws, no less than five (5) and no more than eleven (11), unless changed by amendments to the bylaws. Board members will

Page 47 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

possess expertise in a variety of fields, such as, education, business, accounting, or law to maximize their benefit to the CSCE. Directors and officers are elected, appointed or replaced in accordance with the bylaws.

Board Meetings:

The Board generally meets once monthly consistent with the bylaws as needed and in accordance with the Brown Act. Meeting agendas are posted 72 hours before the meeting on the CSCE website and at CSCE, the place of meeting, in accordance with the Brown Act. All are welcome to join in accordance with the Brown Act.

Board Responsibility:

The Board responsibilities and general powers include, among other things:

- Appointing and removing all corporate officers, agents and employees and fixing their compensation;
- Borrowing money and incurring indebtedness;
- Creation of committees;
- Approval and monitoring of the annual budget;
- Financial audit and oversight;
- Approval of annual fiscal and performance audits;
- Attendance at Board committee meetings.

NOTE: Refer to the website, Bylaws and Board Members for more detail regarding Board officers and Board responsibilities. The current list of Board members and their biographies is on the website. CSCE is committed to community representation on the Board and refers you to <u>How to Join the Board How to</u> <u>Apply and to the Board Skills and Capacity Rubric on the website for more information</u>

Board Member Nominations:

The Chair of the Board of Directors will appoint a committee to designate qualified candidates for election to the Board at least thirty (30) days before the date of any election of Directors. The nominating committee shall make its report at least seven (7) days before the date of the election or at such other time as the Board may set and the Secretary shall forward to each Board member, with the notice of meeting required by these bylaws, a list of all candidates nominated by committee. Any person can make a recommendation to the nominating committee.

Alameda County Board of Education Representation

In accordance with Education Code §47604 (b), the Alameda County Board of Education will be granted the right to a representative on the CSCE Board.

Board Member Job Description:

Each member of the CSCE Board is individually and collectively responsible for the ethical and legal mandates that govern the School. Board members are solely responsible for determining School policy, and have ultimate responsibility for the operation and activities of the School. Board members have key responsibilities in the following areas:

COMMUNITY RELATIONS 1. Ensure that the School's programs and services appropriately meet the needs of the people it serves. 2. Solicit opinions and input of Parents/Guardians/family members regarding issues of significance in the School community. 3. Develop and maintain a positive relationship with the ACOE and the community. 4. Represent the School at key public or charter functions, and serve as emissaries in the community.

Page 48 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

PERSONNEL 1. Recruit new Board members and provide for the continuance of the School through Board succession. 2. Supervise the Director and Head of School of the School, including all employment issues such as hiring, termination, and evaluation. 3. Provide necessary support to the Director and Head of School to ensure that directorial duties may be properly carried out. 4. Develop and adopt necessary personnel policies, including guidelines for hiring and termination, salaries, benefits, and grievance procedures. 5. Develop and adopt policies for volunteer involvement.

PLANNING 1. Set and review the School's Mission and Vision and goals. 2. Develop short-term and long-range goals for the future of the School. 3. Approve services and programs provided by the School. 4. Evaluate the School's programs and operations on a regular basis. 5. Review policies and bylaws that govern the School. 6. Develop policies to ensure smooth operations and continuance of the School. 7. Participate in the CSCE Charter renewal process.

FINANCE 1. Ensure the fiscal accountability and viability of the School. 2. Oversee development, approval and review of the School budget. 3. Engage in fundraising efforts to ensure that adequate funds are available to support the School's programs and the School's facilities. CSCE for Creative Education Board Member Job Description

OPERATIONS 1. Ensure that the School's administrative systems are adequate. 2. Ensure that the Board's operations meet all applicable legal and ethical standards. 3. Ensure that the organizational and legal structures are adequate and appropriate. 4. Ensure that the School and its Board members meet all applicable legal standards and requirements.

MINIMAL JOB REQUIREMENTS 1. A demonstrated interest in the School's educational programs. 2. A commitment to a three-year term. 3. A willingness to represent the School to the community at large. 4. Active participation in the majority of scheduled Board meetings. 5. A willingness to serve as a board liaison to at least one committee. 6. A thorough understanding of the public meeting laws governed by the Brown Act. 7. Participation in at least one board development seminar or workshop per year. 8. Participation in one Brown Act workshop per term.

Fundraising Programs and Ways to Donate

CSCE is a tuition-free school that received funding from the state, however donations of time and money are always welcomed to support the programs CSCE provides.

Checks, Credit Cards and Electronic Funds Transfers:

CSCE can accept automatic donations by check, credit card (Visa, MasterCard, Discover and American Express) or electronic funds transfer.

Employer Matching:

More than 6,000 businesses in the country participate in employer matching gift programs. Some companies will even donate twice the amount of the original gift! Please contact the community relations person in your workplace for information on how to register.

Payroll Deduction:

Many employers offer pre-tax, payroll deduction plans to assist their employees with charitable giving. Contact your company's payroll department for more information.

In-Kind Donations:

Page 49 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

You can receive tax benefits for the donation of new or used goods or pro bono professional services. Even school supplies or the perfect place to hold a special event can be donated in exchange for a tax deduction. Please contact our office if you have something in-kind that you would like to contribute.

Appreciated Securities:

Many donors make gifts of securities as a way to make a contribution and avoid Capital Gains taxes. In most cases, this enables the donor to obtain a charitable income tax deduction equal to the market value of the securities at the time of transfer, for up to 30% of their adjusted gross income.

Estate Planning:

Planning for your financial future can save you tax dollars if you make a nonprofit organization a recipient of your estate plans. For further information, please consult with your financial planner or tax advisor.

Page 50 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

APPENDIX: Complete Policies

TITLE IX, HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, DISCRIMINATION, AND BULLYING POLICY

Discrimination, sexual harassment, harassment, intimidation, and bullying are all disruptive behaviors, which interfere with students' ability to learn, negatively affect student engagement, diminish school safety, and contribute to a hostile school environment. As such, Community School for Creative Education ("CSCE") prohibits any acts of discrimination, sexual harassment, harassment, intimidation, and bullying altogether. This policy is inclusive of all acts related to school activity or school attendance at school-sponsored events and activities, regardless of location, through school-owned technology and through other electronic means.

As used in this policy, discrimination, sexual harassment, harassment, intimidation, and bullying are described as the intentional conduct, including verbal, physical, written communication or cyber-bullying, including cyber sexual bullying, based on the actual or perceived characteristics of mental or physical disability, sex (including pregnancy and related conditions, and parental status), sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, immigration status, nationality (including national origin, country of origin, and citizenship), race or ethnicity (including ancestry, color, ethnic group identification, ethnic background, and traits historically associated with race, including, but not limited to, hair texture and protective hairstyles such as braids, locks, and twist), religion (including agnosticism and atheism), religious affiliation, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, age or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics or based on any other characteristic protected under applicable state or federal law or local ordinance. Hereafter, such actions are referred to as "misconduct prohibited by this policy."

To the extent possible, CSCE will make reasonable efforts to prevent students from being discriminated against, harassed, intimidated, and/or bullied, and will take action to investigate, respond, address and report on such behaviors in a timely manner. CSCE staff that witness acts of misconduct prohibited by this policy will take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so.

Moreover, CSCE will not condone or tolerate misconduct prohibited by this policy by any employee, independent contractor or other person with which CSCE does business, or any other individual, student, or volunteer. This policy applies to all employees, students, or volunteer actions and relationships regardless of position or gender. CSCE will promptly and thoroughly investigate and respond to any complaint of misconduct prohibited by this policy in a manner that is not deliberately indifferent and will take appropriate corrective action, if warranted. CSCE complies with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations and local ordinances in its investigation of and response to reports of misconduct prohibited by this policy.

Notification



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

When necessary under Education Code section 48985, if fifteen (15) percent or more of the pupils enrolled in CSCE speak a single primary language other than English, this policy, and all notices, reports, and statements pertaining to this policy will be translated into the primary language and will be provided to the parent/guardian of any such students in their primary language.

This policy shall be made readily accessible in a prominent location on CSCE's existing internet website in a manner that is easily accessible to parents/guardians and pupils. CSCE shall post the following Title IX requirements in a prominent and conspicuous location on the existing web page:

- 1. The name and contact information of the Title IX coordinator that public school, school district, county office of education, or charter school which shall include the Title IX coordinator's phone number and email address.
- 2. The rights of a pupil and the public and the responsibilities of public school, school district, county office of education, or charter school under Title IX, which shall include, but shall not be limited to, internet web links to information about those rights and responsibilities located on the internet websites of the department's Office of Equal Opportunity and the U.S. Department of Education (ED) Office of Civil Rights (OCR), and the list of rights specified in Education Code section 221.8.
- 3. A description of how to file a complaint under Title IX, which must include all of the following:
 - a. an explanation of the statute of limitations within which a complaint must be filed after an alleged incident of discrimination has occurred, and how a complaint may be filed beyond the statute of limitations.
 - b. an explanation of how the complaint will be investigated and how the complainant may further pursue the complaint including, but not limited to, internet web links to this information on the U.S. ED OCR's internet web site.
 - c. an internet web link to the U.S. ED OCR complaints form, and the contact information for the office, which shall include the phone number and email address for the office.
- 4. The link to the CDE's Title IX information.

Title IX, Harassment, Intimidation, Discrimination and Bullying Coordinator ("Coordinator"):

Ms. Amy Gaerlan Title IX Coordinator 510-916-8896 amyg@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org 21111 International Blvd. Oakland, CA 94606

Page 52 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Definitions

Prohibited Unlawful Harassment

1. Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments, or slurs. 2. Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, intentionally blocking normal movement or interfering with work or school because of sex, race or any other protected basis.

- 3. Retaliation for reporting or threatening to report harassment.
- 4. Deferential or preferential treatment based on any of the protected characteristics listed above.

Prohibited Unlawful Harassment under Title IX

Title IX (20 U.S.C. § 1681 *et. seq*; 34 C.F.R. § 106.1 *et. seq*) and California state law prohibit discrimination and harassment on the basis of sex. In accordance with these existing laws, discrimination and harassment on the basis of sex in education institutions, including in the education institution's admissions and employment practices, is prohibited. All persons, regardless of sex, are afforded equal rights and opportunities and freedom from unlawful discrimination and harassment in education programs or activities conducted by CSCE.

CSCE is committed to providing a work and educational environment free of sexual harassment and considers such harassment to be a major offense, which may result in disciplinary action up to an including termination. Inquiries about the application of Title IX and 34 C.F.R. Part 106 may be referred to the Coordinator, the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights of the U.S. Department of Education, or both.

Sexual harassment consists of conduct on the basis of sex, including but not limited to unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct on the basis of sex, regardless of whether or not the conduct is motivated by sexual desire when:

- 1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or a condition of an individual's employment, education, academic status, or progress;
- 2. submission to, or rejection of, the conduct by the individual is used as the basis of employment, educational or academic decisions affecting the individual;
- 3. the conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact upon the individual's work or academic performance, or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work or educational environment; and/or
- 4. submission to, or rejection of, the conduct by the individual is used as the basis for any decision affecting the individual regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available at or through the educational institution.

It is also unlawful to retaliate in any way against an individual who has articulated a good faith concern about sexual harassment against themselves or against another individual.

Page 53 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to:

1. Physical assaults of a sexual nature, such as:

a. Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults. b. Intentional physical conduct that is sexual in nature, such as touching, pinching, patting, grabbing, brushing against another's body, or poking another's body. 2. Unwanted sexual advances, propositions or other sexual comments, such as: a. Sexually oriented gestures, notices, remarks, jokes, or comments about a person's sexuality or sexual experience.

- b. Preferential treatment or promises of preferential treatment to an individual for submitting to sexual conduct, including soliciting or attempting to solicit any individual to engage in sexual activity for compensation or reward or deferential treatment for rejecting sexual conduct.
- c. Subjecting or threats of subjecting a student to unwelcome sexual attention or conduct or intentionally making the student's academic performance more difficult because of the student's sex.
- 3. Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the educational environment, such as:
 - a. Displaying pictures, cartoons, posters, calendars, graffiti, objections, promotional materials, reading materials, or other materials that are sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning or pornographic or bringing or possessing any such material to read, display or view in the educational environment.
 - b. Reading publicly or otherwise publicizing in the educational environment materials that are in any way sexually revealing, sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning or pornographic.
 - c. Displaying signs or other materials purporting to segregate an individual by sex in an area of the educational environment (other than restrooms or similar rooms).

The illustrations of harassment and sexual harassment above are not to be construed as an all-inclusive list of prohibited acts under this policy.

Prohibited Bullying

Bullying is defined as any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act.

Bullying includes one or more acts committed by a student or group of students that may constitute sexual harassment, hate violence, or creates an intimidating and/or hostile educational environment, directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

1. Placing a reasonable pupil* or pupils in fear of harm to that pupil's or those pupils' person or property.

Page 54 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- 2. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience a substantially detrimental effect on the pupil's physical or mental health.
- 3. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with the pupil's academic performance.
- 4. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience a substantial interference with the pupil's ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by CSCE.

* "Reasonable pupil" is defined as a pupil, including but not limited to, an exceptional needs pupil, who exercises care, skill and judgment in conduct for a person of the same age, or for a person of the same age with the same exceptional needs.

Cyberbullying is an electronic act that includes the transmission of harassing communication, direct threats, or other harmful texts, sounds, or images on the Internet, social media, or other technologies using a telephone, computer, or any wireless communication device. Cyberbullying also includes breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming that person's identity in order to damage that person's reputation.

Electronic act means the creation and transmission originated on or off the school site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:

- 1. A message, text, sound, video, or image.
- 2. A post on a social network Internet Website including, but not limited to: a. Posting to or creating a burn page. A "burn page" means an Internet Website created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in the definition of "bullying," above.
 - b. Creating a credible impersonation* of another actual pupil for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in the definition of "bullying" above. *"Credible impersonation" means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a pupil for the purpose of bullying the pupil and such that another pupil would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was or is the pupil who was impersonated.
 - c. Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in the definition of "bullying," above. "False profile" means a profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who created the false profile.
- 3. An act of "cyber sexual bullying" including, but not limited to:
 - a. The dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual recording by a pupil to another pupil or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects described in the definition of "bullying," above. A photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor is identifiable from the

Page 55 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

photograph, visual recording, or other electronic act.

- b. "Cyber sexual bullying" does not include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.
- c. Notwithstanding the definitions of "bullying" and "electronic act" above, an electronic act shall not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet.

Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment means a written document filed and signed by a complainant who is participating in or attempting to participate in CSCE's education program or activity or signed by the Coordinator alleging sexual harassment against a respondent and requesting that CSCE investigate the allegation of sexual harassment.

Respondent means an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment.

Bullying and Cyberbullying Prevention Procedures

CSCE has adopted the following procedures for preventing acts of bullying, including cyberbullying.

1. Cyberbullying Prevention Procedures

CSCE advises students:

- a. To never share passwords, personal data, or private photos online.
- b. To think about what they are doing carefully before posting and by emphasizing that comments cannot be retracted once they are posted.
- c. That personal information revealed on social media can be shared with anyone including parents, teachers, administrators, and potential employers. Students should never reveal information that would make them uncomfortable if the public had access to it.
- d. To consider how it would feel receiving such comments before making comments about others online.

CSCE informs its employees, students, and parents/guardians of its policies regarding the use of technology in and out of the classroom. CSCE encourages parents/guardians to discuss these policies with their children to ensure their children understand and comply with such policies.

2. Education

CSCE employees cannot always be present when bullying incidents occur, so educating students about bullying is a key prevention technique to limit bullying from happening. CSCE advises students that hateful and/or demeaning behavior is inappropriate and unacceptable in our society

Page 56 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

and at CSCE and encourages students to practice compassion and respect each other.

CSCE educates students to accept all student peers regardless of protected characteristics (including but not limited to actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identification, physical or cognitive disabilities, race, ethnicity, religion, and immigration status) and about the negative impact of bullying other students based on protected characteristics.

CSCE's bullying prevention education also discusses the differences between appropriate and inappropriate behaviors and includes sample situations to help students learn and practice appropriate behavior and to develop techniques and strategies to respond in a non-aggressive way to bullying-type behaviors. Students will also develop confidence and learn how to advocate for themselves and others, and when to go to an adult for help.

CSCE informs its employees, students, and parents/guardians of this policy and encourages parents/guardians to discuss this policy with their children to ensure their children understand and comply with this policy.

3. Professional Development

CSCE annually makes available the online training module developed by the California Department of Education pursuant Education Code section 32283.5(a) to its certificated employees and all other CSCE employees who have regular interaction with students.

CSCE informs certificated employees about the common signs that a student is a target of bullying including:

- a. Physical cuts or injuries
- b. Lost or broken personal items
- c. Fear of going to school/practice/games
- d. Loss of interest in school, activities, or friends
- e. Trouble sleeping or eating
- f. Anxious/sick/nervous behavior or distracted appearance
- g. Self-destructiveness or displays of odd behavior
- h. Decreased self-esteem

CSCE also informs certificated employees about the groups of students determined by CSCE, and available research, to be at elevated risk for bullying. These groups include but are not limited to:

- a. Students who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth ("LGBTQ") and those youth perceived as LGBTQ; and
- b. Students with physical or learning disabilities.

Page 57 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

CSCE encourages its employees to demonstrate effective problem-solving, anger management, and self-confidence skills for students.

Grievance Procedures

Scope of Grievance Procedures

CSCE will comply with its Uniform Complaint Procedures ("UCP") policy when investigating and responding to complaints alleging unlawful harassment, discrimination, intimidation or bullying against a protected group or on the basis of a person's association with a person or group with one or more of the protected characteristics set forth in the UCP that:

- a. Are written and signed;
- b. Filed by an individual who alleges that that individual has personally suffered unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying, or by one who believes any specific class of individuals has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying prohibited by this part, or by a duly authorized representative who alleges that an individual student has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying; and
- c. Submitted to CSCE UCP Compliance Officer not later than six (6) months from the date the alleged unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying occurred, or the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying.

The following grievance procedures shall be utilized for reports of misconduct prohibited by this policy that do not comply with the writing, timeline, or other formal filing requirements of a uniform complaint. For formal complaints of sexual harassment, CSCE will utilize the following grievance procedures in addition to its UCP when applicable.

Reporting

All staff are expected to provide appropriate supervision to enforce standards of conduct and, if they observe or become aware of misconduct prohibited by this policy, to intervene when it is safe to do so, call for assistance, and report such incidents. The Board requires staff to follow the procedures in this policy for reporting alleged acts of misconduct prohibited by this policy.

Any student who believes they have been subject to misconduct prohibited by this policy or has witnessed such prohibited misconduct is encouraged to immediately report such misconduct to the Coordinator:

Ms. Amy Gaerlan Title IX Coordinator

Page 58 of 119


2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

510-916-8896 amyg@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org 21111 International Blvd. Oakland, CA 94606

Complaints regarding such misconduct may also be made to the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights. Civil law remedies, including, but not limited to, injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders may also be available to complainants.

While submission of a written report is not required, the reporting party is encouraged to submit a written report to the Coordinator. CSCE will investigate and respond to all oral and written reports of misconduct prohibited by this policy in a manner that is not deliberately indifferent. Reports may be made anonymously, but formal disciplinary action cannot be based solely on an anonymous report.

Students are expected to report all incidents of misconduct prohibited by this policy or other verbal, or physical abuses. Any student who feels they are a target of such behavior should immediately contact a teacher, counselor, the program director, Coordinator, a staff person or a family member so that the student can get assistance in resolving the issue in a manner that is consistent with this policy.

POLICY

CSCE acknowledges and respects every individual's right to privacy. All reports shall be investigated in a manner that protects the confidentiality of the parties and the integrity of the process to the greatest extent possible. This includes keeping the identity of the reporter confidential, as appropriate, except to the extent necessary to comply with the law, carry out the investigation and/or to resolve the issue, as determined by the Coordinator or designee on a case-by-case basis.

CSCE prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who files a report or complaint, testifies, assists, participates, or refuses to participate in any investigation or proceeding related to misconduct prohibited by this policy. Such participation or lack of participation shall not in any way affect the status, grades, or work assignments of the individual. Individuals alleging retaliation in violation of this policy may file a grievance using the procedures set forth in this policy. Knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process is prohibited and may result in disciplinary action.

All supervisors of staff will receive sexual harassment training within six (6) months of their assumption of a supervisory position and will receive further training once every two (2) years thereafter. All staff and any individuals designated as a coordinator, investigator, or decision-maker will receive sexual harassment training and/or instruction concerning sexual harassment as required by law.

Supportive Measures

Page 59 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Upon the receipt of an informal or formal complaint of sexual harassment, the Coordinator will promptly contact the complainant to discuss the availability of supportive measures. The Coordinator will consider the complainant's wishes with respect to supportive measures, inform the complainant of the availability of supportive measures with or without the filing of a formal complaint of sexual harassment, and explain the process for filing a formal complaint of sexual harassment.

Supportive measures are non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the complainant or the respondent before or after the filing of a formal complaint of sexual harassment or where no formal complaint of sexual harassment has been filed. Such measures are designed to restore or preserve equal access to CSCE's education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or CSCE's educational environment, or deter sexual harassment. Supportive measures available to complainants and respondents may include but are not limited to counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments, modifications of work or class schedules, campus escort services, mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, changes in work locations, leaves of absence, increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus, and other similar measures. CSCE will maintain as confidential any supportive measures provided to the complainant or respondent, to the extent that maintaining such confidentiality would not impair the ability of CSCE to provide the supportive measures.

Investigation and Response

Upon receipt of a report of misconduct prohibited by this policy from a student, staff member, parent/guardian, volunteer, visitor or affiliate of CSCE, the Coordinator or administrative designee will promptly initiate an investigation. In most cases, a thorough investigation will take no more than twenty-five (25) school days. If the Coordinator, or administrative designee determines that an investigation will take longer than twenty-five (25) school days and needs to be delayed or extended due to good cause, the Coordinator or administrative designee will inform the complainant of the reasons for the delay or extension and provide an approximate date when the investigation will be complete.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Coordinator or administrative designee will meet with the complainant and, to the extent possible with respect to confidentiality laws, provide the complainant with information about the investigation, including any actions necessary to resolve the incident/situation. However the Coordinator or administrative designee will not reveal confidential information related to other students or employees.

For investigations of and responses to formal complaints of sexual harassment, the following grievance procedures will apply:

1. Notice of the Allegations

a. Upon receipt of a formal complaint of sexual harassment, the Coordinator will give all known parties written notice of its grievance process, including any voluntary informal

Page 60 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

resolution process. The notice will include:

- b. A description of the allegations of sexual harassment at issue and to the extent known, the identities of the parties involved in the incident, the conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment, and the date and location of the alleged incident;
- c. A statement that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct until a final decision is reached;
- d. A statement that the parties may have an advisor of their choice, who may be an attorney, and may inspect and review evidence; and
- e. A statement that CSCE prohibits an individual from knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process.
- 2. Emergency Removal
 - a. CSCE may place a non-student employee respondent on administrative leave during the pendency of a formal complaint of sexual harassment grievance process in accordance with CSCE's policies.
 - b. CSCE may remove a respondent from CSCE's education program or activity on an emergency basis, in accordance with CSCE's policies, provided that CSCE undertakes an individualized safety and risk analysis, determines that an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual arising from the allegations of sexual harassment justifies removal, and provides the respondent with notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal.
 - c. This provision may not be construed to modify any rights under the IDEA, Section 504, or the ADA.
- 3. Informal Resolution
 - a. If a formal complaint of sexual harassment is filed, CSCE may offer a voluntary informal resolution process, such as mediation, to the parties at any time prior to reaching a determination regarding responsibility. If CSCE offers such a process, it will do the following:

i. Provide the parties with advance written notice of:

- The allegations;
- The requirements of the voluntary informal resolution process including the circumstances under which the parties are precluded

from resuming a formal complaint of sexual harassment arising from the same allegations;

- The parties' right to withdraw from the voluntary informal resolution process and resume the grievance process at any time prior to agreeing to a resolution; and
- Any consequences resulting from participating in the voluntary informal resolution process, including the records that will be maintained or could be shared; and
- ii. Obtain the parties' advance voluntary, written consent to the informal resolution process.

Page 61 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- a. CSCE will not offer or facilitate an informal resolution process to resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed a student.
- 4. Investigation Process
 - a. The decision-maker will not be the same person(s) as the Coordinator or the investigator. CSCE shall ensure that all decision-makers and investigators do not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents.
 - b. In most cases, a thorough investigation will take no more than twenty-five (25) school days. If the investigator determines that an investigation will take longer than twenty-five (25) school days and needs to be delayed or extended due to good cause, the investigator will inform the complainant and any respondents in writing of the reasons for the delay or extension and provide an approximate date when the investigation will be complete.
 - c. The parties will be provided with an equal opportunity to present witnesses, to inspect and review any evidence obtained that is directly related to the allegations raised, and to have an advisor present during any investigative meeting or interview.
 - d. The parties will not be prohibited from discussing the allegations under investigation or to gather and present relevant evidence.
 - e. A party whose participation is invited or expected at an investigative meeting or interview will receive written notice of the date, time, location, participants, and purpose of the meeting or interview with sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate.
 - f. Prior to completion of the investigative report, CSCE will send to each party and the party's advisor, if any, a copy of the evidence subject to inspection and review, and the parties will have at least ten (10) days to submit a written response for the investigator's consideration prior to the completion of the investigation report.
 - g. The investigator will complete an investigation report that fairly summarizes relevant evidence and send a copy of the report to each party and the party's advisor, if any, at least ten (10) days prior to the determination of responsibility.
- 5. Dismissal of a Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment
 - a. If the investigation reveals that the alleged harassment did not occur in CSCE's educational program in the United States or would not constitute sexual harassment even if proved, the formal complaint with regard to that conduct must be dismissed. However, such a dismissal does not preclude action under another applicable CSCE policy.
 - b. CSCE may dismiss a formal complaint of sexual harassment if: i. The complainant provides a written withdrawal of the complaint to the Coordinator;

ii. The respondent is no longer employed or enrolled at CSCE; or iii. The specific circumstances prevent CSCE from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a decision on the formal complaint or the allegations therein.

- c. If a formal complaint of sexual harassment or any of the claims therein are dismissed, CSCE will promptly send written notice of the dismissal and the reason(s) for the dismissal simultaneously to the parties.
- 6. Determination of Responsibility
 - a. The standard of evidence used to determine responsibility is the preponderance of the

Page 62 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

evidence standard.

- b. CSCE will send a written decision on the formal complaint to the complainant and respondent simultaneously that describes:
 - i. The allegations in the formal complaint of sexual harassment;
 - ii. All procedural steps taken including any notifications to the parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits, and methods used to gather other evidence;
 - iii. The findings of facts supporting the determination;
 - iv. The conclusions about the application of CSCE's code of conduct to the facts;
 - v. The decision and rationale for each allegation;
 - vi. Any disciplinary sanctions the recipient imposes on the respondent, and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to the education program or activity will be provided to the complainant; and
 - vii. The procedures and permissible bases for appeals.

Consequences

Students or employees who engage in misconduct prohibited by this policy, knowingly make false statements or knowingly submit false information during the grievance process may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including expulsion from CSCE or termination of employment. The Coordinator is responsible for effective implementation of any remedies ordered by CSCE in response to a formal complaint of sexual harassment.

Right of Appeal

Should the reporting individual find CSCE's resolution unsatisfactory, the reporting individual may, within five (5) business days of notice of CSCE's decision or resolution, submit a written appeal to the Chief Executive Officer, who will review the investigation and render a final decision.

The following appeal rights and procedures will also apply to formal complaints of sexual harassment:

a. The complainant and the respondent shall have the same appeal rights and CSCE will implement appeal procedures equally for both parties.

b. CSCE will notify the other party in writing when an appeal is filed. c. The decision-maker for the appeal will give both parties a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in support of, or challenging, the outcome; issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result; and provide the written decision simultaneously to both parties.

Recordkeeping

All records related to any investigation of complaints under this policy are maintained in a secure location.

Page 63 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- CSCE will maintain the following records for at least seven (7) years: a. Records of each sexual harassment investigation, including any determination of responsibility; any audio or audiovisual recording or transcript; any disciplinary sanctions imposed on the respondent; and any remedies provided to the complainant. b. Records of any appeal of a formal sexual harassment complaint and the results of that appeal.
 - c. Records of any informal resolution of a sexual harassment complaint and the results of that informal resolution.
 - d. All materials used to train Title IX coordinators, investigators, decision-makers, and any person who facilitates an informal resolution process.
 - e. Records of any actions, including any supportive measures, taken in response to a report or formal complaint of sexual harassment.

Page 64 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Title IX, Harassment, Intimidation, Discrimination & Bullying **COMPLAINT FORM**

Your Name: _____ Date: _____

Date of Alleged Incident(s):

Name of Person(s) you have a complaint against:

List any witnesses that were present:

Where did the incident(s) occur?

Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much factual detail as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any verbal statements; what did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed):

I hereby authorize the Community School for Creative Education to disclose the information I have provided as it finds necessary in pursuing its investigation. I hereby certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true and correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. I further understand that providing false information in this regard could result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Signature of Complainant	Date	
Print Name		
To be completed by CSCE:		
Received by:	Date	
Follow up meeting with complainant held on:		

Page 65 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Suspension and Expulsion Policy and Procedures

Policy

The Suspension and Expulsion Policy and Procedures have been established in order to promote learning and protect the safety and well-being of all students at Community School for Creative Education ("CSCE"). In creating this policy, CSCE has reviewed Education Code Section 48900 *et seq.* which describe the offenses for which students at non charter schools may be suspended or expelled and the procedures governing those suspension and expulsions in order to establish its list of offenses and procedures for suspensions, expulsions, and involuntary removal. The language that follows is largely consistent with the language of Education Code Section 48900 *et seq.* CSCE is committed to annual review of policies and procedures surrounding suspensions, expulsions, and involuntary removals, and, as necessary, modification of the lists of offenses for which students are subject to suspension or expulsion.

Consistent with this Policy, it may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular classroom instruction. This shall serve as CSCE's policy and procedures for student suspension, expulsion, and involuntary removal, and it may be amended from time to time without the need to seek a material revision of the charter so long as the amendments comport with legal requirements. CSCE staff shall enforce disciplinary policies and procedures fairly and consistently among all students. This Policy and its Procedures will be printed and distributed annually as part of the Parent Handbook which will clearly describe discipline expectations.

Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal punishment includes the willful infliction of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain on a student. For purposes of this Policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee's use of force that is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent damage to school property.

CSCE administration shall ensure that students and their parents/guardians are notified in writing upon enrollment of all discipline and involuntary removal policies and procedures. The notice shall state that this Policy and its Procedures are available upon request at the Head of School's office.

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities unless otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion.

A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom CSCE has a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 ("IDEA") or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 ("Section 504") is subject to the same grounds for suspension and expulsion and is accorded the same due process procedures applicable to general education students except when federal and state law mandates additional or different procedures. CSCE will follow all applicable federal and state laws including but not limited to the applicable provisions of the California Education Code, when imposing any form of discipline on a student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom CSCE has a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability or who is otherwise qualified for such services or protections in according due process to such students.

No student shall be involuntarily removed by the Charter School for any reason unless the parent/guardian of the student has been provided written notice of intent to remove the student no less than five (5) school days before

Page 66 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

the effective date of the action. The written notice shall be in the native language of the student or the student's parent/guardian or, if the student is a foster child or youth or a homeless child or youth, the student's educational rights holder, and shall inform the student, the student's parent/guardian, or educational rights holder of the basis for which the student is being involuntarily removed and the student's parent/guardian, or educational rights holder's right to request a hearing to challenge the involuntary removal. If a student's parent, guardian, or educational rights holder requests a hearing, the Charter School shall utilize the same hearing procedures specified below for expulsions, before the effective date of the action to involuntarily remove the student. If the student's parent, guardian, or educational rights holder requests a hearing, the Charter School shall utilize the shall remain enrolled and shall not be removed until the Charter School issues a final decision. As used herein, "involuntarily removed" includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated, but does not include removals for misconduct which may be grounds for suspension or expulsion as enumerated below.

Procedures

A. Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students

A student may be suspended or expelled for prohibited misconduct if the act is related to school activity or school attendance occurring at any time including but not limited to: a) while on school grounds; b) while going to or coming from school; c) during the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus; or d) during, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity.

B. Enumerated Offenses

- 1. Discretionary Suspension Offenses. Students may be suspended when it is determined the student:
 - a) Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person.
 - b) Willfully used force or violence upon the person of another, except self-defense.
 - c) Unlawfully possessed, used, or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind.
 - d) Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or material and represented same as controlled substance, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant.
 - e) Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.

Page 67 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- f) Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases.
- g) Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases.
- h) Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel. This section does not prohibit the use of a student's own prescription products by a student.
- i) Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.
- j) Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.
- k) Knowingly received stolen school property or private property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases.
- Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm.
- m) Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness.
- n) Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma.
- o) Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this policy, "hazing" means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a student organization or body, whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective student. For purposes of this policy, "hazing" does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events.
- p) Made terroristic threats against school officials and/or school property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. For purposes of this policy, "terroristic threat" shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully threatens to commit a

Page 68 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to another person, or property damage in excess of one thousand dollars (\$1,000), with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in which it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the person threatened, a gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person reasonably to be in sustained fear for their own safety or for their immediate family's safety, or for the personal property, , which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases, or the personal property of the person threatened or their immediate family.

- q) Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the purposes of this policy, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon the individual's academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. This policy shall apply to student in any of grades 4 to 8, inclusive.
- r) Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause or participated in an act of hate violence, as defined in Education Code Section 233(e). This section shall apply to pupils in any of grades 4 to 8, inclusive.
- s) Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated school personnel or volunteers and/or a student or group of students to the extent of having the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class work, creating substantial disorder and invading the rights of either school personnel or volunteers and/or student(s) by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. This policy shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 8, inclusive.
- t) Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by means of an electronic act.
 - 1) "Bullying" means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and including one or more acts committed by a student or group of students which would be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, which are directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:
 - i. Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of their age, or for a person of their age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of harm to that student's or those students' person or property.
 - ii. Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on their physical or mental health.

Page 69 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- iii. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with their academic performance.
- iv. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with their ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by CSCE.
- 2) "Electronic Act" means the creation or transmission originated on or off the school site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:
 - i. A message, text, sound, or image.
 - ii. A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to:
 - (a) Posting to or creating a burn page. A "burn page" means an Internet Web site created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in subparagraph (1) above.
 - (b) Creating a credible impersonation of another actual student for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. "Credible impersonation" means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a student for the purpose of bullying the student and such that another student would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the student was or is the student who was impersonated.
 - (c) Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. "False profile" means a profile of a fictitious student or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual student other than the student who created the false profile.
 - iii. An act of cyber sexual bullying.
 - (a) For purposes of this policy, "cyber sexual bullying" means the dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual recording by a student to another student or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of paragraph (1). A photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or other electronic act.
 - (b) For purposes of this policy, "cyber sexual bullying" does not include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.
- 3) Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet.

Page 70 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- u) A student who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, but not expulsion, except that a student who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject to discipline pursuant to subdivision (1).
- v) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife or other dangerous object of no reasonable use to the student unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the Head of School or designee's concurrence.

2. Non-Discretionary Suspension Offenses: Students must be suspended and recommended for expulsion when it is determined the student:

- a) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other destructive device unless, in the case of possession of any device of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the Head of School or designee's concurrence.
- b) Brandished a knife at another person.
- c) Unlawfully sold a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code Section 11053, et seq.
- d) Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266c, 286, 287, 288, or 289 or former Section 288a of the Penal Code or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4.

3. Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students may be recommended for expulsion when it is determined the student:

- a) Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person.
- b) Willfully used force or violence upon the person of another, except self-defense.
- c) Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind.
- d) Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or material and represented same as controlled substance, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant.
- e) Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.

Page 71 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- f) Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases.
- g) Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases.
- h) Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel. This section does not prohibit the use of a student's own prescription products by a student.
- i) Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.
- j) Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.
- k) Knowingly received stolen school property or private property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases.
- Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm.
- m) Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness.
- n) Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma.
- o) Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this policy, "hazing" means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a student organization or body, whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective student. For purposes of this policy, "hazing" does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events.
- p) Made terroristic threats against school officials and/or school property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. For purposes of this policy, "terroristic threat" shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully threatens to commit a

Page 72 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to another person, or property damage in excess of one thousand dollars (\$1,000), with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in which it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the person threatened, a gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person reasonably to be in sustained fear for their own safety or for their immediate family's safety, or for the protection of school property, which includes but is not limited to, electronic files and databases, or the personal property of the person threatened or their immediate family.

- q) Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the purposes of this policy, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon the individual's academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. This policy shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 8, inclusive.
- r) Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause or participated in an act of hate violence, as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code. This policy shall apply to pupils in any of grades 4 to 8, inclusive.
- s) Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated school personnel or volunteers and/or a student or group of students to the extent of having the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class work, creating substantial disorder and invading the rights of either school personnel or volunteers and/or student(2) by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. This policy shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 8, inclusive.
- t) Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by means of an electronic act.
 - 1) "Bullying" means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and including one or more acts committed by a student or group of students which would be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, which are directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:
 - i. Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of their age, or for a person of their age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of harm to that student's or those students' person or property.
 - ii. Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on their physical or mental health.

Page 73 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- iii. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with their academic performance.
- iv. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with their ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by the Charter School.
- 2) "Electronic Act" means the creation and transmission originated on or off the school site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:
 - i. A message, text, sound, or image.
 - ii. A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to:
 - (a) Posting to or creating a burn page. A "burn page" means an Internet Web site created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in subparagraph (1) above.
 - (b) Creating a credible impersonation of another actual student for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. "Credible impersonation" means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a student for the purpose of bullying the student and such that another student would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the student was or is the student who was impersonated.
 - (c) Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. "False profile" means a profile of a fictitious student or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual student other than the student who created the false profile.
 - iii. An act of cyber sexual bullying.
 - (a) For purposes of this policy, "cyber sexual bullying" means the dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual recording by a student to another student or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of paragraph (1). A photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or other electronic act.
 - (b) For purposes of this policy, "cyber sexual bullying" does not include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.
- 3) Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet.

Page 74 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- u) A student who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, but not expulsion, except that a student who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject to discipline pursuant to subdivision (3).
- v) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife or other dangerous object of no reasonable use to the student unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the Head of School or designee's concurrence.

4. Non-Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students must be recommended for expulsion for any of the following acts when it is determined pursuant to the procedures below that the student:

- a) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other destructive device unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the students had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the Head of School or designee's concurrence.
- b) Brandished a knife at another person.
- c) Unlawfully sold a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code Section 11053, et seq.
- d) Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266c, 286, 287, 288, or 289 or former Section 288a of the Penal Code or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4.

If it is determined by the Administrative Panel and/or Board of Directors that a student has brought a fire arm or destructive device, as defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code, on to campus or to have possessed a firearm or destructive device on campus, the student shall be expelled for one year, pursuant to the Federal Gun Free Schools Act of 1994. In such instances, the student shall be provided due process rights of notice and a hearing as required in this policy.

The Charter School will use the following definitions:

- The term "knife" means (A) any dirk, dagger, or other weapon with a fixed, sharpened blade fitted primarily for stabbing; (B) a weapon with a blade fitted primarily for stabbing; (C) a weapon with a blade longer than 3½ inches; (D) a folding knife with a blade that locks into place; or (E) a razor with an unguarded blade.
- The term "firearm" means (A) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; (B) the frame or receiver of any such weapon; (C) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or (D) any destructive device. Such term does not include an antique firearm.

Page 75 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

• The term "destructive device" means any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas, including but not limited to: (A) bomb; (B) grenade; (C rocket having a propellant charge of more than four ounces; (D) missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce; (E) mine; or (F) device similar to any of the devices described in the preceding clauses.

C. Suspension Procedure

Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures:

1. Conference

Suspension shall be preceded, if possible, by a conference conducted by the Head of School or designee with the student and the student's parent/guardian and, whenever practical, the teacher, supervisor or CSCE employee who referred the student to the Head of School or designee.

The conference may be omitted if the Head of School or designee determines that an emergency situation exists. An "emergency situation" involves a clear and present danger to the lives, safety or health of students or CSCE personnel. If a student is suspended without this conference, both the parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the student's right to return to school for the purpose of a conference.

At the conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the evidence against the student and shall be given the opportunity to present their version and evidence in their defense, in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(J)(i). This conference shall be held within two (2) school days, unless the student waives this right or is physically unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to, incarceration or hospitalization. No penalties may be imposed on a student for failure of the student's parent or guardian to attend a conference with CSCE officials. Reinstatement of the suspended student shall not be contingent upon attendance by the student's parent/guardian at the conference.

2. Notice to Parents/Guardians

At the time of the suspension, an administrator or designee shall make a reasonable effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student is suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension and the date of return following suspension. This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the student as well as the date when the student may return to school following the suspension. In addition, the notice may also state the time when the student may return to school. If CSCE officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the suspension, the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests without delay.

3. Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion

Suspensions, when not including a recommendation for expulsion, shall not exceed five (5) consecutive school days per suspension. Upon a recommendation of expulsion by the Head of School or designee, the student and the student's parent/guardian or representative will be invited to a conference to determine if the suspension for the student should be extended pending an expulsion hearing. In such instances when CSCE has determined a suspension period shall be extended, such extension shall be made only after a conference is held with the student or the student's parent/guardian, unless the student and the student's parent/guardian fail

Page 76 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

to attend the conference.

This determination will be made by the Head of School or designee upon either of the following: 1) the student's presence will be disruptive to the education process; or 2) the student poses a threat or danger to others. Upon either determination, the student's suspension will be extended pending the results of an expulsion hearing.

4. Homework Assignments During Suspension

In accordance with Education Code Section 47606.2(a), upon the request of a parent, a legal guardian or other person holding the right to make education decisions for the student, or the affected student, a teacher shall provide to a student in any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, who has been suspended from school for two (2) or more school days, the homework that the student would otherwise have been assigned.

In accordance with Education Code Section 47606.2(b), if a homework assignment that is requested pursuant to Section 47606.2(a) and turned into the teacher by the student either upon the student's return to school from suspension or within the timeframe originally prescribed by the teacher, whichever is later, is not graded before the end of the academic term, that assignment shall not be included in the calculation of the student's overall grade in the class.

D. Authority to Expel

As required by Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(J)(ii), students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer to determine whether the student should be expelled. The procedures herein provide for such a hearing and the notice of said hearing, as required by law.

A student may be expelled either by the neutral and impartial CSCE Board of Directors following a hearing before it or by CSCE Board of Directors upon the recommendation of a neutral and impartial Administrative Panel, to be assigned by the Board of Directors as needed. The Administrative Panel shall consist of at least three (3) members who are certificated and neither a teacher of the student nor a member of the CSCE Board of Directors. Each entity shall be presided over by a designated neutral hearing chairperson. The Administrative Panel may recommend expulsion of any student found to have committed an expellable offense, and the Board of Directors shall make the final determination.

E. Expulsion Procedures

Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing to determine whether the student should be expelled. Unless postponed for good cause, the hearing shall be held within thirty (30) school days after the Head of School or designee determines that the student has committed an expellable offense and recommends the student for expulsion.

In the event an Administrative Panel hears the case, it will make a recommendation to the Board for a final decision whether to expel. The hearing shall be held in closed session (complying with all student confidentiality rules under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (" FERPA")) unless the student makes a written request for a public hearing in open session three (3) days prior to the date of the scheduled hearing.

Page 77 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Written notice of the hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student's parent/guardian at least ten (10) calendar days before the date of the hearing. Upon mailing the notice, it shall be deemed served upon the student. The notice shall include:

- 1. The date and place of the expulsion hearing;
- 2. A statement of the specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed expulsion is based;
- 3. A copy of CSCE's disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation;
- 4. Notification of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to provide information about the student's status at CSCE to any other school district or school to which the student seeks enrollment;
- 5. The opportunity for the student and/or the student's parent/guardian to appear in person or to employ and be represented by counsel or a non-attorney advisor;
- 6. The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing;
- 7. The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing;
- 8. The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary evidence on the student's behalf including witnesses.

F. Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery Offenses

CSCE may, upon a finding of good cause, determine that the disclosure of either the identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or both, would subject the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm. Upon this determination, the testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of sworn declarations that shall be examined only by CSCE or the hearing officer. Copies of these sworn declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness, shall be made available to the student.

- The complaining witness in any sexual assault or battery case must be provided with a copy of the applicable disciplinary rules and advised of their right to (a) receive five (5) days' notice of their scheduled testimony; (b) have up to two (2) adult support persons of their choosing present in the hearing at the time the complaining witness testifies, which may include a parent/guardian, or legal counsel; and (c) elect to have the hearing closed while testifying.
- 2. CSCE must also provide the victim a room separate from the hearing room for the complaining witness' use prior to and during breaks in testimony.
- 3. At the discretion of the entity conducting the expulsion hearing, the complaining witness shall be allowed periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which the complaining witness may leave the hearing room.
- 4. The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the hearing room to facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness.
- 5. The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the testimony of the

Page 78 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

complaining witness to the hours the complaining witness is normally in school, if there is no good cause to take the testimony during other hours.

- 6. Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that the hearing is confidential. Nothing in the law precludes the entity presiding over the hearing from removing a support person whom the presiding person finds is disrupting the hearing. The entity conducting the hearing may permit any one of the support persons for the complaining witness to accompany the complaining witness to the witness stand.
- 7. If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, CSCE must present evidence that the witness' presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful to CSCE. The entity presiding over the hearing shall permit the witness to stay unless it is established that there is a substantial risk that the testimony of the complaining witness would be influenced by the support person, in which case the presiding official shall admonish the support person or persons not to prompt, sway, or influence the witness in any way. Nothing shall preclude the presiding officer from exercising their discretion to remove a person from the hearing whom they believe is prompting, swaying, or influencing the witness.
- 8. The testimony of the support person shall be presented before the testimony of the complaining witness and the complaining witness shall be excluded from the courtroom during that testimony.
- 9. Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be conducted in public at the request of the student being expelled, the complaining witness shall have the right to have their testimony heard in a closed session when testifying at a public meeting would threaten serious psychological harm to the complaining witness and there are no alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm. The alternative procedures may include videotaped depositions or contemporaneous examination in another place communicated to the hearing room by means of closed-circuit television.
- 10. Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness' prior sexual conduct is presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard absent a determination by the entity conducting the hearing that extraordinary circumstances exist requiring the evidence be heard. Before such a determination regarding extraordinary circumstances can be made, the witness shall be provided notice and an opportunity to present opposition to the introduction of the evidence. In the hearing on the admissibility of the evidence, the complaining witness shall be entitled to be represented by a parent, legal counsel, or other support person. Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the sexual behavior of the complaining witness is not admissible for any purpose.

G. Record of Hearing

A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means, including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written transcription of the proceedings can be made.

Page 79 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

H. Presentation of Evidence

While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings, evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs. A recommendation by the Administrative Panel to expel must be supported by substantial evidence that the student committed an expellable offense. Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. While hearsay evidence is admissible, no decision to expel shall be based solely on hearsay. Sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from witnesses of whom the Board or Administrative Panel determines that disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.

If, due to a written request by the expelled student, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and the charge is committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as defined in Education Code Section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right to have their testimony heard in a session closed to the public.

I. Written Notice to Expel

The decision of the Administrative Panel shall be in the form of written findings of fact and a written recommendation to the Board of Directors, which will make a final determination regarding the expulsion. The Board of Directors shall make the final determination regarding the expulsion within ten (10) school days following the conclusion of the hearing. The decision of the Board of Directors is final.

If the Administrative Panel decides not to recommend expulsion, or the Board of Directors ultimately decides not to expel, the student shall immediately be returned to their previous educational program.

The Board of Directors may also determine to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order for a period of not more than one (1) calendar year from the date of the expulsion hearing and return the student to the student's previous educational program under a probationary status and rehabilitation plan to be determined by the Board. During the period of the suspension of the expulsion order, the student is deemed to be on probationary status. The Board of Directors may revoke the suspension of an expulsion order under this section if the student commits any of the enumerated offenses listed above or violates any of the Charter School's rules and regulations governing student conduct. If the Board revokes the suspension of an expulsion order, the student may be expelled under the terms of the original expulsion order. The Board of Directors shall apply the criteria for suspending the enforcement of the expulsion order equally to all students, including individuals with exceptional needs as defined in Education Code Section 56026. The Board of Directors shall further comply with the provisions set forth under Education Code Section 48917, except as otherwise expressly set forth herein.

J. Written Notice to Expel

The Head of School or designee, following a decision of the Board of Directors to expel, shall send written notice of the decision to expel, including the Board of Directors' adopted findings of fact, to the student and student's parent/guardian. This notice shall also include the following: (a) Notice of the specific offense committed by the

Page 80 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

student; and (b) Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in which the student seeks to enroll of the student's status with CSCE.

The Head of School or designee shall send a copy of the written notice of the decision to expel to the chartering authority. This notice shall include the following: (a) The student's name; and (b) The specific expellable offense committed by the student.

K. Disciplinary Records

CSCE shall maintain records of all student suspensions and expulsions at CSCE. Such records shall be made available to the chartering authority upon request.

L. No Right to Appeal

The student shall have no right of appeal from expulsion from CSCE as the CSCE Board of Directors' decision to expel shall be final.

M. Expelled Students/Alternative Education

Parents/guardians of students who are expelled shall be responsible for seeking alternative education programs including, but not limited to, programs within the County or their school district of residence. CSCE shall work cooperatively with parents/guardians as requested by parents/guardians or by the school district of residence to assist with locating alternative placements during expulsion.

N. Rehabilitation Plans

Students who are expelled from CSCE shall be given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as developed by the Board of Directors at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, but is not limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time of review for readmission. The rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one (1) year from the date of expulsion when the student may reapply to CSCE for readmission.

O. Readmission or Admission of Previously Expelled Student

The decision to readmit a student after the end of the student's expulsion term or to admit a previously expelled student from another school district or charter school who has not been readmitted/admitted to another school or school district after the end of the student's expulsion term, shall be in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors following a meeting with the Head of School or designee and the student and student's parent/guardian or representative to determine whether the student has successfully completed the rehabilitation plan and to determine whether the student poses a threat to others or will be disruptive to the school environment. The Head

Page 81 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

of School or designee shall make a recommendation to the Board of Directors following the meeting regarding the Head of School or designee's determination. The Board shall then make a final decision regarding readmission or admission of the student during the closed session of a public meeting, reporting any action taken during closed session consistent with the requirements of the Brown Act. The student's readmission is also contingent upon CSCE's capacity at the time the student seeks readmission or admission to CSCE.

P. Notice to Teachers

CSCE shall notify teachers of each student who has engaged in or is reasonably suspected to have engaged in any of the acts listed in Education Code Section 49079 and the corresponding enumerated offenses set forth above.

Q. Special Procedures for the Consideration of Suspension and Expulsion or Involuntary Removal of Students with Disabilities

1. Notification of SELPA

CSCE shall immediately notify the SELPA and coordinate the procedures in this policy with the SELPA of the discipline of any student with a disability or student that CSCE or the SELPA would be deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability.

2. Services During Suspension

Students suspended for more than ten (10) school days in a school year shall continue to receive services so as to enable the student to continue to participate in the general education curriculum, although in another setting (which could constitute a change of placement and the student's IEP would reflect this change), and to progress toward meeting the goals set out in the child's IEP/504 Plan; and receive, as appropriate, a functional behavioral assessment and behavioral intervention services and modifications, that are designed to address the behavior violation so that it does not recur. These services may be provided in an interim alternative educational setting.

3. Procedural Safeguards/Manifestation Determination

Within ten (10) school days of a recommendation for expulsion or any decision to change the placement of a child with a disability because of a violation of a code of student conduct, CSCE, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team shall review all relevant information in the student's file, including the child's IEP/504 Plan, any teacher observations, and any relevant information provided by the parents to determine:

- a. If the conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and substantial relationship to, the child's disability; or
- b. If the conduct in question was the direct result of the local educational agency's failure to implement the IEP/504 Plan.

Page 82 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

If CSCE, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team determine that either of the above is applicable for the child, the conduct shall be determined to be a manifestation of the child's disability.

If CSCE, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team make the determination that the conduct was a manifestation of the child's disability, the IEP/504 Team shall:

- a. Conduct a functional behavioral assessment and implement a behavioral intervention plan for such child, provided that CSCE had not conducted such assessment prior to such determination before the behavior that resulted in a change in placement;
- b. If a behavioral intervention plan has been developed, review the behavioral intervention plan if the child already has such a behavioral intervention plan, and modify it, as necessary, to address the behavior; and
- c. Return the child to the placement from which the child was removed, unless the parent/guardian and CSCE agree to a change of placement as part of the modification of the behavioral intervention plan.

If CSCE, the parent/guardian, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team determine that the behavior was not a manifestation of the student's disability and that the conduct in question was not a direct result of the failure to implement the IEP/504 Plan, then CSCE may apply the relevant disciplinary procedures to children with disabilities in the same manner and for the same duration as the procedures would be applied to students without disabilities.

4. Due Process Appeals

The parent/guardian of a child with a disability who disagrees with any decision regarding placement, or the manifestation determination, or CSCE believes that maintaining the current placement of the child is substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others, may request an expedited administrative hearing through the Special Education Unit of the Office of Administrative Hearings or by utilizing the dispute provisions of the 504 Policy and Procedures.

When an appeal relating to the placement of the student or the manifestation determination has been requested by either the parent/guardian or CSCE, the student shall remain in the interim alternative educational setting pending the decision of the hearing officer in accordance with state and federal law, including 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k), until the expiration of the forty-five (45) day time period provided for in an interim alternative educational setting, unless the parent/guardian and CSCE agree otherwise.

In accordance with 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k)(3), if a parent/guardian disagrees with any decision regarding placement, or the manifestation determination, or if the Charter School believes that maintaining the current placement of the child is substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others, the parent/guardian or Charter School may request a hearing.

In such an appeal, a hearing officer may: (1) return a child with a disability to the placement from which the child was removed; or (2) order a change in placement of a child with a disability to an appropriate Page 83 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

interim alternative educational setting for not more than 45 school days if the hearing officer determines that maintaining the current placement of such child is substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others.

5. Special Circumstances

CSCE personnel may consider any unique circumstances on a case-by-case basis when determining whether to order a change in placement for a child with a disability who violates a code of student conduct.

The Head of School or designee may remove a student to an interim alternative educational setting for not more than forty-five (45) days without regard to whether the behavior is determined to be a manifestation of the student's disability in cases where a student:

- a. Carries or possesses a weapon, as defined in 18 U.S.C. Section 930, to or at school, on school premises, or to or at a school function;
- b. Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance, while at school, on school premises, or at a school function; or
- c. Has inflicted serious bodily injury, as defined by 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k)(7)(D), upon a person while at school, on school premises, or at a school function.
- 6. Interim Alternative Educational Setting

The student's interim alternative educational setting shall be determined by the student's IEP/504 Team.

7. Procedures for Students Not Yet Eligible for Special Education Services

A student who has not been identified as an individual with disabilities pursuant to IDEIA and who has violated the CSCE's disciplinary procedures may assert the procedural safeguards granted under this administrative regulation only if CSCE had knowledge that the student was disabled before the behavior occurred.

CSCE shall be deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability if one of the following conditions exists:

- a. The parent/guardian has expressed concern in writing, or orally if the parent/guardian does not know how to write or has a disability that prevents a written statement, to CSCE supervisory or administrative personnel, or to one of the child's teachers, that the student is in need of special education or related services.
- b. The parent/guardian has requested an evaluation of the child.

Page 84 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

c. The child's teacher, or other CSCE personnel, has expressed specific concerns about a pattern of behavior demonstrated by the child, directly to the director of special education or to other CSCE supervisory personnel.

If CSCE knew or should have known the student had a disability under any of the three (3) circumstances described above, the student may assert any of the protections available to IDEIA-eligible children with disabilities, including the right to stay-put.

If CSCE had no basis for knowledge of the student's disability, it shall proceed with the proposed discipline. CSCE shall conduct an expedited evaluation if requested by the parents; however the student shall remain in the education placement determined by the CSCE pending the results of the evaluation.

CSCE shall not be deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability if the parent/guardian has not allowed an evaluation, refused services, or if the student has been evaluated and determined to not be eligible.

Page 85 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Suicide Prevention Policy

The Board of Directors of Community School for Creative Education ("Charter School") recognizes that suicide is a major cause of death among youth and should be taken seriously. To attempt to reduce suicidal behavior and its impact on students and families, the Board of Directors has developed prevention strategies and intervention procedures.

In compliance with Education Code section 215, this policy has been developed in consultation with the Charter School and community stakeholders, the Charter School-employed mental health professionals (e.g., school counselors, psychologists, social workers, nurses), administrators, other school staff members, parents/guardians/caregivers, students, local health agencies and professionals, the county mental health plan, law enforcement, and community organizations in planning, implementing, and evaluating the Charter School's strategies for suicide prevention and intervention. The Charter School must work in conjunction with local government agencies, community-based organizations, and other community supports to identify additional resources.

To ensure the policies regarding suicide prevention are properly adopted, implemented, and updated, the Charter School shall appoint an individual (or team) to serve as the suicide prevention point of contact for the Charter School. The suicide prevention point of contact for the Charter School and the Head of School shall ensure proper coordination and consultation with the county mental health plan if a referral is made for mental health or related services on behalf of a student who is a Medi-Cal beneficiary. This policy shall be reviewed and revised as indicated, at least annually in conjunction with the previously mentioned community stakeholders.

Staff Development

The Charter School, along with its partners, has carefully reviewed available staff training to ensure it promotes the mental health model of suicide prevention and does not encourage the use of the stress model to explain suicide.

Training shall be provided for all school staff members. It may also be provided, when appropriate, for other adults on campus (such as substitutes and intermittent staff, volunteers, interns, tutors, coaches, and afterschool staff). Training shall include the following:

- 1. All suicide prevention trainings shall be offered under the direction of mental health professionals (e.g., school counselors, school psychologists, other public entity professionals, such as psychologists or social workers) who have received advanced training specific to suicide. Staff training may be adjusted year-to-year based on previous professional development activities and emerging best practices.
- 2. At least annually, all staff shall receive training on the risk factors and warning signs of suicide, suicide prevention, intervention, referral, and postvention.
- 3. At a minimum, all staff shall participate in training on the core components of suicide prevention (identification of suicide risk factors and warning signs, prevention, intervention, referral, and postvention) at the beginning of their employment or annually. Core components of the general suicide prevention training shall include:

Page 86 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- a. Suicide risk factors, warning signs, and protective factors.
- b. How to talk with a student about thoughts of suicide.
- c. How to respond appropriately to the youth who has suicidal thoughts. Such responses shall include constant supervision of any student judged to be at risk for suicide and an immediate referral for a suicide risk assessment.
- d. Emphasis on immediately referring (same day) any student who is identified to be at risk of suicide for assessment while staying under constant monitoring by staff member.
- e. Emphasis on reducing stigma associated with mental illness and that early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide.
- f. Reviewing the data annually to look for any patterns or trends of the prevalence or occurrence of suicide ideation, attempts, or death. Data from the California School Climate, Health, and Learning Survey (Cal-SCHLS) should also be analyzed to identify school climate deficits and drive program development. See the Cal-SCHLS Web site at http://cal-schls.wested.org/.
- g. Information regarding groups of students judged by the school, and available research, to be at elevated risk for suicide. These groups include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - i. Youth affected by suicide.
 - ii. Youth with a history of suicide ideation or attempts.
 - iii. Youth with disabilities, mental illness, or substance abuse disorders.
 - iv. Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth.
 - v. Youth experiencing homelessness or in out-of-home settings, such as foster care.
 - vi. Youth who have suffered traumatic experiences.
- 4. In addition to initial orientations to the core components of suicide prevention, ongoing annual staff professional development for all staff may include the following components:
 - a. The impact of traumatic stress on emotional and mental health.
 - b. Common misconceptions about suicide.
 - c. Charter School and community suicide prevention resources.
 - d. Appropriate messaging about suicide (correct terminology, safe messaging guidelines).
 - e. The factors associated with suicide (risk factors, warning signs, protective factors).
 - f. How to identify youth who may be at risk of suicide.
 - g. Appropriate ways to interact with a youth who is demonstrating emotional distress or is suicidal. Specifically, how to talk with a student about their thoughts of suicide and (based on the Charter School's guidelines) how to respond to such thinking; how to talk with a student about thoughts of suicide and appropriately respond and provide support based on the Charter School's guidelines.
 - h. Charter School-approved procedures for responding to suicide risk (including multi-tiered systems of support and referrals). Such procedures should emphasize that the suicidal student should be constantly supervised until a suicide risk assessment is completed.
 - i. Charter School-approved procedures for responding to the aftermath of suicidal behavior (suicidal behavior postvention).
 - j. Responding after a suicide occurs (suicide postvention).
 - k. Resources regarding youth suicide prevention.
 - 1. Emphasis on stigma reduction and the fact that early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide.

Page 87 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

m. Emphasis that any student who is identified to be at risk of suicide is to be immediately referred (same day) for assessment while being constantly monitored by a staff member.

Employee Qualifications and Scope of Services

Employees of the Charter School must act only within the authorization and scope of their credential or license. While it is expected that school professionals are able to identify suicide risk factors and warning signs, and to prevent the immediate risk of a suicidal behavior, treatment of suicidal ideation is typically beyond the scope of services offered in the school setting. In addition, treatment of the mental health challenges often associated with suicidal thinking typically requires mental health resources beyond what schools are able to provide.

Parents, Guardians, and Caregivers Participation and Education

- 1. Parents/guardians/caregivers may be included in suicide prevention efforts. At a minimum, the Charter School shall share this Policy with parents/guardians/caregivers by notifying them where a complete copy of the policy is available.
- 2. This Suicide Prevention Policy shall be easily accessible and prominently displayed on the the Charter School's Web page and included in the Family Handbook.
- 3. Parents/guardians/caregivers should be invited to provide input on the development and implementation of this policy.
- 4. All parents/guardians/caregivers may have access to suicide prevention training that addresses the following:
 - a. Suicide risk factors, warning signs, and protective factors.
 - b. How to talk with a student about thoughts of suicide.
 - c. How to respond appropriately to the student who has suicidal thoughts. Such responses shall include constant supervision of any student judged to be at risk for suicide and referral for an immediate suicide risk assessment.

Student Participation and Education

Messaging about suicide has an effect on suicidal thinking and behaviors. Consequently, the Charter School along with its partners has carefully reviewed and will continue to review all materials and resources used in awareness efforts to ensure they align with best practices for safe messaging about suicide. Suicide prevention strategies may include, but not be limited to, efforts to promote a positive school climate that enhances students' feelings of connectedness with the Charter School and is characterized by caring staff and harmonious interrelationships among students.

The Charter School's instructional and student support program shall promote the healthy mental, emotional, and social development of students including, but not limited to, the development of problem-solving skills, coping skills, and resilience. The instruction shall not use the stress model to explain suicide.

Page 88 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

The Charter School's instructional curriculum may include information about suicide prevention, as appropriate or needed. If suicide prevention is included in the Charter School's instructional curriculum, it shall consider the grade level and age of the students and be delivered and discussed in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of young students. Under the supervision of an appropriately trained individual acting within the scope of their credential or license, students shall:

- 1. Receive developmentally appropriate, student-centered education about the warning signs of mental health challenges and emotional distress. The content of the education may include:
 - a. Coping strategies for dealing with stress and trauma.
 - b. How to recognize behaviors (warning signs) and life issues (risk factors) associated with suicide and mental health issues in oneself and others.
 - c. Help-seeking strategies for oneself and others, including how to engage school-based and community resources and refer peers for help.
 - d. Emphasis on reducing the stigma associated with mental illness and the fact that early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide.
- 2. Receive developmentally appropriate guidance regarding the Charter School's suicide prevention, intervention, and referral procedures.

Student-focused suicide prevention education can be incorporated into classroom curricula (e.g., health classes, orientation classes, science, and physical education).

The Charter School will support the creation and implementation of programs and/or activities on campus that raise awareness about mental wellness and suicide prevention.

Intervention and Emergency Procedures

The Charter School designates the following administrators to act as the primary and secondary suicide prevention liaisons:

- 1. School Psychologist
- 2. Head of School

Whenever a staff member suspects or has knowledge of a student's suicidal intentions, they shall promptly notify the primary designated suicide prevention liaison. If this primary suicide prevention liaison is unavailable, the staff shall promptly notify the secondary suicide prevention liaison.

The suicide prevention liaison shall immediately notify the Head of School or designee, who shall then notify the student's parent/guardian as soon as possible if appropriate and in the best interest of the student. Determination of notification to parents/guardians/caregivers should follow a formal initial assessment to ensure that the student is not endangered by parental notification.

The suicide prevention liaison shall also refer the student to mental health resources at the Charter School or in the community.

Page 89 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

When a student is in imminent danger (has access to a gun, is on a rooftop, or in other unsafe conditions), a call shall be made to 911.

When a suicide attempt or threat is reported on campus or at a school-related activity, the suicide prevention liaison shall, at a minimum:

- 1. Ensure the student's physical safety by one or more of the following, as appropriate:
 - a. Securing immediate medical treatment if a suicide attempt has occurred.
 - b. Securing law enforcement and/or other emergency assistance if a suicidal act is being actively threatened.
 - c. Keeping the student under continuous adult supervision until the parent/guardian and/or appropriate support agent or agency can be contacted and has the opportunity to intervene.
 - d. Remaining calm, keeping in mind the student is overwhelmed, confused, and emotionally distressed.
 - e. Moving all other students out of the immediate area.
 - f. Not sending the student away or leaving him/her alone, even to go to the restroom.
 - g. Providing comfort to the student, listening and allowing the student to talk and being comfortable with moments of silence.
 - h. Promising privacy and help, but not promising confidentiality.
- 2. Document the incident in writing as soon as feasible.
- 3. Follow up with the parent/guardian and student in a timely manner to provide referrals to appropriate services as needed and coordinate and consult with the county mental health plan if a referral is made for mental health or related services on behalf of a student who is a Medi-Cal beneficiary.
- 4. After a referral is made, the Charter School shall verify with the parent/guardian that the follow up treatment has been accessed. Parents/guardians will be required to provide documentation of care for the student. If parents/guardians refuse or neglect to access treatment for a student who has been identified to be at risk for suicide or in emotional distress, the suicide prevention liaisons shall meet with the parent to identify barriers to treatment (e.g., cultural stigma, financial issues) and work to rectify the situation and build understanding of care. If follow up care is still not provided, the Charter School may contact Child Protective Services.
- 5. Provide access to counselors or other appropriate personnel to listen to and support students and staff who are directly or indirectly involved with the incident at the Charter School.
- 6. Provide an opportunity for all who respond to the incident to debrief, evaluate the effectiveness of the strategies used, and make recommendations for future actions.

In the event a suicide occurs or is attempted on the Charter School campus, the suicide prevention liaison shall follow the crisis intervention procedures contained in the Charter School's safety plan. After consultation with the Head of School or designee and the student's parent/guardian about facts that may be divulged in accordance with the laws governing confidentiality of student record information, the Head of School or designee may provide

Page 90 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

students, parents/guardians, and staff with information, counseling, and/or referrals to community agencies as needed. The Charter School's staff may receive assistance from the Charter School's counselors or other mental health professionals in determining how best to discuss the suicide or attempted suicide with students.

In the event a suicide occurs or is attempted off the Charter School's campus and unrelated to school activities, the Head of School or designee shall take the following steps to support the student:

- 1. Contact the parent/guardian and offer support to the family.
- 2. Discuss with the family how they would like the Charter School to respond to the attempt while minimizing widespread rumors among teachers, staff, and students.
- 3. Obtain permission from the parent/guardian to share information to ensure the facts regarding the crisis are correct.
- 4. The suicide prevention liaisons shall handle any media requests.
- 5. Provide care and determine appropriate support to affected students.
- 6. Offer to the student and parent/guardian steps for reintegration to school. Re-integration may include obtaining a written release from the parent/guardian to speak with any health care providers; conferring with the student and parent/guardian about any specific requests on how to handle the situation; informing the student's teachers about possible days of absences; allowing accommodations for make-up work (being understanding that missed assignments may add stress to the student); appropriate staff maintaining ongoing contact with the student to monitor the student's actions and mood; and working with the parent/guardian to involve the student in an aftercare plan.

Supporting Students during or after a Mental Health Crisis

Students shall be encouraged through the education program and in the Charter School's activities to notify a teacher, the Head of School, another Charter School administrator, psychologist, counselor, suicide prevention liaisons, or other adult when they are experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's suicidal intentions. The Charter School staff should treat each report seriously, calmly, and with active listening and support. Staff should be non-judgmental to students and discuss with the student, and parent/guardian, about additional resources to support the student.

Responding After a Suicide Death (Postvention)

A death by suicide in the school community (whether by a student or staff member) can have devastating consequences on the school community, including students and staff. The Charter School shall follow the below action plan for responding to a suicide death, which incorporates both immediate and long-term steps and objectives:

The suicide prevention liaison shall:

1. Coordinate with the Head of School to:

Page 91 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- a. Confirm death and cause.
- b. Identify a staff member to contact the deceased's family (within 24 hours).
- c. Enact the Suicide Postvention Response.
- d. Notify all staff members (ideally in-person or via phone, not via e-mail or mass notification).
- 2. Coordinate an all-staff meeting, to include:
 - a. Notification (if not already conducted) to staff about suicide death.
 - b. Emotional support and resources available to staff.
 - c. Notification to students about suicide death and the availability of support services (if this is the protocol that is decided by administration).
 - d. Share information that is relevant and that which you have permission to disclose.
- 3. Prepare staff to respond to needs of students regarding the following:
 - a. Review of protocols for referring students for support/assessment.
 - b. Talking points for staff to notify students.
 - c. Resources available to students (on and off campus).
- 4. Identify students significantly affected by suicide death and other students at risk of imitative behavior.
- 5. Identify students affected by suicide death but not at risk of imitative behavior.
- 6. Communicate with the larger school community about the suicide death.
- 7. Consider funeral arrangements for the family and school community.
- 8. Respond to memorial requests in respectful and non-harmful manner; responses should be handled in a thoughtful way and their impact on other students should be considered.
- 9. Identify media spokesperson if needed.
- 10. Include long-term suicide postvention responses:
 - a. Consider important dates (i.e., anniversary of death, deceased birthday, graduation, or other significant event) and how these will be addressed.
 - b. Support siblings, close friends, teachers, and/or students of the deceased.
 - c. Consider long-term memorials and how they may impact students who are emotionally vulnerable and at risk of suicide.

Student Identification Cards

The Charter School will include the telephone number for the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline (1-800-273-8255) and the National Domestic Violence Hotline (1-800-799-7233) on all student identification

Page 92 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

cards. The Charter School will also include the number for the Crisis Text Line, which can be accessed by texting HOME to 741741 and a local suicide prevention hotline on all student identification cards.

Professional Boundaries: Staff/Student Interaction Policy

The School recognizes its responsibility to make and enforce all rules and regulations governing student and employee behavior to bring about the safest and most learning-conducive environment possible.

Corporal Punishment

Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal punishment includes the willful infliction of, or willfully causing the infliction of, physical pain on a student.

For purposes of this policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee's use of force that is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent damage to property.

For clarification purposes, the following examples are offered for direction and guidance of School personnel:

- A. Examples of PERMITTED actions (NOT corporal punishment)
 - 1. Stopping a student from fighting with another student;
 - 2. Preventing a pupil from committing an act of vandalism;
 - 3. Defending yourself from physical injury or assault by a student;
 - 4. Forcing a pupil to give up a weapon or dangerous object;
 - 5. Requiring an athletic team to participate in strenuous physical training activities designed to strengthen or condition team members or improve their coordination, agility, or physical skills;
 - 6. Engaging in group calisthenics, team drills, or other physical education or voluntary recreational activities.
- B. Examples of PROHIBITED actions (corporal punishment)
 - 1. Hitting, shoving, pushing, or physically restraining a student as a means of control;
 - 2. Making unruly students do push-ups, run laps, or perform other physical acts that cause pain or discomfort as a form of punishment;
 - 3. Paddling, swatting, slapping, grabbing, pinching, kicking, or otherwise causing physical pain.

Acceptable and Unacceptable Staff/Student Behavior

Page 93 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

This policy is intended to guide all School faculty and staff in conducting themselves in a way that reflects the high standards of behavior and professionalism required of school employees and to specify the boundaries between students and staff.

Although this policy gives specific, clear direction, it is each staff member's obligation to avoid situations that could prompt suspicion by parents, students, colleagues, or school leaders. One viable standard that can be quickly applied, when you are unsure if certain conduct is acceptable, is to ask yourself, "Would I be engaged in this conduct if my family or colleagues were standing next to me?"

For the purposes of this policy, the term "boundaries" is defined as acceptable professional behavior by staff members while interacting with a student. Trespassing the boundaries of a student/teacher relationship is deemed an abuse of power and a betrayal of public trust.

Some activities may seem innocent from a staff member's perspective, but can be perceived as fliration or sexual insinuation from a student or parent point of view. The objective of the following lists of acceptable and unacceptable behaviors is not to restrain innocent, positive relationships between staff and students, but to prevent relationships that could lead to, or may be perceived as, sexual misconduct.

Staff must understand their own responsibility for ensuring that they do not cross the boundaries as written in this policy. Disagreeing with the wording or intent of the established boundaries will be considered irrelevant for disciplinary purposes. Thus, it is crucial that all employees learn this policy thoroughly and apply the lists of acceptable and unacceptable behaviors to their daily activities. Although sincere, competent interaction with students certainly fosters learning, student/staff interactions must have boundaries surrounding potential activities, locations and intentions.

Duty to Report Suspected Misconduct

When any employee reasonably suspects or believes that another staff member may have crossed the boundaries specified in this policy, he or she must immediately report the matter to a school administrator. All reports shall be as confidential as possible under the circumstances. It is the duty of the administrator to investigate and thoroughly report the situation. Employees must also report to the administration any awareness or concern of student behavior that crosses boundaries or where a student appears to be at risk for sexual abuse.

Examples of Specific Behaviors The following examples are not an exhaustive list:

<u>Unacceptable Staff/Student Behaviors (Violations of this Policy)</u>

- (a) Giving gifts to an individual student that are of a personal and intimate nature.
- (b) Kissing of any kind.
- (c) Any type of unnecessary physical contact with a student in a private situation.
- (d) Intentionally being alone with a student away from the school.
- (e) Making or participating in sexually inappropriate comments.
- (f) Sexual jokes.

Page 94 of 119


2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- (g) Seeking emotional involvement with a student for your benefit.
- (h) Listening to or telling stories that are sexually oriented.
- (i) Discussing inappropriate personal troubles or intimate issues with a student in an attempt to gain their support and understanding.
- (j) Becoming involved with a student so that a reasonable person may suspect inappropriate behavior.

Unacceptable Staff/Student Behaviors without Parent and Supervisor Permission

(These behaviors should only be exercised when a staff member has parent and supervisor permission.)

- (a) Giving students a ride to/from school or school activities.
- (b) Being alone in a room with a student at school with the door closed.
- (c) Allowing students in your home.

Cautionary Staff/Student Behaviors

(These behaviors should only be exercised when a reasonable and prudent person, acting as an educator, is prevented from using better practice or behavior. Staff members should inform their supervisor of the circumstance and occurrence prior to or immediately after the occurrence)

- (a) Remarks about the physical attributes or development of anyone.
- (b) Excessive attention toward a particular student.
- (c) Sending emails, text messages or letters to students if the content is not about school activities.

Acceptable and Recommended Staff/Student Behaviors

- (a) Getting parents' written consent for any after-school activity.
- (b) Obtaining formal approval to take students off school property for activities such as field trips or competitions.
- (c) Emails, text, phone and instant messages to students must be very professional and pertaining to school activities or classes (Communication should be limited to school technology).
- (d) Keeping the door open when alone with a student.
- (e) Keeping reasonable space between you and your students.
- (f) Stopping and correcting students if they cross your own personal boundaries.
- (g) Keeping parents informed when a significant issue develops about a student.
- (h) Keeping after-class discussions with a student professional and brief.
- (i) Asking for advice from fellow staff or administrators if you find yourself in a difficult situation related to boundaries.

Page 95 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- (j) Involving your supervisor if conflict arises with the student.
- (k) Informing the Head of School about situations that have the potential to become more severe.
- (l) Making detailed notes about an incident that could evolve into a more serious situation later.
- (m) Recognizing the responsibility to stop unacceptable behavior of students or coworkers.
- (n) Asking another staff member to be present if you will be alone with any type of special needs student.
- (o) Asking another staff member to be present when you must be alone with a student after regular school hours.
- (p) Giving students praise and recognition without touching them.
- (q) Pats on the back, high fives and handshakes are acceptable.
- (r) Keeping your professional conduct a high priority.
- (s) Asking yourself if your actions are worth your job and career.



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Uniform Complaint Policy and Procedures

Community School for Creative Education ("CSCE" or the "Charter School") complies with applicable federal and state laws and regulations. CSCE is the local agency primarily responsible for compliance with federal and state laws and regulations governing educational programs. Pursuant to this policy, persons responsible for compliance and/or conducting investigations shall be knowledgeable about the laws and programs which they are assigned to investigate.

<u>Scope</u>

This complaint procedure is adopted to provide a uniform system of complaint processing ("UCP") for the following types of complaints:

- (1) Complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying against any protected group, including actual or perceived discrimination, on the basis of the actual or perceived characteristics of age, ancestry, color, mental disability, physical disability, ethnic group identification, immigration status, citizenship, gender expression, gender identity, gender, genetic information, nationality, national origin, race or ethnicity, religion, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, or on the basis of a person's association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics in any CSCE program or activity.
- (2) Complaints of violations of state or federal law and regulations governing the following programs:
 - National School Lunch Program (NSLP);
 - Accommodations for Pregnant, Parenting or Lactating Students;
 - Education of Students in Foster Care, Students who are Homeless, former Juvenile Court Students now enrolled in a public school, and Migratory Children and Children of Military Families;
 - Every Student Succeeds Act Programs (Titles I-VII), including improving academic achievement, limited English proficiency, and migrant education;
 - School Safety Plans;
 - Special Education Programs, and
 - Tobacco-Use Prevention Education.
- (3) Complaints alleging that a pupil enrolled in a public school was required to pay a pupil fee for participation in an educational activity as those terms are defined below.

Page 97 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- a. "Educational activity" means an activity offered by the Charter School that constitutes an integral fundamental part of elementary and secondary education, including, but not limited to, curricular and extracurricular activities.
- b. "Pupil fee" means a fee, deposit or other charge imposed on pupils, or a pupil's parents or guardians, in violation of Section 49011 of the Education Code and Section 5 of Article IX of the California Constitution, which require educational activities to be provided free of charge to all pupils without regard to their families' ability or willingness to pay fees or request special waivers, as provided for in *Hartzell v. Connell* (1984) 35 Cal.3d 899. A pupil fee includes, but is not limited to, all of the following:
 - i. A fee charged to a pupil as a condition for registering for school or classes, or as a condition for participation in a class or an extracurricular activity, regardless of whether the class or activity is elective or compulsory or is for credit.
 - ii. A security deposit, or other payment, that a pupil is required to make to obtain a lock, locker, book, class apparatus, musical instrument, uniform or other materials or equipment.
 - iii. A purchase that a pupil is required to make to obtain materials, supplies, equipment or uniforms associated with an educational activity.
- c. A pupil fees complaint and complaints regarding local control and accountability plans ("LCAP") only, may be filed anonymously (without an identifying signature), if the complaint provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance with Education Code Sections 52060-52077, including an allegation of a violation of Education Code Sections 47606.5 or 47607.3, as referenced in Education Code Section 52075, regarding local control and accountability plans.
- d. If CSCE finds merit in a pupil fees complaint, or the California Department of Education ("CDE") finds merit in an appeal, CSCE shall provide a remedy to all affected pupils, and parents and guardians that, where applicable, includes reasonable efforts by CSCE to ensure full reimbursement to all affected pupils and parents and guardians, subject to procedures established through regulations adopted by the state board.
- e. Nothing in this Policy shall be interpreted to prohibit solicitation of voluntary donations of funds or property, voluntary participation in fundraising activities, or CSCE and other entities from providing pupils prizes or other recognition for voluntarily participating in fundraising activities.
- (4) Complaints alleging noncompliance with the requirements governing the Local Control Funding Formula ("LCFF") or LCAP under Sections 47606.5 and 47607.3 of the Education Code, as applicable. If CSCE adopts a School Plan for Student Achievement in addition to its LCAP, complaints of noncompliance with

Page 98 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

the requirements of the School Plan for Student Achievement under Education Code sections 64000, 64001, 65000, and 65001 shall also fall under this Policy.

- (5) Complaints alleging noncompliance regarding child nutrition programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 49490-49590 are governed by Title 7, Code of Federal Regulations ("C.F.R.") sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d) and Title 5, California Code of Regulations ("C.C.R.") sections 15580 - 15584.
- (6) Complaints alleging noncompliance regarding special education programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 56000-56865 and 59000-59300 are governed by the procedures set forth in 5 C.C.R. sections 3200-3205 and 34 C.F.R. sections 300.151-300.153.

CSCE acknowledges and respects every individual's rights to privacy. Unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints shall be investigated in a manner that protects (to the greatest extent reasonably possible and as permitted by law) the confidentiality of the parties, including but not limited to the identity of the complainant, and maintains the integrity of the process. CSCE cannot guarantee anonymity of the complainant. This includes keeping the identity of the complainant confidential. However, CSCE will attempt to do so as appropriate. CSCE may find it necessary to disclose information regarding the complainant to the extent required by law or necessary to carry out the investigation or proceedings, as determined by the Head of School or designee on a case-by-case basis.

CSCE prohibits any form of retaliation against any complainant in the complaint process, including but not limited to a complainant's filing of a complaint or the reporting of instances of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying. Such participation shall not in any way affect the status, grades or work assignments of the complainant.

Compliance Officer

The Board of Directors designates the following compliance officer(s) to receive and investigate complaints and to ensure CSCE's compliance with law:

Phillip Gedeon Head of School 2111 International Boulevard Oakland, California 94606 (510) 686-4131

The Head of School or designee shall ensure that the compliance officer(s) designated to investigate complaints are knowledgeable about the laws and programs for which they are responsible. Designated employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Head of School or designee.

Should a complaint be filed against the Head of School, the compliance officer for that case shall be the President of the CSCE Board of Directors.

Notifications

Page 99 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

The Head of School or designee shall annually provide written notification of the Charter School's UCP to employees, students, parents and/or guardians, advisory committees, private school officials and other interested parties as applicable.

The annual notice shall be in English, and when necessary under Education Code Section 48985, in the applicable primary language, if fifteen (15) percent or more of the pupils enrolled in the Charter School speak a single primary language other than English.

The Head of School or designee shall make available copies of the Charter School's UCP free of charge.

The annual notice shall include the following:

- (a) A list of the types of complaints that fall under the scope of the UCP and the state and federal provisions that govern complaints regarding child nutrition programs and special education programs.
- (b) A statement clearly identifying any California State preschool programs that CSCE is operating as exempt from licensing pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 1596.792(o) and corresponding Title 5 health and safety regulations, and any California State preschool programs that CSCE is operating pursuant to Title 22 licensing requirements.
- (c) A statement that CSCE is primarily responsible for compliance with federal and state laws and regulations.
- (d) A statement that a pupil enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a pupil fee for participation in an educational activity.
- (e) A statement identifying the title of the compliance officer, and the identity(ies) of the person(s) currently occupying that position, if known.
- (f) A statement that if a UCP complaint is filed directly with the CDE and the CDE determines that it merits direct intervention, the CDE shall complete an investigation and provide a written decision to the complainant within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of the complaint, unless the parties have agreed to extend the timeline or the CDE documents exceptional circumstances and informs the complainant.
- (g) A statement that the complainant has a right to appeal CSCE's decision to the CDE by filing a written appeal within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of CSCE's decision, except if CSCE has used its UCP to address a complaint that is not subject to the UCP requirements.
- (h) A statement that a complainant who appeals CSCE's decision on a UCP complaint to the CDE shall receive a written appeal decision within sixty (60) calendar days of the CDE's receipt of the appeal, unless extended by written agreement with the complainant or the CDE documents exceptional circumstances and informs the complainant.
- (i) A statement that if CSCE finds merit in a UCP complaint, or the CDE finds merit in an appeal, CSCE shall take corrective actions consistent with the requirements of existing law that will provide a remedy to the affected student and/or parent/guardian as applicable.

Page 100 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- (j) A statement advising the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available under state or federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying laws, if applicable, and of the appeal pursuant to Education Code Section 262.3.
- (k) A statement that copies of the CSCE's UCP shall be available free of charge.

Procedures

The following procedures shall be used to address all complaints which allege that CSCE has violated federal or state laws or regulations enumerated in the "Scope" section above. Compliance officers shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions for at least three (3) calendar years.

All parties involved in allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed, when a complaint meeting or hearing is scheduled, and when a decision or ruling is made.

• Step 1: Filing of Complaint

Any individual, including a person's duly authorized representative or an interested third party, public agency, or organization may file a written complaint of alleged noncompliance by the Charter School or unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying pursuant to this Policy.

A complaint of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying may be filed by an individual who alleges that that individual has personally suffered unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying or by one who believes any specific class of individuals has been subjected to unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying, or by a duly authorized representative who alleges that an individual student has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying. An investigation of alleged unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying a complaint no later than six (6) months from the date the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying occurred, or the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying unless the time for filing is extended by the Head of School or designee, upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. Such extension by the Head of School or designee for good cause for a period not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days following the expiration of the six-month time period. The Head of School shall respond immediately upon a receipt of a request for extension.

All other complaints under this Policy shall be filed not later than one (1) year from the date the alleged violation occurred. For complaints relating to the LCAP, the date of the alleged violation is the date on which the CSCE Board of Directors approved the LCAP or the annual update was adopted by CSCE.

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints received, providing each with a code number and date stamp.

Complaints filed pursuant to this Policy must be in writing and signed. A signature may be handwritten, typed (including in an email) or electronically generated. Only complaints regarding pupil fees or LCAP

Page 101 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

compliance may be filed anonymously as set forth in this Policy. If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, CSCE staff shall assist the complainant in the filing of the complaint.

• Step 2: Mediation

Within three (3) business days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally discuss with the complainant the possibility of using mediation. If the complainant agrees to mediation, the compliance officer shall make arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of an unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaint, the compliance officer shall ensure that all parties agree to make the mediator a party to related confidential information.

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the Charter School's timelines for investigating and resolving the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time.

• Step 3: Investigation of Complaint

The compliance officer is encouraged to hold an investigative meeting within five (5) business days of receiving the complaint or an unsuccessful attempt to mediate the complaint. This meeting shall provide an opportunity for the complainant and/or the complainant's representative to repeat the complaint orally.

The complainant and/or the complainant's representative shall have an opportunity to present the complaint and evidence or information leading to evidence to support the allegations in the complaint.

A complainant's refusal to provide the compliance officer with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, or a complainant's failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation or a complainant's engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation.

CSCE's refusal to provide the compliance officer with access to records and/or other information related to the allegation in the complaint, or its failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation or its engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in a finding, based on evidence collected, that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.

• Step 4: Final Written Decision

The Charter School shall issue an investigation report (the "Decision") based on the evidence. CSCE's Decision shall be in writing and sent to the complainant within sixty (60) calendar days of CSCE's receipt unless the time frame is extended with the written agreement of the complainant. CSCE's decision shall be written in English and in the language of the complainant whenever feasible or as required by law.

The Decision shall include:

Page 102 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- 1. The findings of fact based on evidence gathered.
- 2. The conclusion(s) provide a clear determination for each allegation as to whether CSCE is in compliance with the relevant law.
- 3. Disposition of the complaint.
- 4. Rationale for such disposition.
- 5. Corrective actions, if CSCE finds merit in the complaint and any are warranted or required by law.
- 6. Notice of the complainant's right to appeal CSCE's Decision within thirty (30) calendar days to the CDE and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal, except when CSCE has used its UCP to address complaints that are not subject to the UCP.
- 7. For unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints arising under state law, notice that the complainant must wait until sixty (60) calendar days have elapsed from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil law remedies.
- 8. For unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints arising under federal law such complaints may be made at any time to the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights.

If an employee is disciplined as a result of the complaint, the Decision shall simply state that effective action was taken and that the employee was informed of CSCE's expectations. The Decision shall not give any further information as to the nature of the disciplinary action except as required by applicable law.

Appeals to the CDE

If dissatisfied with CSCE's Decision, the complainant may appeal in writing to the CDE within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving CSCE's Decision. The appeal shall be accompanied by a copy of the complaint filed with CSCE and a copy of the Decision. When appealing to the CDE, the complainant must specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and whether the facts are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied, including at least one of the following:

- 1. The Charter School failed to follow its complaint procedures.
- 2. Relative to the allegations of the complaint, the Charter School's Decision lacks material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law.
- 3. The material findings of fact in the Charter School's Decision are not supported by substantial evidence.
- 4. The legal conclusion in the Charter School's Decision is inconsistent with the law.
- 6. In a case in which the Charter School's Decision found noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to provide a proper remedy.

Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant has appealed CSCE's Decision, the Head of School or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the notification:

- 1. A copy of the original complaint.
- 2. A copy of the Decision.
- 3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the Charter

Page 103 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

School, if not covered by the Decision.

- 4. A copy of the investigation file, including but not limited to all notes, interviews, and documents submitted by all parties and gathered by the compliance officer.
- 5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint.
- 6. A copy of the Charter School's complaint procedures.
- 7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE.

If the CDE determines the appeal raises issues not contained in the local complaint, the CDE will refer those new issues back to CSCE for resolution as a new complaint. If the CDE notifies CSCE that its Decision failed to address an allegation raised by the complaint and subject to the UCP process, CSCE will investigate and address such allegation(s) in accordance with the UCP requirements and provide the CDE and the appellant with an amended Decision addressing such allegation(s) within twenty (20) calendar days of the CDE's notification. The amended Decision will inform the appellant of the right to separately appeal the amended Decision with respect to the complaint allegation(s) not addressed in the original Decision.

Within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of the CDE's appeal Decision pursuant to 5 C.C.R. section 4633(f)(2) or (3), either party may request reconsideration by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("SSPI") or the SSPI's designee. The request for reconsideration shall specify and explain the reason(s) for contesting the findings of fact, conclusions of law, or corrective actions in the CDE's appeal Decision. The SSPI will not consider any information not previously submitted to the CDE by a party during the appeal unless such information was unknown to the party at the time of the appeal and, with due diligence, could not have become known to the party. Pending the SSPI's response to a request for reconsideration, the CDE appeal Decision remains in effect and enforceable, unless stayed by a court.

The CDE may directly intervene in the complaint without waiting for action by CSCE when one of the conditions listed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 4650 exists, including but not limited to cases in which through no fault of the complainant, CSCE has not taken action within sixty (60) calendar days of the date the complaint was filed with the Charter School.

Civil Law Remedies

A complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of CSCE's complaint procedures. Complainants may seek assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest attorneys. Civil law remedies that may be imposed by a court include, but are not limited to, injunctions and restraining orders. For unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaints arising under state law, however, a complainant must wait until sixty (60) calendar days have elapsed from the filing of an appeal with the CDE before pursuing civil law remedies. The moratorium does not apply to injunctive relief and is applicable only if the Charter School has appropriately, and in a timely manner, apprised the complainant of their right to file a complaint.



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURE FORM

Last Name:		First 1	Name/MI:		
Student Name (if applicable)	:		_Grade:	Date of Birth:	
Street Address/Apt. #:					
City:		State:		_ Zip Code:	
Home Phone:			Work	Phone:	
School/Office of Alleged Vie	olation:				

For allegation(s) of noncompliance, please check the program or activity referred to in your complaint, if applicable:

National School Lunch	Foster/Homeless Youth	Tobacco-Use Prevention
Program	No Child Left Behind	Education
Migrant Education	Programs	Lactating Pupils
 Special Education Pupil Fees 	Every Student Succeeds Act Prog.	Juvenile Court School Pupils
	Local Control Funding Formula/ Local Control and Accountability Plan	

For allegation(s) of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying, please check the basis of the unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying described in your complaint, if applicable:

Age	Gender / Gender Expression /	Sex (Actual or Perceived)
Ancestry	Gender Identity	Sexual Orientation (Actual or
Color	Genetic Information	Perceived)
Disability(Mental or Physical)	Nationality/National Origin	Based on association with a
Ethnic Group Identification	Race or Ethnicity	person or group with one or more of these actual or
Medical Condition	Religion	perceived characteristics
Immigration Status/Citizenship		Marital Status

1. Please give facts about the complaint. Provide details such as the names of those involved, dates, whether Page 105 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

witnesses were present, etc., that may be helpful to the complaint investigator.

2. Have you discussed your complaint or brought your complaint to any of the Charter School's personnel? If you have, to whom did you take the complaint, and what was the result?

3. Please provide copies of any written documents that may be relevant or supportive of your complaint.

I have attached supporting documents.	Yes	

 Signature:
 Date:

 Mail complaint and any relevant documents to the Charter School's compliance officer:

Phillip Gedeon Head of School 2111 International Boulevard Oakland, California 94606 510-686-4131

Page 106 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Dress Code Policy

Having students arrive at school in the appropriate clothes helps them to focus their energy on joining our *learning community.* As part of this dress code, we ask that your child come to school in clean and tidy clothes with hair that is neat and clean.

All students must abide by the following daily dress code: The CSCE Administration has the right to modify/adjust policies, as needed. CSCE encourages you to bring in uniforms that your child has grown out of for our uniform closet.

Bottoms – Khaki or Navy blue: Pants, Capris, Shorts, Skirts, Jumpers. Clothes should fit appropriately (no sweatpants, tights/leggings without skirt or shorts, sagging pants, or denim). Shorts, Skorts, Skirts and Jumpers must be longer than the tips of the child's fingers when the child's arms are at rest next to their side. Solid colored leggings, tights, or knee high socks may be worn under skirts or jumpers- no patterns.



• Shoes- We have recess, PE and/or movement activities everyday. Students need to wear closed toed shoes NO open sandals or heel shoes.



• Accessories/Jewelry: *Earrings* should not hang more than an inch below the earlobe. Bracelets and rings are not permitted. Necklaces are permitted but must remain concealed under clothing. Makeup and acrylic/false nails are not permitted.

Page 107 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Grades TK through 5th

• Tops must have a collar (polo or oxford) -Color is navy blue (No crop tops, halter tops, or exposed midriff)



• Sweaters or Sweatshirts and Jackets- Solid navy blue – no logos, slogans, or images permitted. Heavy coats can be worn to/from school and at recess but will not be permitted during instructional time. Students are not permitted to wear hoodies.



Grades 6th through 8th (Upper grades)

• Tops must have a collar (polo or oxford) - students can wear any color (No crop tops, halter tops, or exposed midriff)



• Sweaters or Sweatshirts and Jackets- Solid colors (upper grades only). No logos, slogans, or cartoon images permitted. Heavy coats can be worn to/from school and at recess but will not be permitted during instructional time. Students are not permitted to wear hoodies.



Items NOT permitted in CSCE's Dress Code:

- No articles of clothing or jewelry that promote tobacco, alcohol, drugs, and other controlled substances, or advertise establishments that sell them
- No articles of clothing or jewelry which display language or images that condone racism or prejudice
- No articles of clothing or jewelry that display gang-related language or images
- No articles of clothing or jewelry that display sexually suggestive, vulgar, or profane language or images
- No articles of clothing or jewelry that display gang-related language or images

Page 108 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- Clothing that exposes the midriff no crop or halter tops
- Makeup
- False nails (acrylic, gel, etc.)
- Open toe shoes or high heels
- Patterned tights, leggings or knee-high socks (solid colors permitted)
- Hats, hoods, or heavy outdoor coats (indoors)
- Jeans, sweat pants, tights/leggings without skirt or shorts, or sagging pants
- Dangling earrings (more than an inch below earlobe)

Consequences for Violating CSCE Dress Code:

Students who come to school out of dress code will be sent to the office and asked to wear a loaned dress code item belonging to the school. you will receive a phone call or e-mail and a note to be informed of the loan with an agreement to return the cleaned item or the option to purchase the item at the cost to the school. the use of clothing and accessories with media advertisement, cartoon images, slogans and commercial logos will be taken and given to parents. In case of any problems involving the student dress code, community school administration has the right to modify/adjust policies as needed.

Page 109 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Attendance Policy

School Attendance is required by law. The CSCE for Creative Education ("CSCE") Board of Directors ("Board") believes that regular attendance plays an important role in student achievement and success in school. Excessive student absenteeism and tardiness, whether caused by excused or unexcused absences, may be an early warning sign of poor academic achievement and may put students at risk. The Board recognizes its responsibility under the law to ensure that students attend school regularly CSCE students attend school every day. Every day is significant.

State law requires parents/guardians of children ages 6 to 18 to send their children to school, unless otherwise provided by law. Parents who fail to meet this obligation may be subject to prosecution. The Board shall abide by all attendance laws and may use appropriate legal means to correct the problems of excessive absence or truancy.

Definitions

- "Tardy": CSCE starts at 8:30am. Students shall be classified as tardy if the student arrives after that time.
- "Unexcused Absence": Students shall have an unexcused absence if the student is absent or is tardy for more than thirty (30) minutes without a valid excuse.
- *"Truant":* Students shall be classified as truant if the student is absent from school without a valid excuse three (3) full days in one school year, or if the student is tardy or absent for more than any 30-minute period during the school day without a valid excuse on three (3) occasions in one school year, or any combination thereof. Any student who has once been reported as a truant and who is again absent from school without valid excuse one or more days, or tardy on one or more days, shall again be deemed a truant. Such students shall be reported to the Head of School or designee.
- *"Habitual Truant"*: Students shall be classified as a habitual truant if the student is reported for truancy three (3) or more times within the same school year. This generally occurs when the student is absent from school without a valid excuse for five (5) full days in one school year or if the student is tardy or absent for more than any 30-minute period during the school day without a valid excuse on five (5) occasions in one school year, or any combination thereof.
- "*Chronic Truant*": Students shall be classified as a chronic truant if the student is absent from school without a valid excuse for ten (10) percent or more of the school days in one school year, from the date of enrollment to the current date.

Reporting Absences

All excused absences and tardies require appropriate documentation

If a student is absent, **parents or guardians are required to call the school** at **510-686-4131** each day that the child is absent. Absences not cleared within 48 hours will be officially recorded as unexcused.

Page 110 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Process for Students Who Are Not in Attendance at the Beginning of the School Year

When students who are not in attendance at the start of the school year, the Charter School will attempt to reach the parent/guardian on a daily basis for each of the first nine (9) days to determine whether the student has an excused absence, consistent with the process outlined in this policy. However, consistent with the process below, a student not in attendance due to an unexcused absence by the tenth (10) day of the school year will be dis-enrolled from the school roster, pursuant to the CSCE Attendance Policy, as it will be assumed that the student has chosen another school option.

CSCE will attempt to reach the Parent/Guardian on a daily basis for each of the first nine (9) days to determine whether the student has an excused absence. Written notification will follow as described more fully below. If the student has a basis for an excused absence, parents/family members must notify the school of the absence and provide documentation.

- 1. Students who are not in attendance on the first day of the school year will be contacted by phone to ensure their intent to enroll in the Charter School.
- 2. Students who have indicated their intent to enroll but have not attended by the third (3rd) day of the school year will receive a letter indicating the student's risk of disenrollment.
- 3. Students who have indicated their intent to enroll but have not attended by the fifth (5th) day of the school year will receive a phone call reiterating the content of the letter.
- 4. The Charter School will send the Involuntary Removal Notice to the Parent/Guardian and follow the Involuntary Removal Process described below for any students who have not attended by the tenth (10th) day, and do not have an excused absence.
- 5. The Involuntary Removal Process can be started immediately upon the Charter School receiving documentation of Student's enrollment and attendance at another public or private school (i.e. a CALPADS report).

Involuntary Removal Process

No student shall be involuntarily removed by CSCE for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the student has been provided written notice of intent to remove the student no less than five (5) schooldays before the effective date of the action ("Involuntary Removal Notice"). The written notice shall be in the native language of the student or the student's parent or guardian or, if the student is a foster child or youth or a homeless child or youth, the student's educational rights holder. The Involuntary Removal Notice shall include the charges against the student and an explanation of the student's basic rights including the right to request a hearing before the effective date of the action. The hearing shall be consistent with the Charter School's expulsion procedures. If the student's parent, guardian, or educational rights holder requests a hearing, the student shall remain enrolled and shall not be removed until the Charter School issues a final decision. As used herein, "involuntarily removed" includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated, but does not include suspensions or expulsions pursuant to the Charter School's suspension and expulsion policy.

Page 111 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Upon parent/guardian request for a hearing, the Charter School will provide notice of hearing consistent with its expulsion hearing process, through which the student has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses and confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the student has the right to bring legal counsel or an advocate. The notice of hearing shall be in the native language of the student or the student's parent or guardian or, if the student is a foster child or youth or a homeless child or youth, the student's educational rights holder and shall include a copy of the Charter School's expulsion hearing process.

If the parent/guardian is nonresponsive to the Involuntary Removal Notice, the Student will be disenrolled as of the effective date set forth in the Involuntary Removal Notice. If parent/guardian requests a hearing and does not attend on the date scheduled for the hearing, the Student will be disenrolled effective the date of the hearing.

If as a result of the hearing the student is disenrolled, notice will be sent to the student's last known district of residence within thirty (30) days.

A hearing decision not to disenroll the student does not prevent the Charter School from making a similar recommendation in the future should student truancy continue or re-occur.

Excused Absences and Tardies

It is important for parents/family members to inform the school whenever their child is absent. An absence is considered "excused" only for the following reasons:

- Personal Illness- A child is too ill to attend school if he or she has a contagious condition, a temperature of over 100, symptoms of vomiting or diarrhea, or written orders from a doctor to stay home. Keep sick children at home for at least 24 hours *after* they no longer have a fever, without using fever-reducing medications. Keeping children with a fever at home will reduce the number of people who may get infected.
- Quarantine Students are quarantined under the direction of a county or city health officer.
- Appointments- Student's medical, dental or chiropractic appointments, verified with documentation from the provider. Insofar as class participation is an integral part of students' learning experiences, parents/guardians and students are encouraged to schedule medical appointments during non-school hours, and, whenever possible, to encourage students to return to school after a non-emergency appointment. Students in grades 7-12, inclusive, may be excused from school for the purpose of obtaining confidential medical services without the consent of the student's parent or guardian.
- Funeral Services for immediate family (1 day in State, 3 days out of State). "Immediate family" shall be defined as parent or guardian, grandparent, spouse, son/son-in-law, daughter/daughter-in-law, brother, sister or any other relative living in the student's household.
- Court Appearance Verified with documentation from the court or other appropriate body or official, such as an attorney.
- Attendance at the Student's naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen.

Page 112 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- Religious Holiday With a note and approval by the school prior to the holiday. Attendance at religious retreats shall not exceed 8 hours per year.
- Religious instruction or exercises (up to 4 days per month) or religious retreats (up to four hours per semester)
- Authorization is at the discretion of a school administrator, based on the facts of the student's circumstances, which are deemed to constitute a valid excuse.
- In order to participate with a not-for-profit performing arts organization in a performance for a public-school student audience for a maximum of up to five (5) days per school year provided the student's parent or guardian provides a written note to the school authorities explaining the reason for the student's absence.
- To permit the student to spend time with an immediate family member who is an active duty member of the uniformed services, as defined in Education Code section 49701, and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has immediately returned from, deployment to a combat zone or combat support position. Absences granted pursuant to this paragraph shall be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of the Charter School.
- For purpose of serving as a member of a precinct board for an election pursuant to Election Code section 12302.
- For the purposes of jury duty in the manner provided for by law.
- Attendance at an employment conference, or attendance at an educational conference on the legislative or judicial process offered by a nonprofit organization upon written request by parent and approval by the Head of School or designee pursuant to uniform standards established by the Board.
- A student who holds a work permit to work for a period of not more than five (5) consecutive days in the entertainment or allied industries shall be excused from school during the period that the student is working in the entertainment or allied industry for a maximum of up to five (5) absences per school year subject to the requirements of Education Code section 48225.5.
- Due to the illness or medical appointment during school hours of a child of whom the student is the custodial parent, including absences to care for a sick child. (The school does not require a note from the doctor for this excuse).
- Authorized parental leave for a pregnant or parenting student for up to eight (8) weeks.

Method of Verification

When students who have been absent return to school, they must present a satisfactory explanation verifying the reason for the absence. The following methods may be used to verify student absences:

Page 113 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- 1. Signed, written note from parent/guardian, parent representative.
- 2. Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the student's parent/guardian or parent representative. The employee shall subsequently record the following:
 - a. Name of student;
 - b. Name of parent/guardian or parent representative;
 - c. Name of verifying employee;
 - d. Date or dates of absence; and
 - e. Reason for absence.
- 3. Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method, which establishes the fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated. A written recording shall be made, including information outlined above.
- 4. Healthcare provider verification:
 - a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such appointments, Charter School staff shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may contact a medical office to confirm the time of the appointment.
 - b. A healthcare provider's note of illness will be accepted for any reported absence. When a student has had fourteen (14) absences in the school year for illness verified by methods listed in #1-#3 above without a healthcare provider's note, any further absences for illness must be verified by a healthcare provider.

Insofar as class participation is an integral part of students' learning experiences, parents/guardians and students shall be encouraged to schedule medical appointments during non-school hours.

Students should not be absent from school without their parents/guardians' knowledge or consent except in cases of medical emergency or for Students in grades 7-12, inclusive, who may be excused from school for the purpose of obtaining confidential medical services without the consent of the student's parent or guardian. Student absence for religious instruction or participation in religious exercises away from school property may be considered excused subject to administrative regulations and law.

CSCE's Student Attendance Review Team (SART)

We have implemented a Student Attendance Review Team (SART). This team is designed to meet with parent/guardians of children who have exceeded the allowable amount of excused or unexcused absences. The purpose of the meeting is to discuss the child's attendance record and develop a plan for the child's regular participation in school and improved attendance.

CSCE's SART will hold a hearing with the parent/guardian and truant student to resolve attendance and truancy problems. At that time if the student continues to be truant and does not follow the school's SART directive, the matter will be referred to the district attorney. A Certified Delivery Confirmation letter will be sent to the parent/guardian informing them of this action.

Page 114 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

The school's SART will consist of:

- The Head of School or designee
- The ELOP Coordinator
- The Dean of Student Culture
- The student's classroom teacher;

Other relevant members, including: another CSCE administrator, attendance clerk, other teachers or staff as appropriate, counselor, police officer, etc.

Unexcused Absences/Truancy

Absences for most other reasons are considered unexcused. Some examples of unexcused absence are: personal day, family vacation, and car problems. The Head of School, or designee, shall implement positive steps to reduce truancy, including working with the family in an attempt to resolve the attendance problem. A student's progress and learning may be affected by excessive unexcused absences. In addition, the Charter School is fiscally dependent on student attendance problem are unsuccessful, the Charter School will implement the processes described below. All excused absences and tardies require appropriate documentation. It is during the first two and a half hours of each school day that our students participate in the Main Lesson. This time is extremely valuable and crucial to your student's education.

School begins at 8:30am. All students who arrive after 8:45am are required to check in at the front office upon arriving to receive a tardy slip to notify the teacher of their tardiness. The student must also notify the attendance clerk if they need a school lunch.

Process for Addressing Truancy

- 1. Each of the first two (2) unexcused absences or unexcused tardies over 30 minutes will result in a call home to the parent/guardian by the Head of School or designee. The student's classroom teacher may also call home.
- 2. A third (3rd) unexcused absences or unexcused tardies over 30 minutes will result in a call home to the parent/guardian by Head of School or designee. In addition, the student's classroom teacher may also call home and/or the Charter School may send the parent an email notification. In addition, upon reaching three (3) unexcused absences or unexcused tardies over 30 minutes in a school year, the parent/guardian will receive the Truancy Letter #1: First Notification of Truancy or Excessive Absences. Letter #1 will be sent regular and Certified Delivery Confirmation mail when a student has accrued three (3) truancy events. The letter shall note:
 - a) That the student is truant.
 - b) That the parent or guardian is obligated to compel the attendance of the pupil at school.
 - c) That parents or guardians who fail to meet this obligation may be guilty of an infraction and subject to prosecution.
 - d) That the parent or guardian has the right to meet with appropriate school personnel to discuss solutions to the pupil's truancy.

Page 115 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

- e) The parent or student may be subject to arrest or held in temporary custody by a probation officer, a peace officer, a school administrator or attendance supervisor or his/her designee under if found away from home and absent from school without a valid excuse.
- f) The attendance supervisor may notify the district attorney and/or probation officer of the student's name and the name and address of his/her parents/guardians.
- g) It is recommended that the parent or guardian accompany the pupil to school and attend classes with the pupil for one day.
- 3. Upon reaching five (5) unexcused absences or unexcused tardies over 30 minutes, the parent/guardian will receive "Truancy Letter #2 Second Notification of Truancy or Excessive Absences. The parent(s) or guardian(s) will receive a phone call from the Dean of Student Culture to notify and inquire about the student's attendance. Letter #2 will be sent regular and Certified Delivery Confirmation mail. The letter shall note:
- a) An Attendance Contract will be entered into to abate truancy.
- b) The student may be given a written warning by a peace officer. A record of that warning may be kept at the school for not less than two years or until the student graduates or transfers from the school. If the student transfers, the record may be forwarded to the new school.
- c) The attendance supervisor may notify the district attorney and/or probation officer when the student continues to be classified as a truant after the parents/guardians have been notified by letter.
- 4. Upon reaching six (6) unexcused absences or unexcused tardies over 30 minutes, the parent/guardian will receive a "Truancy Letter #3 - Notification of Determination as a Habitual Truant Referral to CSCE SART, and the student will be referred to the SART. Students shall be identified as Habitual Truant. At this time, the Dean of Student Culture will schedule a home visit with the parent(s) or guardian(s). Letter #3 will be sent regular and Certified Delivery Confirmation mail. This letter shall note:
 - a) Mandatory SART meeting with student, parent, teacher advisor, and Head of School within 5 days. If not already on file, an Attendance Contract must be signed at this meeting.
 - b) If the parent fails to respond in 5 days or does not attend the scheduled SART meeting, the student may be subject to disenrollment and referred to the District Attorney .Students 12 years of age and older may be referred to the juvenile court for adjudication
- 2. If, after the above procedures have been followed, the student continues to have unexcused absences, the parent/guardian may receive notice that the student is in violation of the SART contract. The student will then be required to appear before the SART panel again to discuss the unexcused absences. After such meeting, or after two (2) attempts by the SART panel to schedule the meeting if the parent/guardian is nonresponsive, the SART panel may recommend administrative action up to and including disenrollment from the Charter School, consistent with the Involuntary Removal Process described below. If the student is disenrolled after the Involuntary Removal Process has been followed, notification will be sent within thirty (30) days to the student's last known district of residence. If the Student is involuntarily removed, Page 116 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

notice will be sent to the student's district of residence within thirty (30) days. A decision not to involuntarily remove the student does not prevent the SART panel from making a similar recommendation in the future.

- 3. For all communications set forth in this process, the Charter School will use the contact information provided by the parent/guardian in the registration packet. It is the parent's or guardian's responsibility to update the Charter School with any new contact information.
- 4. If student is absent ten (10) or more consecutive school days without valid excuse and parent/guardian cannot be reached at the number or address provided in the registration packet and does not otherwise respond to the Charter School's communication attempts, as set forth above, the student will be in violation of the SART contract, and the SART panel will recommend that the student be disenrolled in compliance with the Involuntary Removal Process described below. The Involuntary Removal Process can be started immediately upon the Charter School receiving documentation of Student's enrollment and attendance at another public or private school (i.e. a CALPADS report). Any teacher may change the grade of a student who has accrued 10 unexcused absences per semester or 7 unexcused absences per trimester to a failing grade for their courses at the marking period.

Referral to Appropriate Agencies or County District Attorney

It is the Charter School's intent to identify and remove all barriers to the student's success, and the School will explore every possible option to address student attendance issues with the family. For any unexcused absence, the School may refer the family to appropriate school-based and/or social service agencies.

If a child's attendance does not improve after a SART contract has been developed according to the procedures above, or if the parents fail to attend a required SART meeting, the Charter School shall notify the District's Attorney's office, which then may refer the matter for prosecution through the court system. Students twelve (12) years of age and older may be referred to the juvenile court for adjudication.

Non-Discrimination

These policies will be enforced fairly, uniformly, and consistently without regard to the characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including immigration status, pregnancy, or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics).

Reports

The Head of School, or designee, shall gather and report to the Board the number of absences both excused and unexcused as well as students who are truant, and the steps taken to remedy the problem.

Page 117 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131| Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Acknowledgements and Signatures

FAMILY HANDBOOK CSCE FOR CREATIVE EDUCATION

Parent/Guardian & Student Commitment

Parents/Guardians'/Guardians' Commitment:

Parents/Guardians/guardians fully commit to CSCE for Creative Education in the following ways:

- We will make sure our child arrives at school every day by 8:30 A.M. (Monday-Friday).
- We will make arrangements so our child can remain at school until 3:30 P.M. (2:30 P.M. for TK and K) on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Thursdays and Fridays, and until 12:45 P.M. on Wednesdays.
- We will always help our child in the best way we know how, and we will do whatever it takes for him/her to learn. We will check our child's homework every night, let her/him call the teacher if there is a problem with homework, and read with him/her every night.
- We will always make ourselves available to our children, the school, and attend to any concerns they may have. If our child is going to miss school, we will notify the school as soon as possible, and we will carefully read all the papers that the school sends home to us.
- We will allow our child to go on field trips.
- We will make sure our child follows the dress code.
- We understand that our child must follow the school's rules to protect the safety, interests, and rights of all in the classroom and will support them to be responsible for their behavior and actions.

We understand that failure to adhere to these commitments can cause my child to lose various privileges and can lead to my child being asked to leave CSCE. We understand that failure to adhere to these commitments will cause a meeting between Parents/Guardians, teachers and administrators.

Please sign and return to the Main Office.

Student's Commitment:

I fully commit to CSCE for Creative Education in the following ways:

- I will arrive at school every day by 8:30 A.M. (Monday-Friday).
- I will remain at school until 2:30 (K) 3:30 P.M. (1-4) on Mondays, Tuesdays, Thursdays and Fridays and 12:45 P.M. on Wednesdays.
- I will always work, think, and behave in the best way I know how and I will do whatever it takes for me and my fellow students to learn.
- I will complete all my homework every night. I will raise my hand and ask questions in class if I do not understand something.
- I will always make myself available to my Parents/Guardians/guardians and teachers and will discuss any concerns they may have.
- If I make a mistake, I will tell the truth and accept responsibility for my actions.
- I will always behave so as to protect the safety, interests, and rights of all individuals in the classroom. This means that I will always listen to my classmates and give everyone my respect.
- I will follow the dress code.

Page 118 of 119



2111 International Boulevard Oakland, CA 94606 | Office: 510.686.4131 | Fax: 510.686.4130 | info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

• I am responsible for my own behavior, and I will follow the teachers' directions and school rules.

I understand that failure to adhere to these commitments can cause me to lose various privileges and can lead to my being asked to leave CSCE.

We acknowledge that we have received and reviewed the CSCE for Creative Education for Student Behavior Policy as a family unit.

Comments:

Please return signed sheet to the Front Office or acknowledge receipt of **Family Handbook** via email to info@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org

Parent/ Guardian First Name:	Parent/ Guardian Last Name:	
Parent/ Guardian Signature:	Date:	
Student First Name:	Student Last Name:	
Student Signature:	Date:	

Page 119 of 119

Coversheet

23-24 Self-Harm Policy

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: VI. Governance B. 23-24 Self-Harm Policy Vote

CSCE Self-Harm Policy 23-24.pdf

Community School for Creative Education - CSCE Regular Board Meeting - Agenda - Wednesday September 13, 2023 at 6:00 PM



社羣創新學校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

CSCE Self-Harm Policy

1. Introduction

Recent research indicates that up to one in ten young people in the US engage in selfharming behaviors, and that this figure is higher amongst specific populations, including young people with special educational needs.

Adults who work with children and young people as volunteers or paid staff, can play an important role in preventing self-harm and also in supporting the peers, parents/carers of the child or young person who is currently engaging in self-harm.

How common is self-harm?

Over the last forty years internationally there has been a large increase in the number of young people who harm themselves. A recent large community study found that in 15-16 year olds, approximately 6.9% of young people had self-harmed in the previous year.

Is it just attention seeking?

Some people who self-harm have a desire to kill themselves. However, there are many other factors which lead people to self-harm, including a desire to escape, to reduce tension, to express hostility, to make someone feel guilty or to increase caring from others. Even if the young person does not intend to commit suicide, self-harming behavior may express a strong sense of despair and needs to be taken seriously. It is not just attention seeking behavior.

2. Scope

This document describes Community School for Creative Education's approach to selfharm. This policy is intended as guidance for all adults who work within the School.

3. Aims

- To increase understanding and awareness of self-harm
- To alert adults to warning signs and risk factors
- To provide support to adults dealing with children and young people who self-harm
- To provide support to children and young people who self-harm and their peers and parents/carers

4. Definition of self-harm

Self-harm is any behavior where the intent is to deliberately cause harm to one's own body for example:

- Cutting, scratching, scraping or picking skin
- Swallowing inedible objects
- Taking an overdose of prescription or non-prescription drugs

- Swallowing hazardous materials or substances
- Burning or scalding
- Hair-pulling
- Banging or hitting the head or other parts of the body
- Scouring or scrubbing the body excessively
- Self-strangulation
- Risky behaviors such as running into the road and seeking opportunities to engage in fights
- Over/under eating

5. Risk factors

The following risk factors, particularly in combination, may make a young person particularly vulnerable to self-harm:

- **Individual factors:** Depression and anxiety, poor communication skills, low selfesteem, poor problem-solving skills, hopelessness, impulsivity, drug or alcohol abuse, failure in exams, bereavement
- **Family factors:** Unreasonable expectations, neglect or physical, sexual or emotional abuse, poor parental relationships and arguments, depression, self-harm or suicide in the family, arguments with family members
- **Social factors:** Difficulty in making relationships/loneliness, being bullied or rejected by peers, break up of a relationship, having a close friend who self-harms, media influence

6. Warning signs

Adults may become aware of warning signs which indicate a child or young person is experiencing difficulties that may lead to thoughts of self-harm or suicide. These warning signs should always be taken seriously and adults observing any of these warning signs should seek further advice from the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) at CSCE, the Head of School.

Possible warning signs include:

- Changes in eating/sleeping habits (e.g. child/young person may appear overly tired if not sleeping well)
- Increased isolation from friends or family, becoming socially withdrawn,
- Changes in activity and mood e.g. more aggressive or introverted than usual
- Lowering of academic achievement (in school)
- Talking or joking about self-harm or suicide
- Abusing drugs or alcohol
- Expressing feelings of failure, uselessness or loss of hope
- Changes in clothing e.g. becoming a goth
- Changes in clothing to cover parts of the body, e.g. wearing long sleeved tops
- Reluctance to participate in previously enjoyed physical activities, particularly those that involve wearing shorts or swimsuits, for example
- Changes in eating and/or sleeping habits

7. Adult roles in working with young people who self-harm

Children and young people may choose to confide in a trusted adult if they are concerned about their own welfare or that of a peer. Adults may experience a range of feelings in response to self-harm in a child/young person such as anger, sadness, shock, disbelief, guilt, helplessness, disgust and rejection. CSCE offers an Employee Assistance Program through their life-insurance vendor should any staff member need counseling support. Information for this program is available upon request.

In order to offer the best possible help to children and young people it is important to try and maintain a supportive and open attitude – a child/young person who has chosen to discuss their concerns with an adult is showing a considerable amount of courage and trust.

Children and young people need to be made aware that it may not be possible for adults to offer complete confidentiality. If you consider a child/young person is at serious risk of harming themselves then confidentiality cannot be kept. It is important not to make promises of confidentiality that cannot be kept even if a child/young person puts pressure on you to do so.

Any adult in the setting who is aware of a child/young person engaging in or suspected to be at risk of engaging in self-harm should consult the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL).

Following the report, the designated safeguarding person will decide on the appropriate course of action. This may include:

- Arranging an appointment with a counselor (ERMHS Clinician)
- Contacting parents/carers
- Arranging professional assistance e.g. doctor, nurse etc.

In school, immediately removing the student from lessons if their remaining in class is likely to cause further distress to themselves or their peers.

In the case of an acutely distressed child/young person, the immediate safety of the child/ young person is paramount, and an adult should remain with the child/young person at all times.

If a child/young person has self-harmed in the setting, a trained first aider should be called for immediate help.

If a child has taken an overdose and ambulance must be called and the DSL needs to be informed immediately.

8. Further considerations

Any meetings with a child/young person, their parents or their peers regarding self-harm should be recorded in writing including:

- Dates and times
- An action plan
- Concerns raised
- Details of anyone else who has been informed

This information should be stored in the child/ young person's child protection file.

It needs to be made clear at the meeting to both the parents and the child that pupils must not display open wounds/injuries - these must be dressed appropriately.

9. Return to School Following Self-Harm

It may be required that a professional assessment take place to determine whether the student is able to handle the academic and social demands of returning to school following self-harm. If the student is permitted to return, the DSL may request special conditions or accommodations be set in place to support the student's needs, based on the professional's recommendations.

10. Prevention

An estimated 1 in 10 children self-harm at some point and it is far better to prevent self-harm before it happens.

The risk of self-harm can be significantly reduced by the creation of a supportive environment in which individual's self-esteem is raised and healthy peer relationships are fostered. This can be achieved through development of good relationships by all members of the school, family, and health community in which peer reporting is included.

Staff awareness of issues leading to self-harm is increased through training and the production of comprehensive policies on student safety a full and informative policy on self-harming. These policies are posted on the School's website to achieve the widest circulation, including parents.

Students are provided with a range of internal and outside sources of help and these are publicized via internal postings. The school staff are strongly supported by the senior management in all matters concerned with Child Protection.

Staff are prepared to deal with 'contagion' if self-harming leads to 'copycat' behavior within the school. Senior staff have access to external agencies who can offer advice and/or assist with issues including students who self-harm.

11. Monitoring and Review

This policy will be reviewed every year by the DSL and additional appointed staff & community members when deemed

Appendix A -Script guide for interviewing people who self-harm

THINGS TO CONSIDER AND WHAT TO ASK (Please highlight risk level on right of question & record answers below questions)	LOW TO MODERATE RISK RESPONSE *	MODERATE TO HIGH RISK RESPONSE *
What led up to self-harming? (reasons)	Arguments; Falling out with Boy/Girl-Friend;	Desperation, wanted to end it all.
What was the self-harming? (cutting/overdose)	Cutting, scratching, burning, hair pulling, inserting objects,	Ligature, Jumping, crashing, running into vehicles, overdose, burning, poisoning,
Where were you at the time? (circumstances)	Home, school, other	Home, school, other
Was there anyone else around? Yes/no Where were they?	Friends, family, nearby	No one
When did it happen? (Day/Time	Anytime	Anytime
Did you tell anyone? (who?) And how long after did you tell them?	Yes (family, friend, emergency services) immediately, shortly afterwards	Yes (on recovery, afterwards) Not at all
How were you feeling before the self-harming?	Anger, upset, sad, frustrated, stressed	Vengeful, anger, upset, sad, frustrated, stressed
Did you try to manage your feelings in any other ways?	No (impulsive) Yes (tried distraction)	No (impulsive) Yes (distraction, substance misuse)
Did you contemplate self-harming for any length of time beforehand?	No (impulsive)	No (impulsive) Yes (for some time; planned how to)
How did you feel after the self-harming?	Regret, foolish, embarrassed, frightened, needed to get help.	Nothing (hoped it would work)
Were you under the influence of any alcohol or substance at the time?	No	Yes (lowers inhibitions increases risk)
Have you self-harmed in the past? Yes/no When was this? Any reason?	Yes; No (first time)	Yes; No (first time)

When did you first self- harm? How long ago? How old were you? What did you do?	Long or short period	Long or short period
What types of self-harm have you used? Where have you carried this out?	Cutting, scratching, burning, hair pulling, inserting objects,	Ligature, Jumping, crashing, running into vehicles, overdose, burning, poisoning,
How frequently do you use self-harm?	Infrequent, when stressed	Frequently
What other strategies have you used to help you cope?	Talking to friends, reading, writing, drawing, exercise	Talk to friends; nothing
Who do you know you can talk to?	Friends, teacher, counsellor, nurse, mum/dad	Friends, no one
Have you ever experienced suicidal thoughts? Are they random/fleeting or persistent	No; Yes (fleeting, random)	Yes (random, persistent)
Have you ever acted on your suicidal thought or idea?	No	Yes (tried and failed/partly but didn't follow through)
Have you ever written a note to be found by anyone after a self-harming incident	No	Yes (wrote but didn't do anything or left the note to be found)
Do you keep self-harming equipment anywhere private?	No (know where to obtain); Yes (in bedroom; in bag/box; on me at all times)	No (know where to obtain); Yes (in bedroom; in bag/box; on me at all times)
What are your hopes and ambitions for	What are your hopes and ambitions for	What are your hopes and ambitions for
Are you interested in managing your	Are you interested in managing your	Are you interested in managing your
Generally; how would you describe your	Generally; how would you describe your	Generally; how would you describe your
If depressed; for how long (circumstantial?) Now and then,	If depressed; for how long (circumstantial?) Now and then,	If depressed; for how long (circumstantial?) Now and then,
Is there anything else you want to talk about?		

Appendix B – Suggested script for talking parents/guardians

Please note, not all young people want to be present when you make the phone call home to parents/guardians. However, it is important to always offer this option to them so they feel involved and are aware of what you have told the parents. It is also important to be aware of attitudes and taboos that exist towards self-harm and suicide. The DSL must assess through listening to the child who is the best person to contact.

Good morning/afternoon_____(name of parent/carer/guardian.)

This is ______from your child's school.

I am just ringing to let you know that _____has come to me today in school to tell me that they have harmed themselves.

OR

I am just ringing to let you know that I have noticed that ______has been self- harming.

Usually parents are quite shocked by the first phone call, so please use lots of reassurance e.g. not uncommon. Depending on the reaction – some suggestions of what to say next:

- This is not uncommon and is a way of them coping at the present time/with difficulties they have described.
- Your child cannot stop self-harming just because you want them to. Self-injury isn't something you can stop because of will power or because you have made a decision. Nor is it a cry for help or attention-seeking.
- Your child is having trouble dealing with emotions and for now, this is the only way they can deal with them.
- Trying to physically restrain your child or prevent them from harming is the worst thing you can do. If a young person feels they are being prevented from doing what they need to do, it can drive the behavior underground so they are less likely to seek help – or they are likely to feel more out of control. When they feel out of control they are more likely to harm themselves in a worse way.
- This doesn't mean you have to put up with anything and you certainly don't have to accept or approve their self-harming. But what you can say is this: 'OK, we accept that this is where you are now. Let's see how we can help you move forward'. There can be clear boundaries put in place where your child agrees to keep talking to you, the parent and seek help.

They have told me that they are self-harming because _____ (please insert reason)

We are going to support him/her in school/setting by _____(insert strategies that you have already discussed with child that you can provide in your school/setting).

You can find further information on what you can do to support your child by _____(insert what you think will be helpful for that particular parent/carer.)

We will send you our Parents Information leaflet and useful websites and helplines home

with your child that you may want to look at. Your child is going to try___(insert coping strategies discussed). Please can you support them in trying these out.

You might want to consider taking your child to see a Family Doctor to have his/her mood assessed.

We are concerned about your child and would like to make a referral to the Ministry of Social Development / Whispers of Serenity Clinic.

You may want to give advice about what to do if their child presents to them with their selfharming injuries. Advice to give might include:

- Stay calm and don't over-react. Your child isn't trying to kill themselves but they're scared, so don't add to it. Sit them down and treat the wound or seek medical attention, if necessary. You don't even have to comment on the fact that it's happened. Don't try to extract information or put pressure on them to talk to you. When they are ready they will come to you and talk. Reassure your child, tell them that you're there to support them and you will get through this together. You can say: 'I don't know what to do or say but I'm worried about you we need to seek help.'
- You (parents/carers) can make a massive difference very quickly. Try to take the focus off self-harm, as the problem isn't the self-harm, the problem is that someone is distressed enough to do that in the first place. Keep talking but take the self-harm out of the equation e.g. how are you feeling today? Parents have to accept that their child might not want to talk to them about it and may never give an explanation. However, if your child does confide, don't dismiss or trivialise their worries.
- Don't take the self-harming personally. Please don't respond with anger and frustration but enquire how______is feeling.
- It's important that however bad parents think things are, they are hopeful of change. Believe and keep believing in your child's capacity to overcome it. Then they'll feel that too. That sounds clichéd but it makes a big difference. The biggest thing that people who self-harm say they want to hear is 'it'll be ok.'





Once the young person is stabilized, both physically & emotionally, you need to gather more information and plan ongoing support.

Refer to the ongoing support guidance.

Fact sheet for Parents/Carers on Self-Harm

It can be difficult to find out that someone you care about is harming him or herself. As a parent / carer you may feel angry, shocked, guilty and upset. These reactions are normal, but what the person you care about really needs, is support from you. They need you to stay calm and to listen to them. The reason someone self-harms is to help them cope with very difficult feelings that build up and which they cannot express. They need to find a less harmful way of coping.

What is self-harm?

Self-harm is any behavior such as self-cutting, swallowing objects, taking an overdose, hanging or running in front of cars etc. where the intent is to deliberately cause harm to self.

Below is a non-exhaustive list of some of the behaviors that some people might consider to be self- harm:

- Scratching or picking skin
- Cutting body
- Tying something around body
- Inserting things into body
- Scouring/scrubbing body excessively
- Hitting, punching self
- Pulling out hair
- Over/under eating
- Excessive drinking of alcohol
- Taking non-prescription drugs
- Burning or scalding body
- Hitting walls with head
- Taking an overdose or swallowing something dangerous
- Self-strangulation
- Risky behaviors such as running into the road

As most self-harm is privately or secretly carried out it can be hard to notice that a young person is self-harming but some signs to look out for are:

- Changes in clothing to cover parts of the body, e.g. wearing long sleeved tops
- Reluctance to participate in previously enjoyed physical activities, particularly those that involve wearing shorts or swimsuits, for example
- Changes in eating and/or sleeping habits
- Changes in consumption of drugs/alcohol
- Changes in levels of activity or mood
- Increasing isolation from friends/family

How common is self-harm?

Over the last forty years there has been a large increase internationally in the number of young people who harm themselves. A recent large community study found that in 15-16 year olds, approximately 6.9% of young people had self-harmed in the previous year.
Is it just attention seeking?

Some people who self-harm have a desire to kill themselves. However, there are many other factors which lead people to self-harm, including a desire to escape, to reduce tension, to express hostility, to make someone feel guilty or to increase caring from others. Even if the young person does not intend to commit suicide, self-harming behavior may express a strong sense of despair and needs to be taken seriously. It is not just attention seeking behavior.

Why do young people harm themselves?

All sorts of upsetting events can trigger self-harm. Examples include:

- Arguments with family members
- Break up of a relationship
- Failure in exams
- Bullying at school.
- Losing someone close; this could include someone dying or leaving

Sometimes several stresses occur over a short period of time and one more incident can be the final straw.

Young people who have emotional or behavioral problems or low self-esteem can be particularly at risk from self -harm. Suffering a bereavement or serious rejection can also increase the risk.

Sometimes young people try to escape their problems by taking drugs or alcohol. This often only makes the situation worse. For some people self- harm is a desperate attempt to show others that something is wrong in their lives.

What can you do to help?

Try to:

- Keep an open mind
- Ensure any injuries receive appropriate medical attention
- Make the time to listen
- Help them find different ways of coping
- Go with them to get the right kind of help as quickly as possible

Some people you can contact for help, advice and support are:

- Trevor Project Lifeline 866-488-7386
- Suicide Prevention Lifeline 800-273-TALK (8255)
- Your family doctor

Helpful Youtube Videos:

• No Harm Done: A Parent's Journey

Appendix E – Guidance for Students

Information sheet for young people on self-harm

What is self-harm?

Self- harm is where someone does something to deliberately hurt him or herself. This may include: cutting parts of their body, burning, hitting or taking an overdose.

How many young people self-harm?

A recent large study found that about 7% (i.e. 7 people out of every 100) of 15-16 year olds had self-harmed in the last year.

Why do young people self-harm?

Self-harm is often a way of trying to cope with painful and confusing feelings. Difficult things that people who self-harm talk about include:

- Feeling sad or feeling worried
- Not feeling very good or confident about themselves
- Being hurt by others: physically, sexually or emotionally
- Feeling under a lot of pressure at school or at home
- Losing someone close; this could include someone dying or leaving

When difficult or stressful things happen in someone's life, it can trigger self-harm. Upsetting events that might lead to self-harm include:

- Arguments with family or friends
- Break-up of a relationship
- Failing (or thinking you are going to fail) exams
- Being bullied

Often these things build up until the young person feels they cannot cope anymore. Self- harm can be a way of trying to deal with or escaping from these difficult feelings. It can also be a way of showing other people that something is wrong in their lives.

How can you cope with self-harm?

Replacing the self-harm with other safer coping strategies can be a positive and more helpful way of dealing with difficult things in your life.

Helpful strategies can include:

- Finding someone to talk to about your feelings (this could be a friend or family member)
- Talking to someone on the phone (you might want to ring a help line)
- Sometimes it can be hard to talk about feelings; writing and drawing about your feelings may help.
- Scribbling on and/or ripping up paper
- Listening to music
- Going for a walk, run or other kinds of exercise
- Getting out of the house and going somewhere where there are other people
- Keeping a diary
- Having a bath/using relaxing oils e.g. lagender

- Hitting a pillow or other soft object
- Watching a favorite film

Getting help

In the longer term it is important that the young person can learn to understand and deal with the causes of the stress that they feel. The support of someone who understands and will listen to you can be very helpful in facing difficult feelings.

- At home parents, brother/sister or another trusted family member
- In school- speak to a teacher or the counselor at break or lunchtime. Alternatively speak to any administrator you feel comfortable talking to.
- Family Doctor you can talk to your Family Doctor about your difficulties and he/she can make a referral for counselling

Useful help lines and websites include: -

Young Minds		<u>www.youngminds.org.u</u> <u>k</u>
Whispers of Serenity Clinic, Oman	Tel: 9935 9779	www.papyrus-US.org
The Samaritans, US	Tel: +44 (0) 8457 90 90 90	jo@samaritans.org.US
MIND Info line, US	Tel: +44 (0) 845 766 0163	



Calm Harm is a free app that provides tasks to help you resist or manage the urge to self-harm. You will be able to track your progress and notice change.

Please note the app is an aid in treatment but does not replace it.

YouTube: No Harm Done: Things Can Change

My friend has a problem - How can I help?

- You can really help by just being there, listening and giving support.
- Be open and honest. If you are worried about your friend's safety, you should tell an adult. Let your friend know that you are going to do this and you are doing it because you care about him/her.
- Encourage your friend to get help. You can go with them or tell someone they want to know.
- Get information from telephone help lines, website, library etc. This can help you understand what your friend is experiencing.
- Your friendship may be changed by the problem. You may feel bad that you can't help your friend enough or guilty if you have had to tell other people. These feelings are common and don't mean that you have done something wrong/not done enough.

- Your friend may get angry with you or say you don't understand. It is important to try not to take this personally. Often when people are feeling bad about themselves they get angry with the people they are closest to.
- It can be difficult to look after someone who is having difficulties. It is important for you to find an adult to talk to, who can support you. You may not always be able to be there for your friend and that's OK.

Coversheet

23-24 Title IX Policy

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: VI. Governance C. 23-24 Title IX Policy Vote

CSCE Title IX Policy 23-24 with Legal Edits.pdf

Community School ^{for}Creative Education

社 羣 創 新 學 校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

TITLE IX, HARASSMENT, INTIMIDATION, DISCRIMINATION, AND BULLYING POLICY

Discrimination, sexual harassment, harassment, intimidation, and bullying are all disruptive behaviors, which interfere with students' ability to learn, negatively affect student engagement, diminish school safety, and contribute to a hostile school environment. As such, Community School for Creative Education ("CSCE") prohibits any acts of discrimination, sexual harassment, harassment, intimidation, and bullying altogether. This policy is inclusive of all acts related to instances that occur on any area of the school activity or school attendancecampus, at school-sponsored events and activities, regardless of location, through school-owned technology, and through other electronic means.

As used in this policy, discrimination, sexual harassment, harassment, intimidation, and bullying are described as the intentional conduct, including verbal, physical, written communication or cyber-bullying, including cyber sexual bullying, based on the actual or perceived characteristics of mental or physical disability, sex (including pregnancy and related conditions, and parental status), sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, immigration status, nationality (including national origin, country of origin, and citizenship), race or ethnicity (including ancestry, color, ethnic group identification, ethnic background, and traits historically associated with race, including, but not limited to, hair texture and protective hairstyles such as braids, locks, and twist), religion (including agnosticism and atheism), religious affiliation, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, age or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics or based on any other characteristic protected under applicable state or federal law or local ordinance. Hereafter, such actions are referred to as "misconduct prohibited by this policy."

To the extent possible, CSCE will make reasonable efforts to prevent students from being discriminated against, harassed, intimidated, and/or bullied, and will take action to investigate, respond, address and report on such behaviors in a timely manner. CSCE staff that witness acts of misconduct prohibited by this policy will take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so.

Moreover, CSCE will not condone or tolerate misconduct prohibited by this policy by any employee, independent contractor or other person with which CSCE does business, or any other individual, student, or volunteer. This policy applies to all employees, students, or volunteer actions and relationships regardless of position or gender. CSCE will promptly and thoroughly investigate and respond to any complaint of misconduct prohibited by this policy in a manner that is not deliberately indifferent and will take appropriate corrective action, if warranted. CSCE complies with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations and local ordinances in its investigation of and response to reports of misconduct prohibited by this policy.

Notification

When necessary under Education Code section 48985, if fifteen (15) percent or more of the pupils enrolled in CSCE speak a single primary language other than English, this

policy, and all notices, reports, and statements pertaining to this policy will be translated into the primary language and will be provided to the parent/guardian of any such students in their primary language.

This policy shall be made readily accessible in a prominent location on CSCE's existing internet website in a manner that is easily accessible to parents/guardians and pupils. CSCE shall post the following Title IX requirements in a prominent and conspicuous location on the existing web page:

- 1. The name and contact information of the Title IX coordinator that public school, school district, county office of education, or charter school which shall include the Title IX coordinator's phone number and email address.
- 2. The rights of a pupil and the public and the responsibilities of public school, school district, county office of education, or charter school under Title IX, which shall include, but shall not be limited to, internet web links to information about those rights and responsibilities located on the internet websites of the department's Office of Equal Opportunity and the U.S. Department of Education (ED) Office of Civil Rights (OCR), and the list of rights specified in Education Code section 221.8.
- 3. A description of how to file a complaint under Title IX, which must include all of the following:
 - a. an explanation of the statute of limitations within which a complain must be filed after an alleged incident of discrimination has occurred, and how a complaint may be filed beyond the statute of limitations.
 - b. an explanation of how the complaint will be investigated and how the complainant may further pursue the complaint including, but not limited to, internet web links to this information on the U.S. ED OCR's internet web site.
 - c. an internet web link to the U.S. ED OCR complaints form, and the contact information for the office, which shall include the phone number and email address for the office.
- 4. The link to the CDE's Title IX information.

Title IX, Harassment, Intimidation, Discrimination and Bullying Coordinator ("Coordinator"):

Ms. Amy Gaerlan Title IX Coordinator 510-916-8896 amyg@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org 21111 International Blvd. Oakland, CA 94606

Definitions

Prohibited Unlawful Harassment

1. Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments, or slurs. 2. Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, intentionally blocking normal movement or interfering with work or school because of sex, race or any other protected basis.

- 3. Retaliation for reporting or threatening to report harassment.
- 4. Deferential or preferential treatment based on any of the protected characteristics listed above.

Prohibited Unlawful Harassment under Title IX

Title IX (20 U.S.C. § 1681 *et. seq*; 34 C.F.R. § 106.1 *et. seq*) and California state law prohibit discrimination and harassment on the basis of sex. <u>Under Title IX</u>, "sexual harassment" means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following:

- An employee of the recipient conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service of the recipient on an individual's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;
- Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the recipient's education program or activity; or
- "Sexual assault" as defined in 20 U.S.C. 1092(f)(6)(A)(v), "dating violence" as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10), "domestic violence" as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8), or "stalking" as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(30).

In accordance with these existing Title IX and CA laws, discrimination and harassment on the basis of sex in education institutions, including in the education institution's admissions and employment practices, is prohibited. All persons, regardless of sex, are afforded equal rights and opportunities and freedom from unlawful discrimination and harassment in education programs or activities conducted by CSCE.

CSCE is committed to providing a work and educational environment free of sexual harassment and considers such harassment to be a major offense, which may result in disciplinary action up to an including termination. Inquiries about the application of Title IX and 34 C.F.R. Part 106 may be referred to the Coordinator, the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights of the U.S. Department of Education, or both.

Sexual harassment consists of conduct on the basis of sex, including but not limited to unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct on the basis of sex, regardless of whether or not the conduct is motivated by sexual desire when:

- 1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or a condition of an individual's employment, education, academic status, or progress;
- 2. submission to, or rejection of, the conduct by the individual is used as the basis of employment, educational or academic decisions affecting the individual;
- 3. the conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact upon the individual's work or academic performance, or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work or educational environment; and/or
- 4. submission to, or rejection of, the conduct by the individual is used as the basis for any decision affecting the individual regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available at or through the educational institution.

It is also unlawful to retaliate in any way against an individual who has articulated a good faith concern about sexual harassment against themselves or against another individual.

Sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to:

1. Physical assaults of a sexual nature, such as:

a. Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults. b. Intentional physical conduct that is sexual in nature, such as touching, pinching, patting, grabbing, brushing against another's body, or poking another's body. 2. Unwanted sexual advances, propositions or other sexual comments, such as: a. Sexually oriented gestures, notices, remarks, jokes, or comments about a person's sexuality or sexual experience.

- b. Preferential treatment or promises of preferential treatment to an individual for submitting to sexual conduct, including soliciting or attempting to solicit any individual to engage in sexual activity for compensation or reward or deferential treatment for rejecting sexual conduct.
- c. Subjecting or threats of subjecting a student to unwelcome sexual attention or conduct or intentionally making the student's academic performance more difficult because of the student's sex.
- 3. Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the educational environment, such as:
 - a. Displaying pictures, cartoons, posters, calendars, graffiti, objections, promotional materials, reading materials, or other materials that are sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning or pornographic or bringing or possessing any such material to read, display or view in the educational environment.
 - b. Reading publicly or otherwise publicizing in the educational environment materials that are in any way sexually revealing, sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning or pornographic.
 - c. Displaying signs or other materials purporting to segregate an individual by sex in an area of the educational environment (other than restrooms or similar rooms).

The illustrations of harassment and sexual harassment above are not to be construed as an allinclusive list of prohibited acts under this policy.

Prohibited Bullying

Bullying is defined as any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act.

Bullying includes one or more acts committed by a student or group of students that may constitute sexual harassment, hate violence, or creates an intimidating and/or hostile educational environment, directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

- 1. Placing a reasonable pupil* or pupils in fear of harm to that pupil's or those pupils' person or property.
- 2. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience a substantially detrimental effect on the pupil's physical or mental health.
- 3. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with the pupil's academic performance.
- 4. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience a substantial interference with the pupil's ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by CSCE.

* "Reasonable pupil" is defined as a pupil, including but not limited to, an exceptional needs pupil, who exercises care, skill and judgment in conduct for a person of the same age, or for a person of the same age with the same exceptional needs.

Cyberbullying is an electronic act that includes the transmission of harassing communication, direct threats, or other harmful texts, sounds, or images on the Internet, social media, or other technologies using a telephone, computer, or any wireless communication device. Cyberbullying also includes breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming that person's identity in order to damage that person's reputation.

Electronic act means the creation and transmission originated on or off the school site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:

- 1. A message, text, sound, video, or image.
- 2. A post on a social network Internet Website including, but not limited to: a. Posting to or creating a burn page. A "burn page" means an Internet Website created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in the definition of "bullying," above.
 - b. Creating a credible impersonation* of another actual pupil for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in the definition of "bullying" above. *"Credible impersonation" means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a pupil for the purpose of bullying the pupil and such that another pupil would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was or is the pupil who was impersonated.
 - c. Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in the definition of "bullying," above. "False profile" means a profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who created the false profile.
- 3. An act of "cyber sexual bullying" including, but not limited to:
 - a. The dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual recording by a pupil to another pupil or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects described in the definition of "bullying," above. A photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall include the depiction of a nude, seminude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or other electronic act.
 - b. "Cyber sexual bullying" does not include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.
 - c. Notwithstanding the definitions of "bullying" and "electronic act" above, an electronic act shall not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet.

Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment means a written document filed and signed by a complainant who is participating in or attempting to participate in CSCE's education program or activity or signed by the Coordinator alleging sexual harassment against a respondent and requesting that CSCE investigate the allegation of sexual harassment. <u>At the time of filing a formal complaint of sexual harassment, a complainant must be participating in or attempting to participate in CSCE's education program or activity.</u>

Respondent means an individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment.

Bullying and Cyberbullying Prevention Procedures

CSCE has adopted the following procedures for preventing acts of bullying, including cyberbullying.

1. Cyberbullying Prevention Procedures

CSCE advises students:

- a. To never share passwords, personal data, or private photos online.
- b. To think about what they are doing carefully before posting and by emphasizing that comments cannot be retracted once they are posted.
- c. That personal information revealed on social media can be shared with anyone including parents, teachers, administrators, and potential employers. Students should never reveal information that would make them uncomfortable if the public had access to it.
- d. To consider how it would feel receiving such comments before making comments about others online.

CSCE informs its employees, students, and parents/guardians of its policies regarding the use of technology in and out of the classroom. CSCE encourages parents/guardians to discuss these policies with their children to ensure their children understand and comply with such policies.

2. Education

CSCE employees cannot always be present when bullying incidents occur, so educating students about bullying is a key prevention technique to limit bullying from happening. CSCE advises students that hateful and/or demeaning behavior is inappropriate and unacceptable in our society and at CSCE and encourages students to practice compassion and respect each other.

CSCE educates students to accept all student peers regardless of protected characteristics (including but not limited to actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identification, physical or cognitive disabilities, race, ethnicity, religion, and immigration status) and about the negative impact of bullying other students based on protected characteristics.

CSCE's bullying prevention education also discusses the differences between appropriate and inappropriate behaviors and includes sample situations to help students learn and practice appropriate behavior and to develop techniques and strategies to respond in a nonaggressive way to bullying-type behaviors. Students will also develop confidence and learn how to advocate for themselves and others, and when to go to an adult for help.

CSCE informs its employees, students, and parents/guardians of this policy and encourages parents/guardians to discuss this policy with their children to ensure their children understand and comply with this policy.

3. Professional Development

CSCE annually makes available the online training module developed by the California Department of Education pursuant Education Code section 32283.5(a) to its certificated employees and all other CSCE employees who have regular interaction with students.

CSCE informs certificated employees about the common signs that a student is a target of bullying including:

- a. Physical cuts or injuries
- b. Lost or broken personal items
- c. Fear of going to school/practice/games
- d. Loss of interest in school, activities, or friends
- e. Trouble sleeping or eating
- f. Anxious/sick/nervous behavior or distracted appearance
- g. Self-destructiveness or displays of odd behavior
- h. Decreased self-esteem

CSCE also informs certificated employees about the groups of students determined by CSCE, and available research, to be at elevated risk for bullying. These groups include but are not limited to:

- a. Students who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth ("LGBTQ") and those youth perceived as LGBTQ; and
- b. Students with physical or learning disabilities.

CSCE encourages its employees to demonstrate effective problem-solving, anger management, and self-confidence skills for students.

Grievance Procedures

Scope of Grievance Procedures

CSCE will comply with its Uniform Complaint Procedures ("UCP") policy when investigating and responding to complaints alleging unlawful harassment, discrimination, intimidation or bullying against a protected group or on the basis of a person's association with a person or group with one or more of the protected characteristics set forth in the UCP that:

- a. Are written and signed;
- b. Filed by an individual who alleges that that individual has personally suffered unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying, or by one who believes any specific class of individuals has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying-<u>based on a protected characteristic prohibited</u> by this part, or by a duly authorized representative who alleges that an individual student has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying; and
- c. Submitted to CSCE UCP Compliance Officer not later than six (6) months from the date the alleged unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying occurred, or the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying.

The following grievance procedures shall be utilized for reports of misconduct prohibited by this policy that do not comply with the writing, timeline, or other formal filing requirements of a

uniform complaint. For formal complaints of sexual harassment, CSCE will utilize the following grievance procedures in addition to its UCP when applicable.

Reporting

All staff are expected to provide appropriate supervision to enforce standards of conduct and, if they observe or become aware of misconduct prohibited by this policy, to intervene when it is safe to do so, call for assistance, and report such incidents. The Board requires staff to follow the procedures in this policy for reporting alleged acts of misconduct prohibited by this policy.

Any student who believes they have been subject to misconduct prohibited by this policy or has witnessed such prohibited misconduct is encouraged to immediately report such misconduct to the Coordinator:

Ms. Amy Gaerlan Title IX Coordinator 510-916-8896 amyg@communityschoolforcreativeeducation.org 21111 International Blvd. Oakland, CA 94606

Complaints regarding such misconduct may also be made to the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights. Civil law remedies, including, but not limited to, injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders may also be available to complainants.

While submission of a written report is not required, the reporting party is encouraged to submit a written report to the Coordinator. CSCE will investigate and respond to all oral and written reports of misconduct prohibited by this policy in a manner that is not deliberately indifferent. Reports may be made anonymously, but formal disciplinary action cannot be based solely on an anonymous report.

Students are expected to report all incidents of misconduct prohibited by this policy or other verbal, or physical abuses. Any student who feels they are a target of such behavior should immediately contact a teacher, counselor, the program director, Coordinator, a staff person or a family member so that the student can get assistance in resolving the issue in a manner that is consistent with this policy.

POLICY

CSCE acknowledges and respects every individual's right to privacy. All reports shall be investigated in a manner that protects the confidentiality of the parties and the integrity of the process to the greatest extent possible. This includes keeping the identity of the reporter confidential, as appropriate, except to the extent necessary to comply with the law, carry out the investigation and/or to resolve the issue, as determined by the Coordinator or designee on a case-by-case basis.

CSCE prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who files a report or complaint, testifies, assists, participates, or refuses to participate in any investigation or proceeding related to misconduct prohibited by this policy. Such participation or lack of participation shall not in any way affect the status, grades, or work assignments of the individual. Individuals alleging retaliation in violation of this policy may file a grievance using the procedures set forth in this policy.

Knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process is prohibited and may result in disciplinary action.

All supervisors of staff will receive sexual harassment training within six (6) months of their assumption of a supervisory position and will receive further training once every two (2) years thereafter. All staff and any individuals designated as a coordinator, investigator, or decision-maker, or any personal who facilitates an informal resolution process—will receive sexual harassment training and/or instruction concerning sexual harassment as required by law.

Supportive Measures

Upon the receipt of an informal or formal complaint of sexual harassment, the Coordinator will promptly contact the complainant to discuss the availability of supportive measures. The Coordinator will consider the complainant's wishes with respect to supportive measures, inform the complainant of the availability of supportive measures with or without the filing of a formal complaint of sexual harassment, and explain the process for filing a formal complaint of sexual harassment.

Supportive measures are non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, and without fee or charge to the complainant or the respondent before or after the filing of a formal complaint of sexual harassment or where no formal complaint of sexual harassment has been filed. Such measures are designed to restore or preserve equal access to CSCE's education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to protect the safety of all parties or CSCE's educational environment, or deter sexual harassment. Supportive measures available to complainants and respondents may include but are not limited to counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments, modifications of work or class schedules, campus escort services, mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, changes in work locations, leaves of absence, increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus, and other similar measures. CSCE will maintain as confidential any supportive measures provided to the complainant or respondent, to the extent that maintaining such confidentiality would not impair the ability of CSCE to provide the supportive measures.

Investigation and Response

Upon receipt of a report of misconduct prohibited by this policy from a student, staff member, parent/guardian, volunteer, visitor or affiliate of CSCE, the Coordinator or administrative designee will promptly initiate an investigation. In most cases, a thorough investigation will take no more than twenty-five (25) school days. If the Coordinator, or administrative designee determines that an investigation will take longer than twenty-five (25) school days and needs to be delayed or extended due to good cause, the Coordinator or administrative designee will inform the complainant of the reasons for the delay or extension and provide an approximate date when the investigation will be complete.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Coordinator or administrative designee will meet with the complainant and, to the extent possible with respect to confidentiality laws, provide the complainant with information about the investigation, including any actions necessary to resolve the incident/situation. However the Coordinator or administrative designee will not reveal confidential information related to other students or employees.

For investigations of and responses to formal complaints of sexual harassment, the following

grievance procedures will apply:

1. Notice of the Allegations

- a. Upon receipt of a formal complaint of sexual harassment, the Coordinator will give all known parties written notice of its grievance process, including any voluntary informal resolution process. The notice will include:
- b. A description of the allegations of sexual harassment at issue and to the extent known, the identities of the parties involved in the incident, the conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment, and the date and location of the alleged incident;
- c. A statement that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct until a final decision is reached;
- d. A statement that the parties may have an advisor of their choice, who may be an attorney, and may inspect and review evidence; and
- e. A statement that CSCE prohibits an individual from knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting false information during the grievance process.
- 2. Emergency Removal
 - a. CSCE may place a non-student employee respondent on administrative leave during the pendency of a formal complaint of sexual harassment grievance process in accordance with CSCE's policies.
 - b. CSCE may remove a respondent from CSCE's education program or activity on an emergency basis, in accordance with CSCE's policies, provided that CSCE undertakes an individualized safety and risk analysis, determines that an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual arising from the allegations of sexual harassment justifies removal, and provides the respondent with notice and an opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal.
 - c. This provision may not be construed to modify any rights under the IDEA, Section 504, or the ADA.
- 3. Informal Resolution
 - a. If a formal complaint of sexual harassment is filed, CSCE may offer a voluntary informal resolution process, such as mediation, to the parties at any time prior to reaching a determination regarding responsibility. If CSCE offers such a process, it will do the following:
 - i. Provide the parties with advance written notice of:
 - The allegations;
 - The requirements of the voluntary informal resolution process including the circumstances under which the parties are precluded
 - from resuming a formal complaint of sexual harassment arising from the same allegations;
 - The parties' right to withdraw from the voluntary informal resolution process and resume the grievance process at any time prior to agreeing to a resolution; and
 - Any consequences resulting from participating in the voluntary informal resolution process, including the records that will be maintained or could be shared; and
 - ii. Obtain the parties' advance voluntary, written consent to the informal resolution process.
 - a. CSCE will not offer or facilitate an informal resolution process to resolve allegations that an employee sexually harassed a student.
- 4. Investigation Process

- a. The decision-maker will not be the same person(s) as the Coordinator or the investigator. CSCE shall ensure that all decision-makers and investigators do not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents.
- b. In most cases, a thorough investigation will take no more than twenty-five (25) school days. If the investigator determines that an investigation will take longer than twenty-five (25) school days and needs to be delayed or extended due to good cause, the investigator will inform the complainant and any respondents in writing of the reasons for the delay or extension and provide an approximate date when the investigation will be complete.
- c. The parties will be provided with an equal opportunity to present witnesses, to inspect and review any evidence obtained that is directly related to the allegations raised, and to have an advisor present during any investigative meeting or interview.
- d. The parties will not be prohibited from discussing the allegations under investigation or to gather and present relevant evidence.
- e. A party whose participation is invited or expected at an investigative meeting or interview will receive written notice of the date, time, location, participants, and purpose of the meeting or interview with sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate.
- f. Prior to completion of the investigative report, CSCE will send to each party and the party's advisor, if any, a copy of the evidence subject to inspection and review, and the parties will have at least ten (10) days to submit a written response for the investigator's consideration prior to the completion of the investigation report.
- g. The investigator will complete an investigation report that fairly summarizes relevant evidence and send a copy of the report to each party and the party's advisor, if any, at least ten (10) days prior to the determination of responsibility.
- 5. Dismissal of a Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment
 - a. If the investigation reveals that the alleged harassment did not occur in CSCE's educational program in the United States or would not constitute sexual harassment even if proved, the formal complaint with regard to that conduct must be dismissed. However, such a dismissal does not preclude action under another applicable CSCE policy.
 - b. CSCE may dismiss a formal complaint of sexual harassment if: i. The complainant provides a written withdrawal of the complaint to the Coordinator;

ii. The respondent is no longer employed or enrolled at CSCE; or iii. The specific circumstances prevent CSCE from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a decision on the formal complaint or the allegations therein.

- c. If a formal complaint of sexual harassment or any of the claims therein are dismissed, CSCE will promptly send written notice of the dismissal and the reason(s) for the dismissal simultaneously to the parties.
- 6. <u>Determination of Responsibility</u>
 - a. The standard of evidence used to determine responsibility is the preponderance of the evidence standard.
 - b. Determinations will be based on an objective evaluation of all relevant evidence and credibility determinations will not be based on a person's status as a complainant, respondent, or witness.
 - **b**<u>c</u>. CSCE will send a written decision on the formal complaint to the complainant and respondent simultaneously that describes:
 - i. The allegations in the formal complaint of sexual harassment;
 - ii. All procedural steps taken including any notifications to the parties, interviews with parties and witnesses, site visits, and methods used to gather other evidence;

- iii. The findings of facts supporting the determination;
- iv. The conclusions about the application of CSCE's code of conduct to the facts;
- v. The decision and rationale for each allegation;
- vi. Any disciplinary sanctions the recipient imposes on the respondent, and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to the education program or activity will be provided to the complainant; and
- vii. The procedures and permissible bases for appeals.

Consequences

Students or employees who engage in misconduct prohibited by this policy, knowingly make false statements or knowingly submit false information during the grievance process may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including expulsion from CSCE or termination of employment. The Coordinator is responsible for effective implementation of any remedies ordered by CSCE in response to a formal complaint of sexual harassment.

Right of Appeal

Should the reporting individual find CSCE's resolution unsatisfactory, the reporting individual may, within five (5) business days of notice of CSCE's decision or resolution, submit a written appeal to the Chief Executive Officer, who will review the investigation and render a final decision.

The following appeal rights and procedures will also apply to formal complaints of sexual harassment:

- a. The complainant and the respondent shall have the same appeal rights and CSCE will implement appeal procedures equally for both parties.
- b. Within five (5) business days of CSCE's written decision or dismissal of the complaint, the complainant or respondent may submit a written appeal to the Coordinator.
- c. The decision-maker(s) for the appeal will not be the same person(s) as the Coordinator, the investigator or the initial decision-maker(s).
- d. The complainant and respondent may appeal from a determination regarding responsibility, and from CSCE's dismissal of a formal complaint or any allegations therein, on the following bases:
 - i. Procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter;
 - ii. New evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal was made, that could affect the outcome of the matter; and
 - <u>iii.</u> The Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), or decision-maker(s) had a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that affected the outcome of the matter.
- e. CSCE will notify the other party in writing when an appeal is filed. c. The decision-maker for the appeal will give both parties a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in support of, or challenging, the outcome; issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result; and provide the written decision simultaneously to both parties.

Recordkeeping

All records related to any investigation of complaints under this policy are maintained in a secure location.

- CSCE will maintain the following records for at least seven (7) years: a. Records of each sexual harassment investigation, including any determination of responsibility; any audio or audiovisual recording or transcript; any disciplinary sanctions imposed on the respondent; and any remedies provided to the complainant. b. Records of any appeal of a formal sexual harassment complaint and the results of that appeal.
 - c. Records of any informal resolution of a sexual harassment complaint and the results of that informal resolution.
 - d. All materials used to train Title IX coordinators, investigators, decision-makers, and any person who facilitates an informal resolution process.
 - e. Records of any actions, including any supportive measures, taken in response to a report or formal complaint of sexual harassment.

Title IX, Harassment, Intimidation, Discrimination & Bullying COMPLAINT FORM

	I	Date:
Date of Alleged Incident(s):		
Name of Person(s) you have a complain	t against:	
List any witnesses that were present:		
Where did the incident(s) occur?		
Please describe the events or conduct th factual detail as possible (i.e. specific sta verbal statements; what did you do to avo	tements; what, if any, physic	cal contact was involved; any
I hereby authorize the Community Sch I have provided as it finds necessary i information I have provided in this co		
my knowledge and belief. I further und could result in disciplinary action up t	lerstand that providing fals	and complete to the best of e information in this regard
my knowledge and belief. I further und could result in disciplinary action up t	lerstand that providing fals	and complete to the best of se information in this regard on.
my knowledge and belief. I further und could result in disciplinary action up t	lerstand that providing fals o and including terminatio	and complete to the best of se information in this regard on.
my knowledge and belief. I further und could result in disciplinary action up t	lerstand that providing fals o and including terminatio	and complete to the best of se information in this regard on.
my knowledge and belief. I further und could result in disciplinary action up t Complainant Date	lerstand that providing fals o and including terminatio	and complete to the best of se information in this regard on.
my knowledge and belief. I further und could result in disciplinary action up t Complainant Date Print Name	lerstand that providing fals o and including terminatio	and complete to the best of the information in this regard on. Signature of

Coversheet

23-24 Suicide Prevention Policy

Section:VI. GItem:D. 23Purpose:VoteSubmitted by:CSCIRelated Material:CSCI

VI. Governance D. 23-24 Suicide Prevention Policy Vote

CSCE Suicide Prevention Policy 23-24 with Legal Edits.pdf



社 羣 創 新 學 校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

SUICIDE PROVENTION POLICY

Community School for Creative Education ("CSCE" or the "Charter School") recognizes that suicide is a major cause of death among youth and should be taken seriously. In an effort to reduce suicidal behavior and its impact on students and families, the CSCE has developed prevention strategies and intervention procedures.

In compliance with Education Code section 215, this policy has been developed in consultation with the Charter School and community stakeholders, CSCE_school—employed mental health professionals, (e.g., school counselors, psychologists, social workers, nurses), administrators, other school staff members, parents/guardians/caregivers, students, local health agencies and professionals, the county mental health plan, law enforcement, and community organizations in planning, implementing, and evaluating CSCE's strategies for suicide prevention and intervention. CSCE must work in conjunction with local government agencies, community-based organizations, and other community supports to identify additional resources.

The-purpose of this policy is to protect the health and well-being of all of our students by having procedures in place to prevent, assess the risk of, intervene in, and respond to youth suicidal behavior. Protecting the health and well-being of all students is of utmost importance to our school and is in line with school mandates for all professionals and individuals working with youth. Because it is impossible to predict when a crisis will occur, preparedness is necessary for every school. Youth suicide is preventable, and parents, educators and schools are key to prevention. Preventing suicide depends not only on suicide prevention policies, but also on a holistic approach that promotes healthy lifestyles, families, and communities. Thus, this policy is intended to be paired with other policies and efforts that support the emotional and behavioral well-being of youth.

To ensure the policies regarding suicide prevention are properly adopted, implemented, and updated, the CSCE shall appoint an individual (or team) to serve as the suicide prevention point of contact for the Charter School. The suicide prevention point of contact <u>for CSCE</u> and the Head of School shall ensure proper coordination and consultation with the county mental health plan if a referral is made for mental health or related services on behalf of a student who is a Medi-Cal beneficiary. This policy shall be reviewed and revised as indicated, at least annually in conjunction with the previously mentioned community stakeholders.

Suicide Prevention Crisis Team

To ensure the policies regarding suicide prevention are properly adopted, implemented, and updated, CSCE_created an in-house Suicide Prevention Crisis Team ("SPCT") consisting of administrators, mental health professionals, relevant staff, parents, and middle and high school students.

CSCE designates the following administrators to act as the primary and secondary suicide prevention liaisons to lead the SPCT:

1. <u>School Psychologist/ERMHS ClinicianHead of School</u>

2. Head of SchoolSchool Psychologist/ERMHS Clinician

The functions of the SPCT are to:

- Review mental health related school policies and procedures;
- Provide annual updates on school and district data and trends;
- Review and revise school prevention policies;
- Review and select general and specialized mental health and suicide prevention training;
- Review and oversee staff, parent/guardian, and student trainings;
- Ensuring the suicide prevention policy, protocols, and resources are posted on the district and school websites;
- Collaborate with community mental health organizations,
- Identify resources and agencies that provide evidence-based or evidence-informed treatment,
- Help inform and build skills among law enforcement and other relevant partners, and
- Collaborate to build community response.

Staff Development

The Charter School along with its partners, has carefully reviewed available staff training to ensure it promotes the mental health model of suicide prevention, and does not encourage the use of the stress model to explain suicide.

Training shall be provided for all school staff members. It may also be provided, when appropriate, for other adults on campus (such as substitutes and intermittent staff, volunteers, interns, tutors, coaches, and afterschool staff). Training shall include the following:

- 1. All suicide prevention trainings shall be offered under the direction of mental health professionals (e.g., school counselors, school psychologists, other public entity professionals, such as psychologists or social workers) who have received advanced training specific to suicide. Charter School has collaborated with [Insert Names of One Or More County and/or Community Mental Health Agencies] to review the training materials and content to ensure it is evidence-based, evidence-informed, and aligned with best practices.
- 4.2. Staff training may be adjusted year-to-year based on previous professional development activities and emerging best practices.
- 3. Charter School shall ensure that training is available for new hires during the school year.
- 2.4. At least annually, all staff shall receive training on the risk factors and warning signs of suicide, suicide prevention, intervention, referral, and postvention.

3.5. At a minimum, all staff shall participate in training on the core components of suicide prevention (identification of suicide risk factors and warning signs, prevention, intervention, referral, and postvention) at the beginning of their employment or annually. Core components of the general suicide prevention training shall include:

- a. Suicide risk factors, warning signs, and protective factors
- b. How to talk with a student about thoughts of suicide
- c. How to respond appropriately to the youth who has suicidal thoughts. Such responses shall include constant supervision of any student judged to be at risk for suicide and an immediate referral for a suicide risk assessment^{*}₇.
- d. Emphasis on immediately referring (same day) any student who is identified to be at risk of suicide for assessment while staying under constant monitoring by staff member;.
- e. Emphasis on reducing-the stigma associated with mental illness and that early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide[†].
- f. Reviewing the data annually to look for any patterns or trends of the prevalence or occurrence of suicide ideation, attempts, or death. Data from the California School Climate, Health, and Learning Survey (Cal-SCHLS) should also be analyzed to identify school climate deficits and drive program development. See the Cal-SCHLS Web site at <u>http://cal-schls.wested.org/.http://cal-schls.wested.org/.</u>
- g. Information regarding groups of students judged by the school, and available research, to be at elevated risk for suicide. These groups include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - i. Youth affected by suicide;
 - ii. Youth with a history of suicide ideation or attempts
 - iii. Youth with disabilities, mental illness, or substance abuse disorders
 - iv. Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth;
 - v. Youth experiencing homelessness or in out-of-home settings, such as foster care;
 - i.— Youth who have suffered traumatic experiences;

- 4.6. In addition to initial orientations to the core components of suicide prevention, ongoing annual staff professional development for all staff may include the following components:
 - a. The impact of traumatic stress on emotional and mental health;
 - b. Common misconceptions about suicide;
 - c. Charter School and community suicide prevention resources;
 - d. Appropriate messaging about suicide (correct terminology, safe messaging guidelines);).
 - e. The factors associated with suicide (risk factors, warning signs, protective factors).
 - f. How to identify youth who may be at risk of suicide $\frac{1}{2}$.
 - g. Appropriate ways to interact with a youth who is demonstrating emotional distress or is suicidal. Specifically, how to talk with a student about their thoughts of suicide and (based on the Charter School guidelines) how to respond to such thinking; how to talk with a student about thoughts of suicide and appropriately respond and provide support based on the Charter School guidelines;
 - h. Charter School-_approved procedures for responding to suicide risk (including multitiered systems of support and referrals). Such procedures should emphasize that the suicidal student should be constantly supervised until a suicide risk assessment is completed;.
 - i. Charter School-_approved procedures for responding to the aftermath of suicidal behavior (suicidal behavior postvention);).
 - j. Responding after a suicide occurs (suicide postvention);).
 - k. Resources regarding youth suicide prevention;
 - 1. Emphasis on stigma reduction and the fact that early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide;.
 - m. Emphasis that any student who is identified to be at risk of suicide is to be immediately referred (same day) for assessment while being constantly monitored by a staff member.

<u>Specialized Professional Development for School-based Mental Health Staff (Screening and/or</u> <u>Assessment</u>

Additional professional development in suicide risk assessment (SRA) and crisis intervention is provided to designated student mental health professionals, including but not limited to school counselors, psychologists, social workers, administrators, and nurses employed by Charter School. Training for these staff is specific to conducting SRAs, intervening during a crisis, de-escalating situations, interventions specific to preventing suicide, making referrals, safety planning, and reentry.

Specialized Professional Training for targeted School-based mental health staff includes the following components:

• Best practices and skill building on how to conduct an effective suicide risk screening/SRA using an evidence-based, Charter-approved tool; Patient Health Questionnaire 9 (PHQ-9)

Depression Scale; BSS Beck Scale for Suicide Ideation ; National Institute of Mental Health (NIMH)'s Ask Suicide-Screening Questions (ASQ) Toolkit; and the Adolescent Suicide Assessment Protocol – 20.

- Best practices on approaching and talking with a student about their thoughts of suicide and how to respond to such thinking, based on district guidelines and protocols.
- Best practices on how to talk with a student about thoughts of suicide and appropriately respond and provide support based on district guidelines and protocols.
- Best practices on follow up with parents/caregivers.
- Best practices on re-entry.

Virtual Screenings for Suicide Risk

<u>Virtual suicide prevention efforts include checking in with all students, promoting access to school</u> and community based resources that support mental wellbeing and those that address mental illness and give specific guidance on suicide prevention.

Charter School has established a protocol for assigning school staff to connect with students during distance learning and school closures. In the event of a school closure, Charter School has determined a process and protocols to establish daily or regular contact with all students. Staff understand that any concern about a student's emotional wellbeing and/or safety must be communicated to the appropriate school staff, according to Charter School protocols.

<u>Charter School has determined a process and protocols for school based mental health professionals</u> to establish regular contact with high risk students, students who are on their caseloads, and those who are identified by staff as demonstrating need. When connecting with students, staff are directed to begin each conversation by identifying the location of the student and the availability of parents or caregivers. This practice allows for the staff member to ensure the safety of the student, particularly if they have expressed suicidal thoughts.

Employee Qualifications and Scope of Services

Employees of CSCE must act only within the authorization and scope of their credential or license. While it is expected that school professionals are able to identify suicide risk factors and warning signs, and to prevent the immediate risk of <u>a</u> suicidal behavior, treatment of suicidal ideation is typically beyond the scope of services offered in the school setting. In _addition, treatment of the mental health challenges often associated with suicidal thinking typically requires mental health resources beyond what schools are able to provide.

Parents, Guardians, and Caregivers Participation and Education

1. Parents/guardians/caregivers may be included in suicide prevention efforts. At a minimum, the Charter Schools shall share this Policy with parents/guardians/caregivers by notifying them where a complete copy of the policy is available.

This Suicide Prevention Policy shall be easily accessible and prominently displayed on the Charter School's Web page and included in the parent handbook.

- 2. Parents/guardians/caregivers should be invited to provide input on the development and implementation of this policy.
- 3. Charter School shall establish and widely disseminate a referral process to all parents/guardians/caregivers/families, so they are aware of how to respond to a crisis and are knowledgeable about protocols and school, community-based, and crisis resources.
- 4. Community-based organizations that provide evidence-based suicide-specific treatments shall be highlighted on the Charter School's website with treatment referral options marked accordingly.
- 5. Staff autoreplies during vacations or absences shall include links to resources and phone/text numbers so parents and students have information readily available.
- **3.6.** All parents/guardians/caregivers may have access to suicide prevention training that addresses the following:
 - a. Suicide risk factors, warning signs, and protective factors;
 - b. How to talk with a student about thoughts of suicide;

How to respond appropriately to the student who has suicidal thoughts. Such responses shall include constant supervision of any student judged to be at risk for suicide and referral for an immediate suicide risk assessment.

c. Charter School's referral processes and how they or their children can reach out for help, etc.

7. Parents/guardians/caregivers are reminded that the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA") generally protects the confidentiality of student records, which may sometimes include counseling or crisis intervention records. However, FERPA's health or safety emergency provision permits the disclosure of personally identifiable information from a student's education records, to appropriate parties, in order to address a health or safety emergency when the disclosure is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other individuals.

Student Participation and Education

The Charter School's Messaging about suicide has an effect on suicidal thinking and behaviors. Consequently, CSCE along with its partners has carefully reviewed and will continue to review all materials and resources used in awareness efforts to ensure they align with best practices for safe messaging about suicide. Suicide prevention strategies may include, but not be limited to, efforts to promote a positive school climate that enhances students' feelings of connectedness with CSCE and is characterized by caring staff and harmonious interrelationships among students.

CSCE's instructional and student support program shall promote the healthy mental, emotional, and social development of students including, but not limited to, the development of problem-solving skills, coping skills, and resilience. The instruction shall not use the stress model to explain suicide.

The Charter School's instructional curriculum may include information about suicide prevention, as appropriate or needed. If suicide prevention is included in the Charter School's instructional curriculum, it shall consider the grade level and age of the students and be delivered and discussed in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of young students. Under the supervision of an appropriately trained individual acting within the scope of the individual'sher/his credential or license, students shall:

- 1. Receive developmentally appropriate, student-centered education about the warning signs of mental health challenges and emotional distress-which. The content of the education may include:
 - a. Coping strategies for dealing with stress and trauma-;
 - a. How to recognize behaviors (warning signs) and life issues (risk factors) associated with suicide and mental health issues in oneself and others-;

b.c. Help-seeking strategies for oneself and others, including how to engage school-based and community resources and refer peers for help-;

- e.d. Emphasis on reducing the stigma associated with mental illness and the fact that early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide.
- 2. Receive developmentally appropriate guidance regarding the Charter School's suicide prevention, intervention, and referral procedures.

Student-focused suicide prevention education can be incorporated into <u>classroom</u> curricula (e.g., health classes, <u>orientation classes</u>, science-classes, and physical education).

The Charter School will support the creation and implementation of programs <u>and/or activities on</u> <u>campus</u> that raise awareness about mental wellness and suicide prevention (e.g., Mental Health Awareness Week). <u>Peer Counseling</u>, <u>Freshman Success</u>, and National Alliance on Mental Illness on <u>Campus High School Clubs</u>).

Charter School maintains a list of current student trainings and is available upon request. Charter School has shared school-based supports and self-reporting procedures, so students are able to seek help if they are experiencing thoughts of suicide or if they recognize signs with peers. Although confidentiality and privacy are important, students should understand safety is a priority and if there is a risk of suicide, school staff are required to report. Charter-based mental health professionals are legally and ethically required to report suicide risk. When reporting suicidal ideation or an attempt, school staff must maintain confidentiality and only share information limited to the risk or attempt.

Charter School shall establish and widely disseminate a referral process to all students, so they know how to access support through school, community-based, and crisis services. Students shall be encouraged to notify a staff member when they are experiencing emotional distress or suicidal ideation, or when they have knowledge or concerns of another student's emotional distress, suicidal ideation, or attempt.

Intervention and Emergency Procedures

The Charter School designates the following staff members to act as the primary and secondary suicide prevention liaisons:

- 1. School Psychologist/ERMHS Clinician
- 2. Head of School

Whenever a staff member suspects or has knowledge of a student's suicidal intentions, they shall promptly notify the primary designated suicide prevention liaison. If this primary suicide prevention liaison is unavailable, the staff shall promptly notify the secondary suicide prevention liaison.

The suicide prevention liaison shall immediately notify the Head of School or designee, who shall then notify the student's parent/guardian as soon as possible if appropriate and in the best interest of the student. Determination of notification to parents/guardians/caregivers should follow a formal initial assessment to ensure that the student is not endangered by parental notification.

The suicide prevention liaison shall also refer the student to mental health resources <u>at CSCE or in</u> the community.

When a student is in imminent danger (has access to a gun, is on a rooftop, or in other unsafe conditions), a call shall be made to 911. <u>The call shall NOT be made in the presence of the student</u> and the student shall not be left unsupervised. Staff shall NOT physically restrain or block an exit.

When a suicide attempt or threat is reported<u>on campus or at a school-related activity</u>, the suicide prevention liaison shall, at a minimum:

- 1. Ensure the student's physical safety by one or more of the following, as appropriate: Eliciting
 - a. <u>Securing</u> immediate medical treatment if a suicide attempt has occurred;
 - b. ElicitingSecuring law enforcement and/or other emergency assistance if a suicidal act is being actively threatened.
 - c. <u>Ensuring that Keeping</u> the student-is under continuous adult supervision until the parent/guardian and/or appropriate support agent or agency can be contacted and has the opportunity to intervene.
 - d. Remaining calm, keeping in mind the student is overwhelmed, confused, and emotionally distressed.
 - e. Moving all other students out of the immediate area if applicable;.
 - f. Not sending the student away or leaving him/her alone, even to go to the restroom.
 - f.g. Providing comfort to the student, listening and allowing the student to talk and being comfortable with moments of silence;
 - g.h.Promising privacy and help, but not promising confidentiality.
- 2. Document the incident in writing as soon as feasible.
- 3. Follow up with the parent/guardian and student in a timely manner to provide referrals to appropriate services as needed and coordinate and consult with the county mental health plan if a referral is made for mental health or related services on behalf of a student who is a Medi-Cal beneficiary. Determination of notification to parents/guardians/caregivers should follow a formal initial assessment to ensure that the student is not endangered by parental notification.
- 4. After a referral is made, the Charter School shall verify with the parent/guardian that the follow-_up treatment has been accessed. Parents/guardians will be required to provide documentation of care for the student. If parents/guardians refuse or neglect to access treatment for a student who has been identified to be at risk for suicide or in emotional distress, the suicide prevention liaisons shall meet with the parent to identify barriers to

treatment (e.g., cultural stigma, financial issues) and work to rectify the situation and build an-understanding of care. If follow up care is still not provided, the Charter School may contact Child Protective Services.

Provide access to counselors or other appropriate personnel to listen to and support students and staff who are directly or indirectly involved with the incident at the Charter School.

5. Provide an opportunity for all who respond to the incident to debrief, evaluate the effectiveness of the strategies used, and make recommendations for future actions.

In the event a suicide occurs or is attempted at a school sponsored activityon the CSCE campus, the suicide prevention liaison shall follow the crisis intervention procedures contained in the Charter School's Comprehensive Safety CSCE's safety plan. -After -consultation -with -the -Head of School or -designee -and -the -student's

_parent/guardian about facts that may be divulged in accordance with the laws governing confidentiality of student record information, the Head of School or designee may provide students, parents/guardians, and staff with information, counseling, and/or referrals to community agencies as needed. Charter School staff may receive assistance from_CSCE counselors or other mental health professionals in determining how best to discuss the suicide or attempted suicide with students.

In the event a suicide occurs or is attempted <u>off the CSCE campus and</u> unrelated to school activities, the Head of School or designee shall take the following steps to support the student:

- 1. Contact the parent/guardian and offer support to the family.
- <u>2.</u> Discuss with the family how they would like the Charter School to respond to the attempt while minimizing widespread rumors among teachers, staff, and students.
- 2.3. Obtain permission from the parent/guardian to share information to ensure the facts regarding the crisis are correct.
- <u>3.4.</u>The suicide prevention liaisons shall handle any media requests.
- 4.5. Provide care and determine appropriate support to affected students.
- 5.6. Offer to the student and parent/guardian steps for re-integration to school. Re-integration may include obtaining a written release from the parent/guardian to speak with any health care providers; conferring with the student and parent/guardian about any specific requests on how to handle the situation; informing the student's teachers about possible days of absences; allowing accommodations for makeupmake-up work (being understanding that missed assignments may add stress to the student); appropriate staff maintaining ongoing contact with the student to monitor the student's actions and mood; and working with the parent/guardian involve student plan; providing to the in an aftercare parent's/guardians/caregivers/families local emergency numbers for after school and weekend emergency contacts.

Supporting Students during or after a Mental Health Crisis

Students shall be encouraged <u>through the education program and in CSCE_activities</u> to notify a teacher, the Head of School, another school administrator, psychologist, CSCE_counselor, suicide prevention liaisons, or other adultsadult when they are experiencing thoughts of suicide or when they suspect or have knowledge of another student's suicidal intentions. Staff should treat each report seriously, calmly, and with active listening and support. Staff should be non-judgmental to students and discuss with the student₇ and <u>the student's</u> parent/guardian₇ about additional resources to support the student.

Responding After a Suicide Death (Postvention)

A death by suicide in the school community (whether by a student or staff member) can have devastating consequences on the school community, including students and staff. The Charter School shall follow the below action plan for responding to a suicide death, which incorporates both immediate and long-term steps and objectives:

The suicide prevention liaison shall:

- 1. Coordinate with the Head of School to conduct an initial meeting of School to:the Suicide Prevention Crisis Team to:
 - a. Confirm death and cause;
 - b. Identify a staff member to contact the deceased's family (within 24 hours);).
 - c. Enact the Suicide Postvention Response.
 - e.d.Notify all staff members (ideally in-person or via phone, not via e-mail or mass notification).
- 2. Coordinate an all-staff meeting, to include:
 - a. Notification (if not already conducted) to staff about suicide death-
 - b. Emotional support and resources available to staff
 - c. Notification to students about suicide death and the availability of support services (if this is the protocol that is decided by administration);).
 - d. Share information that is relevant and that which you have permission to disclose.
- 3. Prepare staff to respond to the needs of students regarding the following:
 - a. Review of protocols for referring students for support/assessment $\frac{1}{72}$
 - b. Talking points for staff to notify students;
 - c. Resources available to students (on and off campus).
- 4. Identify students significantly affected by suicide death and other students at risk of imitative behavior; and refer them to a school-based mental health professional.
- 5. Identify students affected by suicide death but not at risk of imitative behavior $\frac{1}{72}$
- 6. Communicate with the larger school community about <u>the suicide death</u>; <u>Staff shall not share</u> <u>explicit, graphic, or dramatic content, including the manner of death</u>.
- 7. Consider funeral arrangements for family and school community $\frac{1}{7}$.

- 8. Respond to memorial requests in-a respectful and non-harmful manner; responses should be handled in a thoughtful way and their impact on other students should be considered.
- 9. Identify a-media spokesperson if needed.
- 10. Ensure that all communications, documents, materials related to messaging about suicide avoid discussing details about method of suicide, avoid oversimplifying (i.e. identifying singular cause of suicide), avoid sensational language, and only includes clear, respectful, people-first language that encourages an environment free of stigma. As part of safe messaging for suicide, we use specific terminology when referring to actions related to suicide or suicidal behavior:

Use	Do Not Use
<u>"Died by suicide"</u> <u>or</u> "Took their own life"	<u>"Committed suicide"</u> <u>Note:</u> Use of the word "commit" can <u>imply crime/sin</u>
<u>"Attempted suicide"</u>	"Successful" or "unsuccessful" Note: There is no success, or lack of success, when dealing with suicide

<u>10.11.</u> Include long-term suicide postvention responses:

- a. Consider—____important dates (i.e., anniversary of death, deceased birthday, graduation, or other significant <u>eventsevent</u>) and how these will be addressed.
- b. Support siblings, close friends, teachers, and/or students of deceased.
- a. Consider long-term memorials and how they may impact students who are emotionally vulnerable and at risk of suicide

<u>c.</u>

Student Identification CardsCards

Charter School will include the telephone number for the <u>numbers on all student identification</u> cards:

- National Suicide Prevention Lifeline-<u>(/Suicide Crisis Lifeline:</u>
 - o Call or Text "988"
 - o Call 1-800-273-8255) and the
- National Domestic Violence Hotline-(: Call 1-800-799-7233) on all student identification cards. The Charter School will also include the number for the Crisis
- Crisis Text Line, which can be accessed by texting : Text "HOME" to 741741 and a local
- Teen Line: Text "TEEN" to 839863
- Trevor Project: Text "START" to 678678
- Trans Lifeline: 1-877-565-8860
- Local suicide prevention hotline on all student identification cards.telephone number

Coversheet

23-24 Student Free Speech Policy

Section:VI. GovernanceItem:E. 23-24 Student Free Speech PolicyPurpose:VoteSubmitted by:VoteRelated Material:CSCE Student Freedom of Speech and Expression Policy 23-24 with Legal Edits.pdf

Community School for Creative Education

社羣創新學校 Escuela Comunitaria de Educación Educativa Trường Học Cộng Đồng Cho Sáng Kiễn Học Tập

STUDENT FREEDOM OF SPEECH AND EXPRESSION POLICY

Community School for Creative Education and its Board of Directors ("CSCE" or the "Charter School") adopt this Student Freedom of Speech and Expression Policy to apply to students enrolled at CSCE. CSCE respects students' rights to express ideas and opinions, take stands, and support causes, whether controversial or not, through their speech, writing, printed materials, including the right of expression in official publications, and/or the wearing of buttons, badges and other insignia.

Student Expression

Student free speech rights include, but are not limited to the distribution of printed materials or petitions, the wearing of buttons, badges, and other insignia, and the right of expression in official publications, whether or not the publications or other means of expression are supported financially by the school or by use of school facilities. Student expression on the Charter School website and online media shall generally be afforded the same protections as print media within the Policy.

Student expression, including but not limited to student expression on internet web sites, is generally constitutionally protected but shall be subject to discipline when such expression poses a threat to the safety of other students or staff, or substantially disrupts the educational program. The Head of School or designee shall document the impact the expression had or could be expected to have on the educational program.

Definitions

Unprotected Expression includes the following:

- 1. **Obscenity**: when the (1) average person applying current community standards finds the work as a whole appeals to the prurient interest, (2) the work is patently offensive, and (3) the work lacks serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value. Examples include pornography or sexually explicit material.
- 2. **Defamation:** Libel (written defamation) and Slander (oral defamation), which includes but is not limited to inaccurately attributing a statement to another, either on purpose for public officials (which includes Charter School staff) or by mistake for private officials, that mischaracterizes the statement.
- 3. Discriminatory Material: material that demeans a person or group because of the person/group's mental or physical disability, sex (including pregnancy, and related conditions and parental status), sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, immigration status, nationality, ancestry, (including national origin, country of origin, and citizenship), race or ethnicity, immigration status, (including ancestry, color, ethnic group identification, ethnic background, and traits historically associated with race, including but not limited to, hair texture and protective hairstyles such as

braids, locks, and twist), religion, (including agnosticism and atheism), religious affiliation, sexual orientation, childbirth or related medical conditions condition, genetic information, marital status, age, or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived

- 4.3. Harassment (including sexual harassment), Intimidation and/or Bullying: severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act. Bullying includes one or more acts committed by a student or group of students that may constitute sexual harassment, hate violence, or creates an intimidating and/or hostile educational environment, directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following: (1) placing a reasonable student or students in fear of harm to that student's or those students' person or property, (2) causing a reasonable student to experience a substantial interference with the student's academic performance, (4) causing a reasonable student to experience a substantial interference with the student's ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by the Charter School.
- 5.4. Fighting Words: words likely to cause (1) the average person to fight or (2) the creation of a clear and present danger of violence, unlawful acts in violation of lawful school regulations, or the substantial disruption of school.
- 6.5. Vulgarity and/or Profanity: the continual use of curse words by a student, even after warning.
- 7.<u>6.</u> **Violating Privacy**: publicizing or distributing confidential or private material without permission.

On Campus Expression

Student free speech rights include, but are not limited to, the use of bulletin boards, the distribution of printed materials or petitions, the wearing of buttons, badges, and other insignia, and the right of expression in official publications, whether or not the publications or other means of expression are supported financially by the school or by use of school facilities. Student expression on the Charter School website and online media shall generally be afforded the same protections as print media within the Policy.

Student freedom of expression shall be limited only as allowed by state and federal law in order to maintain an orderly school environment and to protect the rights, health, and safety of all members of the school community. <u>Unprotected Expression includes the following: obscenity; defamation; discriminatory material;</u> harassment (including sexual harassment), intimidation and/or bullying; fighting words; vulgarity and/or profanity; or violating privacy as defined above. Also prohibited shall be material that incites a clear and present danger of the commission of unlawful acts on school premises or the violation of lawful school regulations or the substantial disruption of the orderly operation of the Charter School.

A. Distribution of Circulars, Un-Official Newspapers, and Other Printed Matter

Free inquiry and exchange of ideas are essential parts of a democratic education. Students shall be allowed to distribute circulars, leaflets, newspapers, and pictorial or other printed matter, and to circulate petitions, subject to the following specific limitations:

- 1. Leaflets, pictorial and other printed matter to be distributed shall be submitted to the Head of School or designee at least one (1) school day prior to distribution. The Head of School or designee shall review material submitted in a reasonable amount of time and shall allow the approved material to be distributed according to the time and manner established by this Policy. <u>The Charter School Executive DirectorHead of School or designee shall notify student(s) if distribution will be granted or denied (and if denied, why distribution is not in compliance with this Policy).</u> Any student may appeal the decision of the Head of School or designee to the Board who shall render a decision within a reasonable period of time after receipt of the appeal. The appeal by the student must be made within five (5) school days from the time the unsatisfactory decision was rendered.
- 2. Distribution may take place during an educational activity provided there is no substantial disruption in the school programs as determined by the Head of School.
- 3. The manner of distribution shall be such that coercion is not used to induce students to accept the printed matter or to sign petitions.
- 4. The solicitation of signatures must not <u>take place in instructional classes or school</u> <u>offices, nor</u> be substantially disruptive to the <u>educational activityschool program</u> as determined by the Head of School or designee.

B. Official School Publications

Student editors of official school publications shall be responsible for assigning and editing the news, editorial, and feature content of their publications subject to the limitations of this Policy. However, it shall be the responsibility of the staff adviser(s) of student publications to supervise the production of the student staff, to maintain professional standards of English and journalism, and to maintain the provisions of this Policy. The staff adviser(s) shall help the student editors judge the literary value, newsworthiness and propriety of materials submitted for publication.

There shall be no prior restraint of material prepared for official school publications except insofar as it violates this Policy. School officials shall have the burden of showing justification without undue delay prior to a limitation of student expression under this Policy. If the staff adviser(s) consider material submitted for publication to violate this Policy, he or she will notify the student without undue delay and give specific reasons why the submitted material may not be published. The student should be given the opportunity to modify the material or appeal the decision of the staff adviser to the Head of School.

C. Buttons, Badges, and Other Insignia of Symbolic Expression

Students shall be permitted to wear buttons, badges, armbands, and other insignia as a form of expression, subject to the prohibitions enumerated in this Policy.

D. Use of Bulletin Boards

Students will be provided with bulletin boards, upon request and subject to availability, for use in posting student materials on campus locations convenient to student use. Where feasible, the location and quantity of such bulletin boards shall be by mutual agreement of student government representatives and CSCE administration. Posted material must be in compliance with other sections of this Policy, particularly regarding the distribution of materials and prohibited speech. Students may not post or distribute materials regarding the meetings of non-curricular student-initiated groups.

D.E. Organized Demonstrations

Students have the right to lawful organized demonstrations, subject to the provisions of this Policy and applicable law. Demonstrations that incite students to create a clear and present danger of the commission of unlawful acts during educational activities or the violation of lawful school regulations, or demonstrations that substantially disrupt the orderly operation of the <u>educational</u> <u>activityschool</u> are prohibited.

No individual student may demonstrate in the name of the Charter School or as an official school group at any time unless authorized by the Charter School to participate in the activity.

No student may participate in an organized demonstration that occurs during the hours of mandatory school attendance unless sanctioned by the Charter School and supervised by a designated Charter School employee. Missing school to attend an organized demonstration is not an excused absence. The Charter School will follow its Attendance Policy when determining consequences for students, which may include but are not limited to detention, a low grade for a missed test, or receiving a truancy letter.² The Charter School will follow its Suspension and Expulsion Policy when determining consequences for students if Charter School policy is violated.

F. Student Speeches

If a student is selected to speak at a Charter School sponsored event, including but not limited to graduation or school assemblies, Charter School has the right to review the pre-prepared speech to ensure that unprotected speech is not included. If unprotected speech is included, the student will be given the opportunity to revise the speech or deliver a modified speech. If not revised or removed, the student will not be permitted to speak at the Charter School sponsored event.

Online StudentOff Campus Expression

StudentOff-campus student expression, including but not limited to student expression on <u>off-campus</u> internet web sites, is generally constitutionally protected but shall be subject to discipline when such expression poses a threat to the safety of other students, staff, or school property, or substantially disrupts the educational program. The Head of School or designee shall document the impact the expression had or could be expected to have on the educational program. there is a sufficient nexus between the speech and the school.

Relevant considerations include:

- 1. The degree and likelihood of harm to the Charter School (staff, students, volunteers, and/or property) caused or augured by the expression,
- 2. Whether it is reasonably foreseeable that the expression would reach and impact the Charter School, and
- 3. The relation between the content and/or context of the expression and the Charter School. There is always a sufficient nexus between the expression and the Charter School when the Charter School reasonably concludes that it faces a credible, identifiable threat of school violence.

The Charter School Executive DirectorHead of School or designee shall document the impact the expression had or could be expected to have on the educational program. Off-campus expression that results in the material disruption of classwork or involves substantial disorder or invasion of the rights of others may be subject to discipline.

Off-campus expression may result in discipline if the expression involves but is not limited to:

- a. Serious or severe bullying or harassment targeting particular individuals;
- b. Threats aimed at teachers or other students;
- c. The failure to follow rules concerning lessons, the writing of papers, the use of computers, or participation in other online school activities; or
- d. Breaches of school security devices.

A. Enforcement

- 1. Upon learning that sStudents who are considering actions in the areas covered by this Policy should be informed of the possible consequences of their action under each specific circumstance. The Head of School shall ensure that due process is followed when resolving disputes regarding student freedom of expression.
- 2. This Policy does not prohibit or prevent CSCE's Governing Board from adopting otherwise valid rules and regulations relating to oral communications by charter CSCE students.
- 3. No CSCE employee shall be dismissed, suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, or otherwise retaliated against solely for acting to protect a student engaged in the conduct authorized under this Policy, or refusing to infringe upon conduct that is authorized under this Policy, the First Amendment to the United States Constitution, or Section 2 of Article I of the California Constitution.
- 3.4. CSCE shall not make or enforce a rule subjecting a student to disciplinary sanctions solely on the basis of conduct that is speech or other communication that, when engaged in outside of the campus, is protected from governmental restriction by the First Amendment to the United States Constitution or Section 2 of Article I of the California Constitution.

B. Complaints and Appeals

The following procedures shall be used to address general disputes regarding student freedom of speech and expression:

- 1. The student and faculty member shall first attempt to resolve the problem internally.
- 2. If the student and faculty member are unable to resolve the dispute, the student and/or faculty member may bring the matter to the Charter School Executive DirectorHead of School or designee, who shall hear both sides and strive to resolve the dispute as quickly as possible.
- 3. Any student or faculty member may appeal the decision of the Charter School Executive-DirectorHead of School or designee to the Board who shall render a decision within a reasonable period of time after receipt of the appeal. The appeal by the student must be made within five (5) school days from the time the unsatisfactory decision was rendered.

A student who feels their freedom of expression was unconstitutionally limited and/or limited on the basis of discrimination may file a complaint with CSCE through following the Charter School's Uniform Complaint Policies and Procedures.